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Information for Shareholders

Pages 3 10 29 represent our strategic report Trus has been prepared solely
io provide additional infermation to shareholders to assess the Company's
strategies and the poiential for those strategies to succeed

The strategic report contains certain forward-looking statements

These statements are made by the Directors in good farth based on

the information avaiable to them up to the ime of their approval of this
report and such staternents should be treated with caution due to the
nherent uncertainties, including bath ecancmic and business risk factors
undertying any such forward-locoking information
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Chime is an international communications and sports marketing group, including CSM, in sport
and entertainment, the VCCP Partnership in advertising, the Good Relations Group in public
relations, Open Health in healthcare communications, Teamspirit a specialist in financial and
professianal services, and CIE, our insight and engagement agency. We are listed on the London
Stock Exchange

Chime 1s made up of five divisions, 56 companies and over 1800 people We have offices In the UK, France, Germany, Spain,
Czech Republic, Slovakia, Russia, Abu Dhabi, Dubat, Qatar, South Africa, China, Hong Kong, Japan, Malaysia, Singapore,
Australia, New Zealand, USA, Canada and Brazil Further information on our business model can be found on page 21

Chime has identified four market growth drivers in sport and entertainment, healthcare communications, digital, and the
world's growing economies

In recognising these areas and 1o enhance shareholder returns, Chime has a strategy of developing ts existing businesses,
supporting organtc growth, Investing 1n start-ups, and expanding its operatrons overseas, particularly in economies which
forecast strong growth This overseas expanston will be delivered through taking existing businesses {0 those markets,
opening new offices and/or making acquisitions in the countnes identified

We measure our progress In delivering shareholder returns utiising six Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)
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Our Strategy, Values and Highlights
continued

OUR VALUES
SOCIAL CURIOUS DPEN
Creating strong Cunosity ieads Open minds lead
teams that know to cantinuous to better 1deas
how to work guestioning and and hetter
together learning relationships
RESPONSIBLE ENTREPRENEURIAL

Aurung to be a force
for good 1n the way we
do business

Everyone behaving
as if it was ther own
business

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

* Good performance compared to record 2012 with 8% increase i pperating income

Growing market share

Further developed aur Sport and Entertainment dvision

+ Strong operating income and operating prafit growth in Advertising and
Marketing Services, Public Retations, Healthcare Communications and tnsight
and Engagement

* Extended international operations thraugh the acquisiions of Peaple Marketing

in China and JMI 1n the USA

Further progress in Brazilian businesses in advance of the 2014 FIFA World Cup

Expected operating income on contracts won for the 2014 FIFA World Cup and

the 2014 Commonwealth Games now exceeds the operating income achieved far

the 2012 Qlympies

* Improved the senior management of both Public Retations and Sport and

Entertainment divisions

Strengthened our Board with appointment of three new Non-Executive Directars

.

-

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

* Profit before 1ax £25 millien (2012 £25 4 milhon)

+ Operating profit margin 15 2% [2012 16 4%)

+ Total dwdend for the year increased by 1% to 73dp [2012 724p]

+ £95 rmullion faointy agreed with RBS and HSBC until September 2016

02 Chime Commumcatuons plc

Operating incomsa
(2012 £1568m)

£169.5m

Earnings par share
[2012 21 277n)

19.47p

Profit before tax
(2012 £254m]}

£25m

Operating profit margin
(2012 16 4%)

15.2%

Dperating profit
[2012 £258m]

£25.8m

Total dividend
{2012 724p]

7.34p
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Chairman’s Statement

Image
removed
from here

This is my second annual report as Chairman
of Chime. It comes after a year in which we
made significant strides towards fulfilling
our potential as an international, integrated
marketing services group, and in which |
personally have had the opportunity to get to
know our business in much greater detail

b4 Chime Communications ple

Over the last 15 months, | have been able to visit every one
of the Chime compantes worldwide 1t has been a great
expenence and as V've toured our operabions | have been
hugely impressed by the skills, creativity and professionalism
that | have encountered This Group has extraordinanly
talented people, a wonderful client base and excellent
international reach It provides a great foundatien, and the
developments that have laken place during the year leave

us poised for what we beheve is a very exciting period in our
growth

Ravitalising the Group Board

2013 saw nothing short of a revitalisation of Chime's
Group Board, with the intfroduction of three Non-Executive
Directors embedding the digital, brand and enirepreneunal
experience that we beleve s essential to helping this
business achieve what it 1s capable of

As Vice President of eBay Marketplaces for the UK &
Greater Europe, Clare Gilmartin led its transformation from
second-hand auction hub to ieading retall site, Vin Murna,
named Woman of the Year in the 2012 Cisco Everywoman
Technology Awards, 1s CEO of Advanced Software Group
pic, the AIM-lIsted business ihat she founded in 2008, Martin
Glenn s a leading figure in the UK’s FMCG landscape, CEQ
of United Biscuits and previously CEQ of Iglo Frozen Food
and Company President for Pepsico in UK and Ireland |
wolld like to take this opportunity to welcome each of them
to Chime and look forward to working with them ciosely as
we move this Group forward




Future prospects for Chime are strong. We
remain one of the fastast-growing companies
in our sector with healthily diverse income
streams and a fascinating mix of clients
across the world.

Richard Alston and Cathering Biner Bradley both left the
Board during 2013 Paul Richardsan, a Non-Executive
Drector since 1997, also resigned from the Board in
March 2014 We are grateful for the contributions that all
three individuals made during their ime as Directors

Performance in 2013

Chime's businesses performed well dunng 2013 The
effects of the global sports cycle were felt in our sport
marketing business, in the year following the 2012 Olympic
and Paralympic Games in London and before the 2014
Winter Olympics, Commonwealth Games and FIFA World
Cup In Brazil However, there was strong growth across
our marketing communications, healthcare and research
divisions Highights from the year inctuded

« an excellent performance from the Chime Insight &
Engagement Group, with strong growth in revenues and
profitabiity that amounted to the most successful yearin
the division's history’

+ a strong new business perfermance from the Good
Relations Group, which supported the continued
development of our ‘Power of Good' proposition, and

= twin Agency of the Year' performances from VCCP and
Teamspint that powered an Increase in profitability of more
than 50% for the VCCP Partnership

Acquisition of JMI

Our acquisition of the US-based, global motorsports agency
JMI represented another highly significant development

for Chime We have ganed a complementary presence in
sports with a huge global following and powerful influence
within the US marketplace, and in Zak Brown we have
acquired another valuable member of our already strong
executive team

Overview and Highlights

Strategy and Outlook
Performance

Governance

Dwectors Remuneration Report
Financial Statements

WPP shareho!ding

At the ime of wnting there remains uncertainty over WPP's
intention regardmg its current shareholding in Chime We will
1Issue updates to the market and via the Chime webstte once
more Information becomes available

Future prospects

Future prospects for Chime are strong We remain one

of the fastest-growing companies in gur sector with

healthily diverse iIncome streams and a fascinating mix of
clients across the world We have strong governance, a
top-guality board and a strong executive team, and as a
Group we combine the ability to handle the needs of large
multinationals and smalf entrepreneunal clients alike The
breadth of our offering makes us nimble However, there

15 still opportunity to be explorted In teveraging our strong
chent relationships more widely across our businesses Over
the coming year, we expect to centinue to develop m strong
growth areas whiist laking greater advantage of these cross-
selling opportunities

Lord Davies of Abersoch
Charman
26 March 2014
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Chief Executive’s Statement

mage
removed
from here

Building broader momentum

This was another exciting year for Chime and our
increasingly global communications and sports marketing
offer We have taken further significant strndes towards
becoming a global leader in sports marketing, whilst every
other division of our business delivered strong growth during
the year

Performance 1n 2013

Qur tophne results reflect the simple fact that 2013 s an
odd-numbered year, and the werld's biggest sporting
events take place on alternate even-numbered years It was
expecied that the performance of our sports marketing
division CSM Sport & Entertainment would dip between the
London games and 2014, the year of the Winter Clympics In
Sochi, the Commonwealth Games in Glasgow and above all,
the FIFA World Cup in Brazil

Qther than CSM Sport & Entertainment, each division
delivered strong growth in profits duning 2013, a Group-wide
performance that demonstrates growing momentum across
all of the sectors in which we operate

08 Chume Commumications plc

Divisional averview

Qur advertising and marketing services division, The VCCP
Partnership, included two Agency-of-the-Year performances,
with VCCP Group carrying off the coveted Agency of the
Year award from Campaign magazine, and our specialist
financial services agency, Teamspint, similarly acclaimed by
the Financtal Services Forum

The awards recognised strong new business performance,
but also consistently excellent creative output thai shows
how well the group 15 positioned to deliver the ‘content-led’
campaigns that cltents increasingly demand VCCP Content
has been one of our most successiul start-ups in Chume
history, Teamspirt has delivered acclaimed campaigns

for Aviva and Barclays and, VCCP’s commercially astute
creativity continues to deliver impressive results for

easyJet, comparethemarket com and O2, with the O2 wark
recognised as Campaign magazine's Campaign of the Year

Elsewhere the re-focusing of Chime's divistons during the
last few years 1s deliverng promising returns In only its
second full year of operation, Open Health has now grown
to encompass more than 200 specialisis in healthcare
communicatrons and market access Its data-driven
approach and focus on science-based communication fit the
demand for greater accountability from healthcare spend
and have generated strong growth that s evenly spread
across the UK and Europe Chime Insight & Engagement
continues to grow, with the great success of its digital

arm Watermelon playing a key role in dehvering strong,
sustainable performance

Meanwhile the Good Relations Group's rejuvenated offer,
helping brands to develop and communicate the social
purpose that consumers increasingly demand, has delvered
good growth built around chents such as Unilever, TatkTalk
and Barclays We welcomed Jackie Brock-Doyle as the
Group's new CEO, working alongside Kevin Murray as
Chairman, and have strengthened our board with specialist
experhise to iead the development of the business, as
awareness of the active benefits of social responsibility
enter the communications mamnstream




During the year, CSM Sport & Entertainment
completed two major acquisitions that
represent significant advances for our global
sports marketing offer.

Strategic gains in sports marketing

During the year, CSM Sport & Entertainment completed two
major acquisitions that represent ssgnificant advances for
our global sports marketing offer The arrival of JMI under
its CEQ Zak Brown gives us both a dominant position in
motorsport and a firm foothold 1n the valuable US market
With tts immense global and US audiences and its annual
cycle, motorsport also adds an important element to the
division's business maodel 1t helps to even out the vanation
in performance between odd and even years, and aligns us
with a sport that touches every rapid growth market in the
shape of F1 We are pleased to announce that in addition
to continuing as CEQ of JMI, Zak will now lead Chume’s
giobal busmness development efforts as part of the team led
by CSM Sport & Entertainment Executive Chairman, Lord
Sebastian Coe

Qur acguisition of People Marketing in Shanghai brings
another valuable addition 1o our global management team in
the form of Irene Cheung, whilst providing a strong base for
the growth of our sponsarship business in Astan markets

Broadening our business in innovation

The breadth of good performances across Chime 1n 2013
testifies to the broad, sustainable base that our business
already enjoys The acquisitions of JMI and People
Marketing will help to broaden the growth opportunities

for our flagship sperts marketing division However, our
commitment to bullding broader momentum for our business
does noi end here Chime has set an internal target that 10%
of our annual profits should 1deally come from businesses
founded within the last three years This commitment to
continual innovation 1s one of the best guarantees of broad-
based, sustainable growth in the future It has aiready
delivered impressive launches such as VCCP Caontent,
Watermelon and The EarthWorks, the new digital arm of
Open Health With the support of our stari-up incubator,
Chime Ventures, we expect to see similar success stones

on an on-gaing basis We are also commutted to developing
the next generation of business leaders within the Group
through the activity of our youth board, Chime Innovate

Overview and Highlights
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Expanding our global footprint

Alongside our commitment to business innovation, the
expansion of our divisional offenngs to relevant new markets
remains a key theme of Chime’s strategy We have made
significant progress this year with the continued growth

of Open Health, the good performances delivered by
VCCP's businesses In Spain and Austraha, and above al,
the successful expansion of CSM Sport & Entertainment to
Brazil, China and the US The increase in our international
reach not anly pravides access ta the country that will
dominate the sporting calendar in 2014 and 2016, but

to countries where the potential of sports marketing 1s
enormous In any year It 1s one of Chime's KPIs that 50%

of our profits should come from overseas businesses within
the next three years, and we are firmly on course to achieve
this target

Leveraging opportumties across the Group

Taking full advantage of our broader global reach will
require Chime companies to be alive to the opportunities
that inevitably emerge We are determuned to capitalise on
the opportunity to be more than the sum of our parts, and
we have made working with clients through more than one
company a key focus There has been notable progress mn
this area, particutarly from Open Health, which shares more
clients within the division than any other part of our Group
We expect io make further progress in this area during the
coming year

Qutlook for 2014

For the reasons outlined, our prospects for 2014 are very
posttive The posibon that we have built in the Brazihan
market positions us very well for the FIFA World Cup, the
mator sporting event of the year Qur agencies have already
conducted significant work around the Winter Olympics
tn Sochi and will also be involved 1n the Commonwealth
Games in Glasgow Yet the reasons for optimism go
beyond the natural nses and falls of the sporting cycle
CSM Sport & Entertainment's strategic acquisttions have
provided powerful opporiunities for growth on an annual
basis, and the continued strong performance of all Chime
communication divisions puts the future of the group on a
sireng and sustainable footing

Chnstopher Satterthwaite
Chief Executive
26 March 2014
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By Division: Review and Qutlook

CSM Sport & Entertainmant

2013 was a year of consolidation and strategic
development for Chime's sports marketing and
entertainment division As expected, revenues dechned
following the 2012 Olympic and Paralympic Games
However, we generated good performances from our
brand consultancy and nghts management businesses
whilst building our leadership team, and making
strategic acquisitions that open up Impartant new
markets

CSM Sport & Entertainment puts brands at the heart of

the world's greatest experiences It includes the brand
consultancy Fast Track, the athlete representation, nights
management and actiation business Essentially, the
branding and wayfinding business lcon and the full-service
global event business ILUKA Following acquisitions dunng
2013, 1t now alse includes the world's leading motorsports
spansorship agency JMI, and Shanghai-based People
Marketing As a result of these acguisitions, the division now
has operations in the US and China as weil as Brazil, Qatar
and Abu Dhaby

2013 Performance

Because the world’s largest sporting events take place in
even-numbered years, the revenues and profits of lcon

and ILUKA, our two businesses with activities most directly
related to these events, tend to follow a two-year cycie In
2013, the year following the 2012 Olympic and Paralympic
Games in London and preceding the Winter Olympics in
Sochi, the Commonwealth Games and the FIFA World Cup

in Brazit, revenues and profits for these businesses inevitably
declined This decline was exacerbated by some aspects of
preparation for the World Cup beginning later than expected,
which will have the iImpact of increasing revenues in 2014

Elsewhere, there were good performances from Fast Track,
which took the lead role 1n activating HSBC's sponsorship of
the successful British and Insh Lions tour to Australa The
agency delivered a growing valume of sponsarship work for
Land Rover, a fellow sponsor of the Lions tour, and continued
its excellent sponsorship achivation activity for Lucozade
Sport Meanwhile, Essentially forged the deal that makes
Waitrose the shirt sponsor for the England cricket team, just
part of a sohd performance that also saw the agency pick
up significant activation business from PruHealth Vitahty,
spansor of the International Triathlon Union

The motorspart opportunity

The acquisition of JMI, which was completed in November
2013, brings the world's leading motorsports sponsorship
agency Into the CSM Sport & Entertainment stable — and
expands the division's global feolprint In two important ways
Through motorsport, the division has access to significant
new, annualised mcome streams that will offset the cyclical
nature of our events-related businesses going forward, and
through JMI itself, it has established a firm foothold in the
valuable US market

JMI handles sponsorship, nghts management and activation
for three separate motorsports through F1 1t reaches a
global audience of more than 2 5 bilhon cumulatively,
through IndyCar 1t provides access to a highly engaged
audience of TV viewers each season, and in NASCAR, 1t has
a lead role in the second-most watched sport in the US, wath
an annual TV audience of over 70 miliion

As the feading sponsorship agency for these three sports,
JMI1s a powerful, complementary addition to the division,
and 1ts strong relationships with US TV networks provide a
firm foundation for leveraging expertise i other sports within
the US market

08 Chime Communications plc




Expanding our global footprint

During the year, the division also acquired the Shanghai-
based communications and event management business,
People Marketing, which greatly strengthens our presence
in one of the most iImportant emerging markets for sports
sponsorship People Marketing sirengthens our offer to
existing clients and other international brands locking to
grow their presence withan China, and also provides us
with access o the growing market of Chinese companies
seeking internationai sponscrship deals to help grow their
global profile

Strengthening aur hoard

Our first full-year under the Chairmanship of Lord Sebastian
Coe has been a positive one for the long-term development
of the division, and we have made further moves to
strengthen our board during the year

JMI's founder and CEO Zak Brown has taken on an
additronal role with the CSM Sport & Entertainment board,
overseeing global business development lan Priest, one
of the co-founders of VCCP also joins as Chief Operating
Officer The pair will work with Lord Coe, CSM Chief
Executive Jim Glover and Deputy Chairman Edward Leask

Building a divisignal identity

Over recent years, CSM Sport & Entertainment has grown to
be one of the world's largest sports marketing businesses,
with 21 offices m 15 countries Developing a clear, unified
visual identity for the division will enable us to take full
advantage of this increasing global scale, and this was a
key prionty for the leadership team durning the second half
of 2013 We will be rolling out this new identity during 2014

Dutlook for 2014

The outlock for the division tin 2014 1s positive, with
sigruficant activity for our businesses around all of the year's
three major sporting evenis In addition, we look forward to
a positive contribution from both of the companies acquired
in 2013
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The VCCP Partnership

The VCCP Partnership delivered not one, but two
Agency of the Year performances during 2013 The
VCCP agencies were recognised as Agency of the
Year by advertising industry journal Campaign and as
Digital Agency of the Year by the Interactive Advertising
Bureau (IAB) Meanwhile, specialist financial services
agency, Teamspint was declared Agency of the Year by
the Financial Services Forum The division delivered
extremely strong growth In revenues and profitability,
with VCCP currently the fastest-growing marketing and
communications agency in the UK

The VCCP Partnership inciudes the VCCP agencies,

an integrated marketing services bustness that offers
advertising, content, search, social and media planning
and buying services It also includes the specialist financial
services agency Teamspirt

2013 Performance

The division delivered a year of extremely strong growth,
with revenues increasing substantially and profits nsing
by almost 50% This performance was founded on the
investments that we have made in bullding capabillities
for the modern era The VCCP agencies offer a unique,
full-service proposition that covers the disciplines of
advertsing, content, search, social and media planning
and buying, which resonates strongly with clients seeking
seamless, integrated solutions The investments made by
Teamspint have ensured that 1t 1s strongly positioned to
meet the demands of financial services clients for an agile,
continuous campaigning approach

VCCP 1opped the Campaign new business performance
league for the year, with a 68% pitch conversion rate and
major new business wins ncluding Asda, Zapp. The AA,
Avis/Budget, Which? and Royal London 1i1s the fastest-
growing UK agency of the last decade and among the

top five agencies in the UK, ranked by bilings Our media
ptanming and buying business, VCCP Media, 1s shaking up
the market through a digital-focused approach that bilis for
time enly, and ranked third in Campaign’s new business
rankings In its first full year of operation

Annual Report and Accounts 2013 09




By Division: Review and Outlook
continued

Delvering famously effective campaigns

The success of the division's agencies Is closely linked

to the performance of the campaigns that we develop for
clients We place a firm emphasis on effective delivery
against measurable chent objectives, and this has earned a
number of awards duning the year

VCCP has esiablished a powerful reputation for commercially
astute creativity, and for maximising the effectiveness of s
campaigns by executing them across multiple platforms Qur
‘Be More Dog' campaign for long-standing clent 02 was

the most shared ad In the UK during the year and the most
viewed, shared and talked about ad i 02 hustary, it was also
awarded Campaign of the Year by Campaign magazine

The *Compare the Meerkat' work for comparethemarket com
was voted the country's favaunte ad, and continues to dnive
significant growth for its chent, and our ‘easyJet Generation’
campaign has helped to make easyJet the fastest growing
company in the FTSE100 The content strategy developed by
Teamspnt for Aviva earned 1t the Marketing Soctety's award
for best B2B campaign during the year

Commtment to innovation

We are committed to a process of continual innovation

within the VCCP Partnership, developing start-up businesses
in response to new technologies and opportumties, and
ensunng that we continue to offer a seamless, full-service
solution The year saw the launch of Ex Nihilo, an executional
think tank in the digital space that already numbers
Telefonica, The AA and SAGA among its clients

VCCP Content has proven one of the most effective
stari-ups in Chime's expenence, and we developed the
business further this year by combining it with our social
media operation to create VCCP Kin In a similar move, we
have combined our data analytics and direct marketing
businesses to create VCCP Me, and streamlined our media
planning and buying operation with the merging of VCCP
Search with VCCP Media Such moves help to ensure that
our commitment to innovation does not result in duplication
between different, emerging parts of the business

10 Chume Communicatans plc

Progress in global markets

VCCP offices in Australia, Germany and Spain performed
well during the year as we continue to develop our footprint
In response to demand from existing clienis The division

1 open to opportunities to establish a position in additional
overseas markets where strong demand exists for is
integrated, multi-platform offering

Outloak far 2014

Following five years of restricted budgets, the prospects for
the marketing services industry as a whole are improving in
the UK and overseas The sirength of the VCCP Partnership
and Teamspint's propositions ensures that both are well
posilioned to continue to benefit from this trend




The Good Relations Group

In the middle of 2012, after the departure of Bell
Pottinger, we formed The Good Ralations Group as

a ‘grown up start up’. The Group brings together

the remaining Chime companies doing corporate
responsibility, public relations and customer advocacy
work under a single proposition to help clients build
trusted brands through good actions, good relationships
and good recommendations

In 2013, we continued the repositioning of the group,
aligning our offers, investing in top talent, and building
awareness of the brand, while also growing the top line

The Good Relations Group comprises Corporate Citizenship,
Harvard, Good Relations Brands, TTA Property, and
InEvidence, which wark together to help chents thrive
through goed actions, good engagement and good
recemmendation

2013 Performance

The Group delivered a strong new business performance,
growing revenues by st under 5% year-on-year The arnval
of new clients such as Friends Life, Royal Mail, De Beers,
Quatcomm, Cisco, B&Q and HTC enabled us to grow the top
Iine whilst funding Investment in talent and brand buillding
We maintained our profit, year-on-year

In addition, we have continued to renew and build client
refationships In a kighly competitive environment For
example, we continue to work with Unilever after re-pitching
successfully for the business We have grown our work for
Fuyitsu and were voted ther ‘Agency of the Year' far 2013
Meanwhile, TTA Property continues to grow its high-profile
waork for the Berkeley Group, which was voted Britain's
second Most Admired Company in 2013

Investing in talant and leadarshup

We welcomed Jackie Brack-Doyle OBE as the new CEO of
Good Relations Group, in June 2013 Her work as Director
of Communications and Public Affairs for the London 2012
Olympic and Paralympic Games and previously as Head of
Media and PR for the London 2012 bid has made Jackie one
of the most admired figures working in public relations and
communications She was PR Week's PR Professional of the
Year in 20112 and was recently isted in the Debrett/Sunday
Times top 500 most influentiat people in Britain Her decision
to join the Group 1s a powerful affirmation of aurvision and
strategy going forward

Overview and Highlights
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Jackie works alongside the Group’s chawrman Kevin Murray
In leading a team that has been substantialty reinforced and
redeveloped to support the future strategy of the bustness
Qur investment in new talent has included new directors of
corporate communtcations and consumer public relations

at Good Relations Brands, and the appointment of Amelia
Torode, previously Chime’s Mead of Innovation and a Partner
at VCCP as Director of Strategy We have also invested in top
creative talent, as well as digital experts We will continue to
Invest 10 talent as we build our proposition during 2014

The Triple G rating measuring The Power of Good

In August 2013, the Good Relations Group launched its

Tnple G rating, a new measure of reputation that accounts '
for a brand's soft capital The Triple G rating captures

whether consumers rate a brand as a force for good, think it :
has a good relationship with them, and whether they would

give it a good recommendation

The Triple G rating was bullt on propnetary research
commissioned by the Group and conducted by Chime
Insight and Engagement, which asked more than 3,500
consumers to scorg 100 well-known consumer brands on the
triple measures of 'Goed Actions’, ‘Gaad Engagement’ and
‘Good Recommendations' At the end of the process only

20 of the 100 brands achieved a positive ‘Trniple G’ across all
three elements, ensuring the exclusmty of this rating

The taunch of the Triple G rating produced an immecdhate
impact In the marketplace, with Marketing Week devoling its
cover and a 6-page feature to the concept It has proven an
invaluable tool In focusing the agenda of brand marketers on
perceptions of Good as the essential currency of reputation,
operung up senor-level canversations and apportunities

with current and potential chents We will be bullding on this
success by developing an equivalent Tnple G rating for b2b
brands dunng 2014

Brand developmant

The strength of the Power of Good positioning and our
continuing thought ieadership are remnforced by the unified
brand identity that we introduced across all of the Group
companies dunng 2013 This embeds our central proposition
whilst respecting the impartance to our affer of brands such
as Corporate Citizenship, Harvard, Goad Relations Brands,
InEvidence and TTA Property
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By Division: Review and Outiook
continued

One of our most effective pieces of thought leadership was
Chairman Kevin Murray’s best-selling business book, The
Language of Leaders, which helped to generate opportunities
and several new clients Hie new book, Communicate to
Inspire, has just gore on sale and will form the cornerstone

of several marketing events and dinners in 2014

As part of our brand re-orgamsation, we have incorporated
our public affairs and political business within our corporate
offer We remain firmly committed to thes area and will
continue to prowide expert consultancy under the Good
Relations Brand Communications banner

Embedding digital at the heart of the offering

Good Relations Group I1s ranked as one of the UK's top six
digital commurications agencies, based on the proportion
of 1ts revenues represented by digital business Digital
remamns absolutely fundamental to our offer i the market,
and 1s the key drnver of the consumer advocacy that the
Power of Good enables and the Triple G rating helps

lo measure We continue to invest significantly in digital
training and talent development, including through our
innovative parinerships with the likes of Google and Twitter
We specialise in eptimising cemmunications across the full
range of digital platforms, and social media monitoring Is
care to the service we offer

Qutiook for 2014

We expect the encouraging new business performance

of the Group to continue during 2014, as we complete

our repositioning of the bustness and continue to INvest in
brand and talent Thes year we will be focusing on improving
margin, innovating and expanding our products and
sarvices while buitding the platform for accelerated growth
In revenues and profitability during 2015

12 Chime Communications plc

Chime Insight & Engagement Group

Chime Insight & Engagement Group (CIE) delivered an
excellent performance dunng 2013, with strong growth
across the division’s businesses, iImproving margins and
a digrtal offering that has connected with client demand
for real-time, actionable insight. The strong growth
achieved in both revenue and profitability made this the
most successful year in the division’s history

Chime Insight & Engagement consists of the research
agencies Brand Democracy, Cherry Picked, Facts
International, Naked Eye, Opinion Leader, and Watermelon
Research Together these offer a full range of digital,
telephone-based and face-to-face techniques for qualitative,
quantitative and deliberative research Watermelon
Research, a digital research solution that connects
businesses to the voice of the consumer in real-time,

15 weally swted to the demands of the Big Data era

2013 Performance

Qur businesses delivered robust revenue growth during the
year, with a particularly strong performance from Watermeion
Research in its second year of operation Continued growth
In face-to-face and telephone-based research helped

to drive the most profitable year in the history of Facts
International Meanwhile, the Opinion Leader business
continues its geod performance, with the gualitative
operation attracting significant repeat business and new
chents from the pubhc and private sectors, and its recently
launched quantitative offer dovetailing with the division's in-
house fieldwark capabilities to drive additional revenue

The rapud expansion in demand for Watermelon's offering
provided the dominant theme of the year It demonstrates
that the division 1s exiremely well placed to meet the

growing demand for real-ime customer feedback, and the
requrrement for businesses 1o dernve clear insight from Big
Data Walermelon bridges the gap between research and
technology, providing its customers with instant management
information through bespoke multi-platform dashboards, as
well as propnetary research and consultancy services It
enables immediate responses to customer experience and
has guickly established itself as an essential information

tool The business has become Chime’s most successful
ever gtart-up, and has grown to a team of 20 people In under
two years




Continuing cemmitmant ta innovation

We remamn committed fo innovation, and the expansion

of the division’s offer through start-ups Durning 2013,

we launched Cherry Picked, a speciahst offer focused

an profiing and recruitment for focus groups and depth
interviews, which achieved profitability inits first year of
aperation We will continue to explore the potential of new
research techniques and delivery models as they emerge

Expanding footprintin Australia

Our operation in Austraila provides a strategic advantage in
enabling our businesses to deliver 24-hour service to clients
and turn around the rapid insight that decision-makers
increasingly require We launched Watermelon Research in
Australia this year, and Watermeion, Facts International and
Opinton Leader are generating increased tracton from our
Sydney base

Strengthening our consultancy line-up

We continue to invest in attracting the best research talent to
the CIE, with a number of additional senior-level hires dunng
2013 In continuing to bolster our ine-up of senior directors,
we are able to grow the contribution of consultancy services
to the division’s overall revenues, further helping to improve
margins for our business

Outiook for 2014

The capabilities that drove an excellent performance in
2013 w:ll continue to provide strong advantages against
the backdrop of an improving research markel We expect
demand for Watermelon Research’s innovative, digital offer
and Facts International’s fieldwork services to continue

to grow
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OPEN Heatth Group

With significant growth in revenue and profitabihty,
OPEN Health consohdated the position it has rapidly
established as a leader in the European healthcare
market At the same time, 1t has continued to develop its
marketing, commumcations and market access offer to
touch the most mpeortant growth areas for the sector

OPEN Health includes the advertising and brand
communication practice, OPEN LEC, the medical education
agency Succinct, the healthcare public relations business
Reynolds-MacKenzie, the medical market research agency
OPEN Plan, the digital operation The EarthWorks, and

real world data experts pH Associates and Harvey Walsh
Following launches during 2013 and early 2014, it also
includes the market access consuiting company, OPEN
Access Consuling, and the patient-focused marketing and
commurications agency, Engage

This network of businesses constitutes a full-service
marketing and market access offer, operating across the UK
and Europe under the OPEN Health umbrella brand, and
with a particular focus on the pharmaceutical sector

2013 Paerformance

The Group delivered a good performance in 2013, with
significant revenue growth across both of its core businass
areas We have maintained margins whilst successfully
ncorporating the businesses acquired dunng the previous
year, and this has ensured healthy growth in profitability
The Group now works for roughly 90% of the world’s top
40 pharmaceutical companies, delivering solutions for 115
chents and 190 brands

Growth was strongest of all for our market access
businegsses, pH Associates and Harvey Walsh These
address a growing demand for an evidence-based
approach that can make the case for new pharmaceutical
treatments on the basis of economic impact as well as
heatth benefits The ability to leverage scientific, economic
and medical data 1o demonstrate cost-efficiency and return
oninvestment 1s now wvital for companies presenting to
buying organisations such as the NHS and NICE it therefore
represents an increasing focus for pharmaceutical marketing
budgets
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By Division: Review and Outlook
continued

Devsloping our offer in growth areas

We have continued to bulld our offer in high-growth areas by
launching and developing businesses that address the key
pnonties for the pharmaceutical sector

The launch of OPEN Access Consulting adds an impartant
dimension to our market access proposition, bullding on the
data capabiities provided by PH Associates and Harvey
Walsh with a consultancy offer that delivered good growth
In its firs{ year

On the marketing and communications side, we launched
Engage, a new agency focused an patient insight and
engagement, and reflecting the growing influence that
patients have over thetr own treatment as information on
medicines becomes readily avatlable online

The continued development of our digital marketing
communications business, The EarthWorks addresses an
area of in¢creasing importance for marketing to healthcare
professionals, buying organisations and patients alike
Whether communicating directly with patients or doctors or
putting collateral into the hands of field sales teams, there 1S
an increasing demand for multi-platform digital capabilities

- and this 1s what The EarthWorks has been designed to
provide The business delivered strong growth i its first year,
with work for Pizer, GlaxoSmithKiine and Abbvie

Building synergies across our businesses

One of the great strengths of the OPEN Health Group 1s
our ability to add value for clients by providing services
across several of our businesses The Group currently has
the largest proportion of shared clients wathin Chime, and
connecling the different elements of our offer 1s a natural
source of opportunity in our sector We strengthened the
connections between our businesses in 2013 when we
moved our Succinct medical communications business

1o our offices in Marlow, where 1t forms part of a growing
campus of Open Health operations

Internatianal footprint

Cur marketing communications businesses have been able
lo establish a strong international footprint thanks 1o the
position of the UK as a key hub for clients managing regional
and global campaigns [t 1s our intention to build on this

inthial advantage through developing our presence in other
key regional buying hubs, and we are actively explonng
opporturities for increasing our share of work commissioned
from North America, Asia Pacific and mainland Europe

1¢ Chume Commumications plc

Qutlook far 2014

We expect the areas that drove growth for cur businesses

In 2013 to continue to do so over the coming year Market
access and patient engagement remain particular pnaonties
for the pharmaceutical sector, as does the reguirement

to reach all audiences across a growing range of digital
platforms For these reasans, we expect cur recent launches
to continue to deliver good growth in the year ahead
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Risks and Uncertainties

The Board has considered the rnisks and uncertainties
affecting the Group as at 31 December 2013 and these are
summarised below The Group has specific policies and
processes In place {o ensure nsks are properly evaluated
and managed at the appropriate level within the Group
These policies are set out In the Directors’ Statement on
Corporate Governance tn the section headed Internal
Control on page 51
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In addition to the general economic and competitive rnsks
affecting businesses operating in the Group's markets, the
following are cansidered ta be the principal nsks impacting
the Group These risks are regularly assessed and monitored
by the senior management team in each Division and by the
Executive Management Team The Audit Committee reviews
the Group's systems of nsk management as part of its duties

RISK

MITIGATION / COMMENT

INTERNAL RISKS

Reputation and sustainability

Damage to Chime’s reputation as a result of failure, or an
issue, concerning a high profile indrvidual, project or brand

Chime’s business 1s maintaining and enhancing the
reputations of brands, corporates and mndwduals As such,
management 1s aware and acknowledges the exposure it
has to such 1ssues occurnng Such exposure 15 expressly
considered as part of the nsk management process, both
in terms of mawntaining our own reputation and that of gur
individual key staff

Mitigated by operating Companies and their internal
procedures and processes aimed at delivenng excellent
services Risk assessments are also undertaken on major
projects {& g World Cup 2014 and Olympics 2016) Crists
management and recovery protocols are i place to mitigate
possible risks

Segurlty of Data

+ Data loss or breach of client confidentraiity due to
inadequate secunty of data

Fallure to adequately protect data could impact the
Group's reputatton and create the nsk of htigation and/or
the loss of business

The Group works for 2 number of clients where we hold not
only confidential data but data on our clients’ customers
We work with clienis to ensure that the current disciplines
and secure means of storage, process and transfer are
appropriate

Our systems are tested regularly for business interruption
incidents and that security levels remain fit for purpose

Marketing ethics, compltance with marketing standards
Fallure to comply with laws, industry codes or governing
bodies could impact the Group'’s reputation and its
relationship with clients

Chime has a set of core values (see page 26) together
with a Code of Conduct applicable to all staff Indrvidual
Dwisions and/or agencies will have additronal measures
applied due to ther market, opegrating discipline or culture

Each Division 1s responsible for meeing both Chime's overall
values in the manner best suited to each business Where
appropnate, comphance officers and ethics committees lead
the process Overall compliance 1s a measure undertaken
via our risk management processes
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Risks and Uncertainties
continued

RISK

MITIGATION / COMMENT

Reputation and sustainabiity
Inappropnate Use aof Sociat Networking

+ Chent disputes and reputational loss due to staff
misconduct on social networking sites 15 a nsk faced by all
businesses

Disaster Recovery Plans

« A significant loss of resources (eg property, a key
individual or technical resource)

social media

Our Group values (see page 26) underpin everything that
we do

Our inductron programmes and employment standards
convey the required levels of behaviour expected of our
staff The Group continues to review this area and has
increased the emphasis on avoiding the improper use of

Each Cempany, bulding and IT infrastructure network
has its own tallored disaster recovery plan and it is the
responsibibty of the local management team 1o continue
to develop these

A Group-wide review project will take place in 2014 ensuning
that disaster recovery plans are in place for all key resources

Legal and r;gulat-o;y - Regulatery and -statutury chénges)

The Group may be subject to regulations affecting its
activities which could have a material adverse impact on the
Group's financial position

Changes in tax and accountancy laws or their application
may also adversely affect the Group’s reported results

Legal and regulatory - Bribery and corruption

All businesses are exposed to the threat of corruption

The winning of business and logistical issues within our
operations could give nse to bnbery

The Group actively monitors any proposed regulatory and
statutory changes and, under the guidance of the Audit
Commitiee, develops a response comparable to the nisks or
exposures faced by our operations due to such changes

Chime's stated values, Code of Conduct and the
foermalisation of processes to meet the risks of corruption
are In place and appropriate for our business

Qur policies and procedures remam under review by
the Audit Committee whilst compliance 1 monitored by
management and our internal audit functron

Financial risks

Recoverability of debtors

« The Group may be unable to collect balances due from
clients that have filed for bankruptcy or become insolvent

« The Group's cash flow requirements may be adversely
affected by delays in collections from clients and the slow
recelpt of cash

18 Chime Communications plc

Client credt worthiness s assessed and moanitored on an
on-going basis If necessary, credit iInsurance or payments
In advance are sought

In the current economic chmate the Group has seen client
pressure to extend credit terms Whilst this 1s challenged
where possible, cash flow impact 1s monitored to ensure that
sufficient financial resources are available
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RISK

MITIGATION f COMMENT

Financial risks

Undetected fraud and cash thefts

* Fraud taking place within the Group which remains
undetected and escalates leading to a cash loss and/or
reputaticnal impact for the Group

The financial results and forecasts of each Group Company
are rnigorously monitored and analysed on a monthly basis

All Group Companies are subjected to an Internal Audit
review when bank and cash controls, purchase approvals
and payment authensatrons are reviewed and tested

Reporting Procedures

* Errors and efficiency losses as a result of not having
accurate and timely reporting and consoldation

Whilst the Group's current reporting systems and processes
are fully functioning and effective, the Group 1s In the
process of Implementing a new group reporting and
consolidation system which should streamling the reporting
process This will be in place by the end of 2014

Acquired Goodwill and Intangible Assets

» Acquired goodwill and other intangible assets recorded
on the Group's balance sheet with respect to acquired
campanies may become impaired

The Group has a significant amount of goodwill and
other acquired intangible assets recorded on its balance
sheet with respect to acquired companies that may
become impaired If business performance dees not meet
expectations

The Group performs due diligence on all acquisitions and
this forms part of the Board's assessment of each proposed
transaction In addition, future events could cause the Group
to conclude that the asset values and goodwill assocrated
with a given operation have become impaired Performance,
both historic and forecast 1s measured on a monthly basis

Revenue Recognrtion

* Revenue incorrectly recogmised within Company financial
statements

» Either as a result of revenue recognised in the wrong
accounting period or revenue which has not yet been
earned as per contract clauses

Revenue recognition 1s determined by the contract and
Chime's revenue recogrition policy

Company and Divisional finance teams are responsible for
monitoring and recording revenue in the correct manner and
as per client contracts

Revenue provisions are reviewed and tested across the
Group on a monthly basis by Chime Central

All Group companies subject to an annual Internal Audit
where revenue provisions are tested

Currency exchange rate fluctuations

The Group operates globally, as explained in note 3 to
the financial statements Fluctuations in exchange rates
between currencies, in which the Group operates, relative
to pounds sterling, may cause fluctuations in its financial
results, parttcularly in the current economic chimate within
the Eurozone

The main currencies which impact the Group's operations
are the Eurg, Brazilian Real and US Doliar

An assessment has been performed of the impact of
srgnificant fluctuations in exchange rates of the main foreign
currencies used by the Group, as shown in note 38 of these
financial statements

On negotration of contracts and where possible client
commitments are made 1n pounds sterling to alleviate nisk
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Risks and Uncertainties
cantinued

RISK
Client dependency

The Group receives a significant proportion of its revenues
from a tmited number of large clients, and the loss of those
clients would adversely impact the Group's prospects,
business, financial condition and resull of operations

MITIGATION { COMMENT

A relatrvely small number of clients contnbute a significant
percentage of the Group's consolidated revenues Our
largest client represented 12 5% of operatng income In the
year ended 31 December 2013 (2012 12 5%) Qurtop 30
chents represented 44% of total mcome compared to 49%
In 2012

The Group continues to maintain strong relationships with
key clients and seecks to establish reputations in the iIndustry
that will attract and retain further key clients and talent

Due to the number of services provided by the Group and
the dnive for cross Group working, on many 0ccasions a
shared client may be secured under a number of contracts
The loss of one contract does not necessarily mean the loss
of that clent

Retention of key personnel

The Group 1s dependent on the talent, creative abives and
technical skills of iis personnel, as well as their relatronships
with clients

If the Group were unable to atiract and refain its key

talent, or had inadequate talent management and
succession planning for key management roles, the Group's
performance would be adversely affected through client
losses and profitability

18 Chime Communications plc

The Group seeks to retain and develop personnel at

all levels The Group's future success 1s dependent on
the continuity of services to clients and the retention of
knowledge and relationships within the Group The loss or
lack of development of personnel could have a matenal
adverse effect on the Group's business The Group and
its Divisions continue to design and implement training
schemes In order to further motivate and develop staff

Key employees are members of incentive plans which link
remuneration to Company performance These are designed
to motivate and dnve both the achievement of short term
objectives and retain and reward staff in the long term

Succession planning n terms of both management positions
and relationships with clients 1s reviewed on a regular basis
and is a recurnng tem mghhghted dunng the Group's nsk
management process

Additionally, insurance 15 procured for key individuals at

a level o reflect the fee earning potential of the ndividual
concerned
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RISK
Mergers and acquisitions

The Group may be unsuccessful in evaluating matenal risks
involved In completed and future acquisitons and may be
unsuccessful in Integrating any acquired operations within its
existing businesses

MITIGATION / COMMENT

Business, legal, tax and financial due diligence carried out
prior to acquisition to seek to identify and evaluate material
risks and plan the integration process

Board aversight of matenal acquisitions and performance of
recent and prior acquisitions

Divisions are responsible for integrating and embedding
their acquisiions This will include Chime wide guideiines
and processes

All new acquisiions are subject to Internal Audit reviews

Authority to commit

Companies may exceed their power of authorty and
unilaterally enter into agreemenis which require the express
approval of Chume Group

Standards and authority levels have been set by the Group
Company and Divistonal Heads are aware that authonty
thresholds are in place limiting their power of authonty
Where applicable, additional Chime authority s required

This is subject to review by Internal Aucht

Contractual terrms

Financial uncertainty through loss of client or fegal disputes
with chent

Guidance on acceptable habiities and commitments are
established Any requirement above these pre-determined
imuis requires Group approval Major contract terms are
venfied by the Company, Divisional and Group legal departments

Once legal commitments are established in client contracts,
levels of financral commitment (either in external procurement
or a cormmitment of resources) are controlled accordingly
This process I1s a subject of focus by Internal Audit as part
of the regular review of the application of our control framework

management
QOver-rellance on key ndividuals within an overseas office

Many of the overseas offices are small and contact with
Chime 1s at umes reliant an a small group of indviduals

We recognise that expansion internationally places demands
on our management structure Whtlst Chime has a divisicnal
structure we are developing a regional matox which will
meet the demands of expansion Inlo new terniiories

Oversight of start-ups and smaller acquisitions in remote
markets 18 undertaken by both Diisional and Group
management and remains under constant review

Regular contact 1s maintained with the overseas offices via
reporting Visits are made on an annual basis by the Internal
Auditor
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Risks and Uncertainties
continued

MITIGATION / COMMENT

EXTERNAL RISKS

Economic and political environmant

The Group operates In a number of territories with vared
economic and pohtical environments which could affect
trading and profitability

Reductions in client spending, renegotiation of contract
terms, or switching of client expenditure to non-traditional
media may lead to reduced profitabihty

Pehtical Risks Such as the effects of political uncertainty,

econamic disruplions (e g sanctions) could influence both
revenue and/or cash flow streams

The Group has reviewed the controls over authonty levels
for commitments to capital expenditure and working capital
and these are deemed appropnate Cantrol processes are
monitored and exceptions reported via the Audit Committee

The Group has invested in non-traditional medra and has put
digital and social media at the heart of campaigns

The Group, and In particular, CSM, 1s involved in the delivery
of major sporting and entertainment events An assessment
of each event 1s undertaken tg ensure that potential
exposure and habilikes are reduced by advance funding

by the chent and/or by appropriate insurance For global
events (such as the FIFA World Cup or Olympics) itis ikely
that events would be delayed and rescheduled rather than
cancelled

Business environment

The Group may be exposed by changes within the wider
business environment, which may adversely impact its
Companies

For example, governments, government agencies and
Industry bodies may adopt statutes, regulations or codes of
praciice thai directly or indirectly affect Group companies
and therr current business models and strategies

Members of executive management within Companies
and Dwisions are responsible for identifying, reporting and
mitigating key risks facing their business, both in the short
and long term

Changes to the business landscape are actively idenufied
by management and where necessary, aiterations are made
o business maodels and strategies m order to suitably react
to adverse market conditions and mamtain growth

Eeasaﬂ industry compstition

The Group competes in a htghly competiive industry The
competition for new clients and additional business 15
increasingly competiive, parucularly in the current economic
climate Loss of clients and decreased business may reduce
market share and decrease profits

Increased pricing pressure from existing and new
customers

Procurement of marketing and event services face
increased pressure on pricing and increased deliverables
This may lead to a reduced margin

Group Companies continue to establish reputations in
their industnes that attract and retain clhients through the
consistent delvery of quabty creative services

The Group I1s structured mio Divisions which operate in
different industnes - from a Group perspective, this further
mitigates the nisk

The Group has increased its legal and new business
resources In order to meet the demands of clent
procurement processes Profit margin remains a key
performance inchcator for subsidiary companies and for the
Group as a whole
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A Fair Review of the Business

Principal activities and business maodel

For management purposes, the Group I1s currently orgarused
Iinto five operating segments Sport & Entertainment,
Advertising and Marketing Services, Public Relations,
Healthcare and, Insight & Engagement

Pnncipal actvities are as follows

Sport & Entertainment

The Spori & Entertainment division is the fastest growing
Sport & Entertasnment group in the world, and includes
ICON, the Essentially Group, ILUKA, Fast Track and most
recently JMI and People Marketing In the UK market, Fast
Track and Essentially are number cne and number two
respectively In the sporsorship leagues tables (Marketing
Magazine, November 2012)

Advertising and Marketing Services ['/AMS’]

The AMS dmision includes the VCCP Group and Teamspint
It possesses specialist skitls in advertising and marketing
services, direct marketing, digital communication, search
relations, pont of sale, sales promotion, data consultancy
and technical design, multmedia content, youth marketing
and experiential, marketing consulting, retail and shopper
marketing and specialist media planning and buying It also
speciahses In the niche market of financial services

Public Relations

The Good Relations Group 1s a fully integrated brand
coemmunications and CSR consultancy servicing more
than 400 clients in the UK and internationally Companies
include Corporate Citizenship, a best-in-class global CSR
consultancy, mEwdence, a market-leading and global
busmess-to-business customer advocacy agency, Good
Relations Brand Communications, one of the UK’s leading
consumer brand and B28 public relations agencies,
Harvard, a renowned technology public retations business,
and TTA Property, an award-winning property public
relations business

Insight & Engagement

The Insight & Engagement dmsion brings together some
of the country's leading msight specialists with the mast
extensive and innovative research scluttons to help their
clients to reach faster conclusions, make better decisions
and develop more informed solutions The Insight &
Engagement division 13 made up of Opinton Leader
Research, Facts International and Watermelon Research

Healthcare

Open Health, a healthcare communications and market
access group, was formed in 2011, and comprises
organically developed and acquired businesses The group
brands are Open LEC, Open Plan, Reynolds-MacKenzie,
Succinct, The Earth Works, Harvey Walsh and pH
Assaciates
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The information that fulfils the requirements of the enhanced
business review, as required by Section 417 of the
Companies Act 2006 (‘the Act’} and which form part of this
report by reference are included in the following sections of
the Annual Report

* areview of the performance and development of the

Group’s business during the year, its posiion at the year

end and Its prospects i1s set out in the Chief Executive’s

Statement, the divisional reviews and outlook and this

fair review of the business, The principal risks and

uncertainties facing the Group are described on

pages 15 to 26.

detaills of the pnncipal subsidianies are set out in

note 18, and

« the Group's use of financial iInstruments 1s set out In
note 38 of the financial statements

As a whole the Annual Report provides information about
the Group's businesses, its financial performance during

the year and likely future developments There have been no
significant changes to the Group's pnncipal trading actvities
during the year under review and the Directors are not
aware, at the date of this report, of any likely major changes
in the Group's activies in the new financial year

Cn 5 March 2014 the Group acquired 100% of The Blaze
Agency Pty Ltd, a company mcorporated in Austraha,

for bal consideration of AUD$2,000,000 (£1,073,000)
Addittonal consideration 15 payable contingent on the results
of the business, capped at the maximum of AUD$4,000,000
(£2,146,000)

Headline and statutory rasults

In this Annual Report where headline results are shown
they are prepared to provide an indication of the Group’s
underiying business performance

Annual Report and Accounts 2013 21




A Fair Review of the Business
continued

Key Performance Indicators ["KPls’)

Assets Liahiities Net assets
The Group manages its internaf operational performance Financial Position £'000 £°000 £°000
using a number of KPIs The most mportant of these are as
follows Property plant and
equipment N 8 837 o 5,8@?
Goodwill and wntangible
2013 2012 ssers 234,636 - 234536
Headtine operating profit* £258m  E25Bm |nvEStMEntS - 6.503 _ 6 6503
Reported operating profit - B48M  Cirrent assets and labilities BB 455 [93810)  [5355]
Headline aperating profit margint 15 2% 16 4% Eeﬁamad tax - 2833 - 2833
Reported operating profit margin - 31% at_her ﬁnanaal assetsd - 382 - _ 355
Diluted headhne EPS? 19 Sp 213p Lang term provisions _ (652) (652)
Diluted reported ERS {22 6p} (450)  Deferred consideration and
Headlne profit hefore tax! £25m  £254m deemed remuneration - [23884) [23884}
Reported [loss)/profit before tax £47m £25m Total before net deht 342,746 (119.003) 224632
Average fee income per chent £99,000 £91000 Net debt - [40585) [40585]
% of gperating income from clents Total as at
shared by more than one husiness in the 31 December 2013 342 746 [159588) 184,047
Group 88% B8% Total as at
% of operating income from 31 December 2012 260,223 (103627) 156,596
overseas offices 19% 12%

l1he appendix ta this report includes a reconcikation of these headling numbers to
the reported numbers The headiine numbers adjust for the following

All numbers and commenis shown in this sectian aré headling unless otherwise
stated The appendix to thes annauncement shows a reconciliation of these headhne
numbers to the reporied numbers The headline numbers adjust, for the following

+ Deemed remuneration charge add back in respect of the change In aceounting
pahcy for earn-out payments including LLP capital based payments

= Add back of charges ta the iIncome statement in respect of amortisaton of
ntangible assets impairment of gogdwill [see note B] and costs relating to
aTUIsSon and 1estructunng

* Discontinued busimess that does not meet the defimtion of drscontinued gperations
under the accounting standard This related to the geopeliucal business within Befl
Pattinger and our disposal of MMK

Operating profit, profit before tax and earnings per share
Headline operating profit' in ing with 2012 to £25 8 million
(2012 £25 8 mulhon} and headline profit before tax!
decreased by 2% to £25 million (2012 £25 4 million)
Headline diluted earnings per share' decreased from 21 3p
in 2012 to 19 5p n 2013,

Reported operating profit decreased lo £19,000 (2012

£4 9 millton) and reported loss before tax increased to

£4 7 midlion {2012 Profit of £2 5 milion) Reported loss per
share increased to (12 6p) from (4 5p) In 2012
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Deferred consideration and daemed remuneration
The estimated earn-puts (which include consideration
treated as deemed remuneration) payable in 2014 total
£8 6 million and are payable £5 2 million 1 cash or loan
notes and £3 4 million in shares

Details of the maximum amounts payable are included In
notes 28 and 29 to the financial statements

Cash flow and hanking arrangements

Net debt at 31 December 2013 was £40 6 muilion compared
to £4 2 mithion cash at 31 December 2012 Net bank debt

at 31 December was £39 8 milion compared to £4 2 million
cash at 31 December 2012

On August 2012 the Company entered into a £45m muilti-
currency revolving credit facility with RBS and on 13 June
2013 HSBC was joined to the facihity as an additional lender
0On 24 October 2013, HSBC's commitment under the facility
exlended to £E45m, increasing the total commitment under
the faciity to £95m This runs until September 2016, with an
mierest rate of between 1 75% and 2 75%, depending on
use of facility compared o EBITDA

Capital expenditure and investment

Total capital expenditure for 2013 was £6 1 milhon (2012

£3 1 milion) The main categories of investment was fixiures,
fitings and computers (£3 3million)




A Fair Review of the Business
continued

The bi-annual sports cycle

A significant proportion of our business is now In sports
marketing and major events such as the Olympics and

the FiFA Waorld Cup take place in ‘even’ numbered years
This results in an increased vaniance in the level of income
opportunities Our other businesses 1n advertising and
marketing services, public relations, healthcare and insight
and engagement partially moderate this effect

tn 2013, Chuime acquired JMI, the leading motorsports
marketing specialist with a foundation in the USA and
worldwide cperations centred addihonally in London and
Hong Kong Formula 1, NASCAR and IndyCar have annual
seasens which will further help smooth any disparity
between even and odd numbered years JMI also gives
CSM a majar foothold in North Amenca, the world’s largest
sports market

Procurement

The Group operates a divisional procurement function which
Is co-ordinated from the Group centre This utiises the power
of the Group to ensure that all businesses buy matenals and
services as cost eifecuvely as possible

Pansions

All the Group's employess are entitled 1o coninbuie to the
Group's penston scheme or lo personal pension schemes
These are defined contribution schemes

Taxation
The effective tax rate for 2013 was 26% compared to 28%
for 2012

The effective tax rale excludes amortisatton of intangibles,

impairment of goodwill, wnte down of investments, costs of
acguisitions and deemed remuneration, none of which are

tax deductible

The rate 1s expected to continue to reduce In future years
particularly as the Group pays the majonty of its tax in the
UK where the rate of corporation tax continues to fall

Finance costs

Finance costs net of interest receivable were £1 6 million
In addiion there was a charge of £0 7 mithion n relation 1o
the finance cost of deferred consideration and deemed
remuneralion

Treasury policy
The Group's treasury policy 1s detalled in note 38 to the
financial statemenis

Capital structure

The Group 1s financed primarly through equity but has
available credit facilities as detaled above

Overview and Highlights

Strategy and Qutlook
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Financial Statements

Going concern basis

The Group meets 1ts day to day working capital requirements
through a £95 millien rolling overdraft faciity and a
committed taciity which matures in September 2016

In prepanng forecasts the Directors have taken into account
the foltlowing key factors

= the rate of growth of the UK and global economy on the
Group's business dunng the econamic recavery,

key client account renewals,

+ planned acquisittons and disposals,

anticipated payments under deemed remuneration and
deferred and contingent consideration,

the level of committed and vanable costs, and

current new business targets compared to levels achieved
IN previous years

The Group's forecasts and projections, taking account of
reasonably possible changes in trading performance, show
that the Group should be able to operate within the leve! of
its current faciity and banking covenants

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Company and the Group have adequate resources to
continue in operabenal exisience for the foreseeable future
Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting i prepanng the annual financial statements

Mere detall on the Group's cash position and faciities at

31 December 2013 as well as maturities of the financial
llabilities, can be found in note 38 to the financial statements
The principal nsks and uncertainties faced by the Group are
included in the Directors’ Report on pages 30 to 32 Details
of potential contingent liabiliies and potential cash outflows
In refation to these habilities can be found In note 34

Approval
This report was approved by the Board of Directors and
signed on its behalf by

Robert Davison
Group Secretary
26 March 2014
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A Fair Review of the Business

continued

RECONCILIATION OF HEADLINE TO REPORTED NUMBERS

Raeconciliation of Incaome Statement to headline results for the ysar ended 31 December 2013
The reconciliation below sets out the headhine results of the group and the related adjustments to the reported Income
Statement that the Directors consider necessary In order to provide an indication of the underlying trading performance

Statutory Incorne

Headline Adjustments Statement
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£°000 £°000 £'000 £°000 £°000 £°000
Cantinuing oparations
Revenue 298 485 323681 701 14,553 299186 344234

Cast of sales
Operatmg mcoms
Operating expenses

 [1e8971) [172838]

(86)  [11B06) [129,057)  [1B4 4u4)

169,514

156,843 615

2,847

170,128

159,790

___[143,674) (131,051)  [26.436) _ [(23,845) (170.110) [(154,897)

[Deemed remuneration 7800 11273 _I
| Loss/[profit) on business being drscontinued 293 1,077 |
, Amortisation of acquired intangibles and gendwill |
impairment 5281 2,944 '
| Costs of acquisitions and restructuring - _ 12,487 5805 . {
Dperating profit 25,840 25,792 (25,821) (20,899)] 19 4,893
Other gains and losses - - [3225) {1.6877] [3,225] [1677)
Share of results of assooiates 1053 611 (361} (51} 6492 560
Investment income 66 e7 - - 66 27
Finance costs [1.637] [664) - - [1637) [664)]
Finance cost of deferred consideration (308} [325] - - [308) (329
Finance caost of deemed remuneration - - (345 _ [270) [345)  _ _[270]}
Profit before tax 25,013 25.441 [29,752) (22.897) [(4.739) 2,544
Tax _(501] (70801 2072 1890 (4429] {5200}
Profit for the period from continuing cperations 18,512 18,351 [27.680) (21,007) (9.168) [2.856)
Discontinued operations
Profit/(lass] from discantinued aperatans _ [34d24} 938 3428 _ 1852 - 2790
Profit for the period 15,084 19,289  [24,252]) [19.155) (9,168) 134
Attributable to
Eguity halders of the parent 13,421 17878 (ea 252] [19,159) {10,831} (1278)
Minority nterest o _ 1863 1410 - - 1663 1,410
15,084 19,289 [24 252] {19,155) [9,188] 134
Earnings per share
From continuing and discentinued aperations
Basic 1565p 22 25p [1263p]) [159p]
Oduted 15 50p 21 86p [1263p} {158p]
From continuing operotions
Basic 19 65p 21 65p [1263p] (447p]
Ouuted 19 47p 21237p [1263p] {447

Headline figures are presented with the exit of the MMK - Good Relations Group GmbH and Conduit Marketing Limited
businesses classed as discontinued operations
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_Financ:al Statements

Raconcihiation of businass segments to adjusted results for the year ended 31 Becember 2013

Reported Segmental

Headline Operating Note
Income Adjustments Operating Income
2013 2021 2013 2012 2013 2012
£'000 £'000 £'000 £°'000 £°000 £'000
Sport & Entertainment . 55,576 65,942 “ - 55576 65,942
Advertising and Marketing Services 65601 54,255 206 58 65807 54,313
Public Relations 20819 18,186 409 2888 21,228 21075
Healthcare 18,451 10852 - - 18 451 10,852
Insight & Engagement o 9067 7608 - _ - _ _ 8087 7,608
169,514 156,843 615 2,947 170,129 159,780
Headline Operating
Profit Adjustments Operating Profit
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£°000 £°000 £°000 £'000 £°000 £'000
Sport & Entertainment 10,036 15,759 {19,537) (15,320) (9,501) 439
Adveruising and Marketing Services 8,019 4,486 (3,782) (516) 4 237 3,970
Public Relations 2,087 1,887 (728) (1.085) 1.359 802
Healthcare 3,866 2,259 (1.267) (826) 2,599 1,433
Insight & Engagement S 2,826 2,193 (159) (68) 2,667 2,125
26,834 26,584 [25.,473] [17,815) 1,361 8,769
Unallocated corporate expenses o _[(984)  _ [792] (348]__ _(3.084]  [1342]  [3.876]
Operating profit o 25,840 257892  (25.,821)  (20.899) 19 4,893
Other gains and losses - - {3.229) 1677] {3.225] (1677
Share of results of assocrales 1,053 611 (361] [51] 692 560
Investment income 66 e7 - - 66 27
Finance costs (1637 [664) - - [1637) (664]
Finance cost of deferred consderation {309) [325) - - [309) [325)
Finance cost of deemed remuneration - - (345]_ [270) (345) (270)
Profitheforetax 25,013 25441  (29,752)  ([22,897) [4.739) 2,544
Headline Qperating Operating Profit
Profit Margin Margin
2013 2012 2013 2012
% % % %
Sport & Entertainment 181% 239% [171%]) 07%
Advertising and Marketing Services 12 2% B 3% 6 4% 73%
Public Relations 100% 10 4% 64% 38%
Healthcare 210% 20 8% 141% 132%
Insight & Engagement 312% 28 B% 29 4% 279%
. 15 8% 16 9% 08% 55%
Unallocated corporate expenses _ - - -
15 2% 16 4% 00% 31%

Headhne figures are presented with the exit of the MMK — Good Relations Group GmbH and Conduit Marketing Limited

businesses classed as discentinued operations

Annual Report and Accounts 2013 25




Our Performance as a Responsible and Sustainable Business

ETHICS AND INTEGRITY

Qur vaiues

Chime I1s a group of companies with a diverse range of
cultures across its subsidiary businesses The Group sets
standards of behaviour which it expects the companies

to meet rrespective of ther market, thew commurication
discipling, or therr culture Our core values are the foundation
of our standards

Cur values are expressed and find meaning through the way
we behave and the responsibihibies we accept towards our
shareholders, customers, colleagues, and the communities
we serve

We have adoptled a new description of our values SCORE

* Social - Reinforcing our view that groups wark where
collaboration 1s second nature, where there 1s a mutual
understanding, respect and trust

Curtous — Curiosity ieads to conttnuous guestioning,
learning and understanding Innovation drives our
development into new markets, and via new ideas and
new technologies

Open - Open minds fead to better ideas and better
relationships An awareness of others and our operating
envirgnments will enhance our business, keep it agile and
flexible to meet a diverse range of challenges
Responsible - We should be a force for good in the way
we do business Itis nght to act ethically, responsibly and
with consideration t¢ all our stakeholders It 1s also good
business

Entrepreneunal - A ‘can do' approach that encourages
innovation, lugh standards and drives new ventures

Ethics

Chime companies manage reputations of brands,
individuals, commerctal and governing organisations We
recognise that reputations are made on how you act, not
Just what you say, but what you do, and how you do it The
Group sets standards of behaviour for companies 1o meet
but does not prescribe the process of compliance allowing
processes to be embedded within the many cultures found
in the Group

This ensures we meet all relevant faws, regulations and
codes of practice 1ssued by any government or appropnale
regulator in the markets in which we operate In addifion, we
recognrise that integnty 1s essential to the maintenance of
our own reputalton in the markeiplace As part of our regular
review process, Issues of conduct are identified, reviewed
and the Board 1s alerted as appropriate

Our Code of Conduct (see below) formalises the values,
behaviour and ethical standards expected of Chime
employees
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Anti-corruption

QOur Code of Conduct covers honest business practice and
prohibits the offenng, payment or solicitation of bnbes or
inducements

The Group reviewed and developed additional format
anti-corruption measures following the enactment of the
Brnbery Act 2010 1n the UK Whilst we are a UK business
our operations are international and our aim 15 to dernve
more of our Income from outside of the UK Qur standards
of anti-corruption measures apply to all of our businesses
rrespective of where they are based or operate

The Board acknowledges its responsibihty for maintaining
appropriate and clear procedures within Chime's operations
to prevent corruption We shall continue to use the Bnbery
Act as 2 mimnimum benchmark for ethical trading with, and on
behalf of, our clients and partners

Where additional measures are required, by virtue of
workmg in new markets, for clients who have specific
requirements or, due {o our operattons engaging in new
disciplines, the Group will adapt the chosen procedures to
meet those needs as they arise

The divisional and subsidiary management teams will
continue to promote our $tandards and make staff aware of
the consequences of non-compliance

Code of Conduct
Chime's Code of Conduct applies to all staff covering

chent and company confidentiality,

equal opportunities and the promotion of a mentocracy,
a safe and cwilised workplace,

proper consideration of the sensitivities of potental
audiences when publishing matenals,

honest business praclice and integnty, and

compliance with all laws and regulaticns

The Code of Conduct remains under review In order that it
may be adapted as market forces and legal requirements
demand or as additional nsks are identified Whilst it1s broad
itis designed along with our guiding values to be embedded
within our diverse range of operating cullures across our
dwvisions and subsidiaries Our nsk management processes
Include testing of these areas and ensures that the Code of
Conduct 1s communicated on the induction of new staff




Health and safety

We are a people business and, due lo the nature of our
work, the majonty of our siaff are office based However, our
businesses Icon and McKenzie Clark include operations with
g relatively small amount of manufactunng activity We also
now have a higher proportion of man days spent at events
on location which brings an additional tevel and a varnance
in our heaith and safety nisk profile These developments
have been acknowledged and addressed 1n our updated
procedures Qur aim S ta maximise the wellbewng of our
people and those we interact with As such, the nisk, and
hustenical incidence of accidents 1s low

Thus 15 an on-going process and the nisk assessment of new
developments or increases in activiies with a higher level of
risk, 1s embedded into our review process

We take our duty of care seriously and have retained
consultants, Safety Exchange Lid, who provide nat only
guidance on identificatron and assessment of hazards but
also practical support such as carrying out rsk assessments
for events and other activities

Whistleblowing

The Group has a clear, writlten whistleblowing policy and
procedure avallable to all staff regarding concerns of
empioyees about ethical behaviour and noncompliance with
cur own standards, regulatory requirements and/or the law
The Group has a confidential helpline, run by an external
third party, EXPOLINK, in order that staff can report any
concerns or perceived shortcomings within our operations
to an unbiased third party

Conflicts of interest

The Group has a process for dentfying potential confiicts
of interests which may exist for executives, staff, chents and
supphers We believe that this is an important pari of our
ethical stance and acting in a transparent manner

Corporate respansibility

The Board believes that acting responsibly should underpin
everythung that we do The Group is therefare commuiited to
demonstrating the importance of this, not only in our work for
chents, but tn our own working practices

We are In the business of managing brands and
corporate reputations on behalf of clients and the Board
acknowledges that being socially responsible 1s an
mpartant factor in the managemant of aur own business

We have a continuing and embedded programme to
induct, brief and train our staff to ensure our efforts
permeate throughout our Group Our process design wilt
always include assessment of our impacts but also our
opportunities In socially responsible operations

Overview and H:gr;nghts
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The Board and Audit Commuttee receive regular updates

on our corporale responsibility inttiatives and performance
The Chief Executive, Christopher Satterthwaite, personally
oversees our continuing efforts in this important area of our
business Regular consideration 1s given to the significance
of social, environmental and ethical (SEE) i1ssues (as defined
by the Association of British Insurers), and as part of our
wider operational rnisk framework, identifies significant risks
ansing from these areas to short-term and long-term value

The Group also considers corporate responsibility to be
an area of business opporturity Our subsidiary, Corporate
Citizenship, provides not only a focus for our investment in
this field but provides the Group with specialist expertise

Measurement of performance

The Company measures the performance of each of iis
businesses against a benchmark list of mimimum corporate
responsibility standards These cover

* promoting good environmental practices — both in our own
operations and to our wider stakeholders,

« empowenng community work — the promotion of
volunteering and charity work by our staff and companies
alke, and

« young people — via our internship, work expenence and
graduate schemes

The standards are designed 1o be stretching and, as such,
encourage continual improvement in these important areas
The minimum standards continue to be developed to ensure
consistent improvement

Performance agarmst the standards 1s measured annually
and the results are communicated to each operating
business unit Areas of potential mprovement are addressed
and successful best practice i1s identified and communicated
across the Group

We continue to report our corporate responsibility
performance to our stakeholders via our website We detall
not anly the principles aof aur approach, qur targets and
our performance but alse give examples of the inthiatives
undertaken

External recognition

The Company continues to be listed on the FTSE4Good
Index, which evaluates compantes’ performance on a
number of corporate responsibility and governance cnteria
(including anti-corruption measures, enviranmental impact,
business ethics, board governance and nsk identification)
Chime s also a Carbon Trust Standard Bearer The Standard
recognises companies with a continuing commitment to
improving environmental performance Chime was the 400th
company, and the first marketing communications group, to
recemve this important accreditation Chime also holds a Brg
Tick award from Business in the Commurity (our fourth) for
our environmental performance
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Our Performance as a Responsible and Sustainable Business

continued

The environment

We do acknowledge that our customers, staff and

other stakeholders have an interest in our iImpact on the
environment and as such we have commutted to monitor and
improve our envirgnmental performance where possible

The Group has continually reduced its carbon footprint since
becoming Carbon Neutral in 2007 Our ermssions data 1s
shown below We continue to consider and enhance the
environmental impact of our businesses and are working
ciosely with our major supphers to ensure best practice 1s
embedded in our wider operattons We regularly incorporate
our environmenial performance n business preseniations as
we believe this 1s an important consideration when evaluating
reputation both for our companies and our clients alike

Whitst Chime has expanded to a number of iniernatucnal
locations, our operations remain predomnantly in the UK We
deliver services to chents based on image, ideas, research,
content and event execution As such, our direct and indtrect
impact on the environment 1s minimal and considered
relatively low-risk Our internaticnal expansion has incrgased
our use of air travel and we continue 1o monitor tms Cur
deployment of additional video conferencing facilities

and improved collaboration tools will help to keep this to a
minmum Qur revised travel policy and our consohdation

to one travel management partner will alsc help us better
undersiand and control our trave! pattern and the resulting
environmental impact from our continued growth

Enviranmental perfermance
Summary greenhouse gas emissions data for 2013

Carbon neutral

We have been carbon neutral since 2006, buying carbon
offsets for those emissions that we could not avoid However,
we now have an embedded programme of carbon emission
reductions, per full ime employee, In a penod of growth

We believe the investment in carbon offsets would be better
made n further improving our carbon reduchions, our workn
the community and with young people We intend to report
to shargholders on this on the levels, type and projects
assisted in our CSR Report in 2014

Methodology for footprint calculation

We have reported on all of the emission sources required
under the Companies Acit 2006 (Strategic Report and
Directors’ Reports) Regutations 2013 These sources fall
within our consolidated financial staternent We do not have
responsibility for any ermssion sources that are nol included
in our consalidated statement

We have used the GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting
and Reporting Standard (revised edition) and ermission
factors from UK Government's GHG Conversion Faciors for
Company Reporting 2014

The emissions reported here for 2010 and 2011 have been
verified by the Carbon Trust resulting in Chime holding the
Carpon Trust Standard We will undergo the same venfication
process for years 2012 and 2013 1n the coming months

Since 2010 Chime has reported performance using the
previous year as a roling baseline

Global tonnes of CO,e

Emissions data for penod 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013 2010 2011 2012 2013
Scope 1 Gas o 180 186 226 255
Flest vehicles and refrigerant gas losses 33 80 48 35
Scope 2 Electnoity 1143 420 1,708 1,144
Scope 3 Arr travel o L 1853 121 1476 2040
Other business refated travel o er7 185 277 335
Waste and deliveres B 25 lelf 43 36
Total emissions 3.611 3,524 3,779 3.844
Reductions year on year per full time employee 6% 12 2% 10 2% 416%
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Performance
Our emissions have risen by 0 02% from 2012 but have fallen
by 4 6% per full ime employee

The slowing of our progress in 2013 can be attributed to
the growth in our business travei (which in turn 1s driven

by our international expansion) and energy consumetion
through the cold winter of 2012413 affecting our energy use
However, our data colleclion process has improved, and
this will enable a mere detailed analysis of the source of
emussions [n turn, this will help target reductions through
2014 and beyond Together with the high level of employee
engagement we are confident of a further reduction in our
emissions in the future For 2014 we have set a target of a
further 5% emtssions per full time employee

Human rights

Our policies and Code of Conduct set out clear standards
of behaviour we expect from all our staff Our values
underpin our attitude 1o appropnate responsible and ethicat
interaction with all our stakeholders Including our clients,
suppliers and employees

Overview and Highlghts
Strategy and Outlook
Govemance _
Dreclors Remuneraton Report
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We adhere to the principles of the Umted Nations {UN)
Global Compact which encourages companies 1o make
human rights, labour standards, environmental responsibility
and anti-corruption part of thewr business agenda

We continue to engage with the communities in which we
operate and where possible, contribuie to their well-bemng

Woe support the nights of all peaple as set out in the Uriversal

GHG emissions by indicator

Waste refrigerants

\ and deliveries 1%
Other business travel 9%

GHG emissions by division

- CIE5%
N——— OpenHealth 4%

Declaration of Human Rights and the International Labour
Organisation's Fundamental Conventions on Core Standards

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf of

Robert Davison
Group Secretary
26 March 2014
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Director’s Report

The Directors present their annual report and the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
The Corperate Governance Statement set out on pages 38
to 52 forms part of this report

Results and dividends

The Group's Income statement 1s set out on page 80 and
shows a loss before tax for 2013 of £4,739,000 (2012 profit
befare tax of £2,544,000) The Owectors recammend the
payment of a final dmidend of 5 14p per ordinary share

to be paid on 13 June 2014 to those shareholders on the
register at 23 May which together with the intenm dividend
paid on 11 October 2013 of 2 20p per share makes a totat
of 7 34p per share for the year (2012 7 24p per share)

Dwvidends are recognised In the accounts in the year they
are paid, ar in the case of a final dividend when approved
by sharehalders, such that the amaunt recognised In the
213 accounts compnses 2012’s final dividend and 2013’s
interim dividend

Dmwidends and other payments

The Company may by ordinary resolution from ume to

time declare dividends in accordance with the nights of

the members subject to the provisions of the Companies
Acts and provided that the dividend does not exceed the
amount recommended by the Board of Directors The Board
may pay intenm dividends In such amount as the Board
considers justified by the financial position of the Company

Directors and thair interests

The names of the Directors are set out on pages 33 1o

34, which include brief biographical detalls There were a
number of changes to the Board dunng 2013 See page 39

The Directors’ interests 1n the shares of Chime
Communications plc together with details refating to
Birectors’ remuneration, share options, long-term incentives
are given as part of the Report on Directors' Remuneration

Other than descnbed in the Report on Directors’
Remuneration no Director of the Company has, or had
during the year, any interests in the shares of other Group
companigs of in any transactions which were unusual In therwr
nature or were significant to the Company’s business

Directors’ indemnities

As at the date of this report, indemnities are in force under
which the Company has agreed to indemnify the Directors,
to the extent permitied by law and Company's articles of
association, in respect of all losses ansing out of, or In
connection with, the execution of their powers, duties and
responsibilities, as Directors of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries There I1s no agreement in place between the
Company and its Directors and employees providing for
compensation for loss of office of employment (whether
through resignation, purported redundancy or otherwise}
that occurs because of a takeover bid

The Company has purchased and maintatns Directors' and
Officers’ insurance cover against legal labiies and costs
for claims in connection with any act or omission by its
Directors or Officers In the execution of therr duties

Donations
During the year the Group donated £27,562 (2012 £49,436)
for charitable purposes

The Group's policy s not to make direct donations to
suppart poliical parties However, the nature of the Group's
wark is such that to support its commercial activities,
certarn companies within the Group may need to attend or
sponsor events which are erganised by poltical partres or
other pohtical organisations, for which a charge 1s made

in addition, the Group may invrte clients and prospective
clients to attend events which fall within the meaning of the
Companies Act 2008 provisions The Companes Act 2006
defines 'political party’, 'political organisations’, ‘political
donation’ and ‘pohitical expenditure’ widely and as a result,
it 1s possible that poliical organisations may include bodies
concerned with matters such as policy review and law
reform, or the representation of the business community

or sections of it, or the representation of other communities
or special Interest groups

During the year and adopting this wider definition, the Group
did not make any donations deemed to be political donations
(2012 £5,500) The political donations in 2012 were made
by the Bell Pottinger Businesses in the 6 manths prior to the
disposal on 30 June 2012

In line with recommendations made by the Association
of Bribish Insurers, the Board intends 1o seek an annual
authority to make donations or incur expenditure of a
poliical nature

Creditor payment terms

The Group's policy on suppliers 1s that they will be paid in
accordance with agreed terms and conditions of trade on
a regular basis

The number of days ouistanding between receipt of invoices
and date of payment, calculated by reference to the amount
owed to trade creditors at the year-end as a proportion

of the amounts invoiced by suppliers during the year, 1s
disclosed In note 25

Add:tional information far sharehalders

The following nformation, which summanses cartain
provisions of the current articles and association of Chime
Communications plc (‘the Articles’) and applicable English
law concerning companies (the Companies Act 1985 and
the Companies Act 2006, together ‘the Companies Acts”),
15 required to be provided to shareholders as a result of the
implementation of the European Directive on Takeover bids
{2004/25/EC) into English Law The current Articles were
adopted by the Company at the Annual General Meeting
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on 12 May 2010 This IS a summary only and the relevant
provisions of the Articles and the Companies Acts should be
consulted if further information 1s required

Share capital

As at 31 December 2013 the Company's 1ssued share
capital comprised 98,116,120 ordinary shares with a
nominal value of 25 pence each As at 25 March 2014, the
Company's Issued share capital compnsed 98,350,178
ordinary shares Details of the issued share capital, logether
with movements in the 1ssued share capital dunng the year,
are shown in note 31 of the accounts on page 122

Rights and abligations attaching to shares

The nghts attaching to the Company's ordinary shares,
being the only share class of the Company, are set outin
the Articles Subject to the Companies Acis and applicable
law, shares may be 1ssued with such nights and restrictions
as the Company may by ordinary resolution decide, orif no
such resolution 1 1in effect or such resolution does not make
specific provision as the Board may determine There i1s
currently no such applicable resolution in effect

Voting rights

Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to attend and speak
at general meetings of the Company On a show of hands
every holder of ordinary shares who Is present in person
shall have one vote On a poll every holder of ordinary
shares present in person shall have one vote for every share
of which he 1s the holder Votes may be exercised in person
or by proxy Every notice of general meeting of the Company
shall specify the deadhnes in relation to the exercise of
voting nghts in respect of each resolution proposed at such
meeting Electroric and paper proxy appointmenis must be
recerved no later than 48 hours before the general meeting,
provided that at an adjournment of a meeting the proxy form
must be received not later than 24 hours before the date of
the adjourned meeting

No holder of ordinary shares may attend or vote {(whether In
person or by proxy) nor exercise any other nght conferred
by being a holder of ordinary shares, unless all calls or
other sums presently payable by the holder of such ordinary
shares have been paid A holder of ordinary shares may
lose the entitlernent to vote at a general meeting where that
heolder has falled to respond to a disclosure nolice made by
the Company under the Companies Acts with information
concerning nterests held in those shares

Vartation of rights

The Company may resolve by the consent of not less than
75% i nominal value of the 1ssued shares of the Company,
and subject to the Companies Acts, ta vary all or any of the
rights attaching to the shares of the Company
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Restriction on transfer of shares

The Directors may refuse, provided such refusal does

not prevent dealings In the shares of the Company from
taking place 0 an open and proper manner or where the
Company has a hen over such shares, to register a transfer
of certificated shares which are not fully paid, or where the
instrument of transfer has not been correctly stamped and
ledged at the place designated by the Board accompanied
by the certificate of shares and such other evidence of

title as may be reasonably required to show the nght of the
transferor to make the transfer The Directors may also refuse
to regisier a transfer unless 1t s to a person whois i) not a
minor, (1) @ bankrupt, (1} 1s subject to an order made on the
grounds of some mental or other Incapacity that prevents
management of their own affaws, (iv) the transfer is i favour
of not more than four transferees, and (v) the instrument of
transfer i1s In respect of one class of shares only

Transfers of uncertificated shares of the Company may be
made using the CREST systemn and the Direclors may refuse
a transfer of shares In accordance with the rules governing
the operation of the CREST system

Significant direct or indirect holdings of secunties and
special rights

The heldings of shares of the Company by the Directors are
notified on page 71 Significant holdings in the shares of the
Company are notified on page 32 Under the subscription
agreement between the Company and WPP of 1997, WPP
has the nght to appoint two non-executive directors of the
Company provided it holds not less than 20% of the shares
of the Company and the nght to appoint one non-executive
director provided it holds not less than 12 5% of the shares
of the Campany There are na other holdings of shares of
the Company In which there are special nghts

Acquisition of the Company’s own sharas

The Company may purchase its own shares in accordance
with the relevant provisions of the Companies Acts, subject
to the resolution of the shareholders Shares purchased by
the Company may be held in treasury or should, if not held
In treasury, be cancelled immediately thus reducing the
1ssued share capitat of the Company

At the end of the year, the Directors had authonty, under

the shareholders’ resolution issued on 15 May 2013, to
purchase through the market 8,514,329 of the Company's
own ordinary shares at pnces not less than 25p per ordinary
share and not more than five per cent above the average of
the middle market quotations as denved from the London
Stock Exchange Daily Official List Thus authonty will last until
the conclusion of the next AGM Please refer to note 31 for
all such purchases of shares dunng the year
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Director’s Report
continued

Employee share trust
The Company operates a number of schemes in order to
incentivise the employees of the Company

Shares are held by a trustee n order to satisfy the
entitlements of employees under the Group's share schemes
other than those that are satisfied by the 1ssue of new

shares The shares held by the trustee do not have any
special rights with regard to the control of the Company

The rights attaching to the shares held by the trustee are
generally not exercisable by the relevant employees except
where the interest s held beneficially by them Further
details on the share schemes may be found on pages 126
and 129

Amendment te the Articles

Amendment to the Articles may be made by spectal resolution
of the Company in general meeting 1n accordance with the
Companies Acts

Powaers of the Diractors

The Direclors of the Company may exercise all the powers
of the Company as set out In the Articles including the
power to borrow money, to mortgage or charge the assets
and property of the Company, to 1ssue secunties and to give
securities for any debt or llability of the Company or any thurd
party The Board of Directars exercising such powers shall
manage the business of the Company The Company may
also authonse the Directors to 1ssue, Increase, consaolidate,
sub-divide and cancel shares by ordinary resclution and in
accordance with the relevant Artictes and fegislation

Substantial interests
At 31 December 2013 the following interests in 3% or more
of the ssued share capial had been notified to the Company

% of

Number of ordinary

ordinary share

shares capital

WPP Graup pic 17,330 000 1766

Fidelity 12233691 1247

JPMargan Asset Management 6067828 618

Aberfarth Partners 5531708 564

Brandes Investment Partners 5332050 543

Legal 5 General Investment Manage- 3,952 718 403
ment

F&C Asset Management 3634,731 370

Significant agreements

The Company has a £90m multi-currency revolving credit
faciity with RBS and HSBC The Directors confirm there are
no other contractuat or other arrangements between the
Group and any persen which are essential to the business
of the company
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Employse engagement

We recognise that having a diverse, motivated and
organised workforce that 1s engaged with the overall strategy
of the Group enhances the delivery of our goais

We therefore place considerable value on the mvolvement
of our employees and continue to keep them informed

and, where appropriate, consult with them on matters
affecting them as employees and on factors affecting the
performance of the Group This 15 achieved principally via
the Group’s collaborative platform, ‘Bounce’, by e-mail and
via formal and informal functions In addition, our personal
development programmes, the Saving Related Share Option
Scheme and other incentive schemes encourage employees
at all levels to contribute to the achievement of the Group's
short and long-term goals

Diversity
Qur Dwversity Policy and related disclosures can be found
on page 42 of the Corporate Governance Report

Greanhouse Gas Emissions reporting

We have followed the UK Government's guidance, published
by Defra in September 2009, on how to measure and report
greenhouse gas emissions Information about greenhouse
gas erssons by the Group and our wider impact an the
environment can be found on page 28

Auditors
Each of the persons who 1s a Direclor at the date of
approval of this report confirms that

+ so far as the Director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit
information of which the Group's auditors are unaware,
and

* the Director has taken all the steps that hefshe ought to
have taken as a Director in order to make himself/herself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish
that the company's audiitors are aware of that information

This conftrmation 1s given and should be interpreted in
accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies
Act 2006

Delaitte LLP have expressed their willingness to continue
In office as auditors and a resolution to reappoint them waill
be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf
of the Board

Robert Davison
Group Secretary
26 March 2014




Board of Directors

The Board of Directors 1s responsible for overall strategy,
acquisitions, resgurcing and the consideration of significant
financial matters It meets four ttmes annually and
additionally as required It reviews the strategic direction of
the Group's trading companies, their annual budgets and
their progress iowards achievement of agreed targets It

ts also responsible for the integrity of financial information
and ensunng the financial controls and the systems of
identification and management of risk, both financiat and
non-financial, are robust and appropriate The Board

has three standing commiitees the Audit Committee, the
Nominations Commitiee and the Remuneration Committee

Lord Davies of Abersoch, CBE, aged 61 - Chairman

Lord Davies 1s a Partner and Vice Chairman of Corsarr
Capital, a private equity firm specialising in financial
services He is a Director of Diageo pic and Charman of
Jack Wills Ltd He has a wide range of interests, including
being Chairman of the Royal Academy of Arts Trustees, and
Chairman of the Garden Bridge Trust He was Minuster for
Trade, Investment, Small Business and Infrastructure from
January 2003 untl May 2010

Prior to that, he was Chairman and prewviously CEQ, and
served on the Board of Standard Chartered for over
12 years

He was awarded a CBE for tus services to the financial
sector and the community in Hong Kong 1in June 2002 where
he served as a member of the HK Exchange fund for seven
years Lord Davies 15 also a JP in Hong Kong

Lord Davies 1s marned with two chiidren and 1s a fluent
Welsh speaker

Christopher Satterthwaite, aged 57 - Chief Executive
Christopher began his commercial career as a graduate
trainge at H J Heinz Since then, he has been part of three
diifferent kinds of marketing communication agencies

IMP (1981-1993), then the UK's largest Sales Promotion
Business, HHCL & Partners (1993-2000) - Campaign's
Advertising Agency of the Decade and, Bell Pottinger
{2000-2002) - the UK’s leading Public Relations agency
He became Chief Executive of Chime in 2003

He s Senior Independent Director of Centaur Media,
Chairman of The Roundhouse, a Dwector of Business inthe
Community and a member of the Government’s Professtonal
and Business Services Group
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Mark Smith, aged 58 - Chief Operating Officer and
Finance Director

Mark has been Finance Director of Chime since it was
formed in 1989 and has been responsible for all corporate
transactions and the financial control of the Company

since that time  This included the flotation through a reverse
takeover in 1994 He was appointed Chief Operating Officer
wn addition 10 Finance Director in January 2011

Mark has been a Chartered Accouniant since 1978,
having quahfied with Touche Ross & Co {now Deloitte LLP)
Following two years as European Finance Director at RCA
Records, he joined Good Relations Group plc in 1984 and
became its Group Finance Director in 1985 In 1986 he
became Finance Director of Lowe Bell Communications
(now the Betl Pottinger) which formed the onginal base for
Chime Communications

Rodger Hughes, aged 65 - Ssmor Non-Executive Director
Rodger 1s a Chartered Accountant who was a partner

n PricewaterhouseCoopers for 25 years, including four
years as Managing Pariner and seven years as Head of

the Assurance Practice He has had extensive experence
adwising a wide range of ¢clients on business issues and
was for some years the firm’s advertising industry leader He
was, until 2007, Auditor to the Duchy of Cornwall Rodger

IS @ non-executive member of the board of Simmons and
Simmons, the international law firm and a Non-Executive
Dwector of National Counties Building Soclety He was a
member of the Steerng Board of Companies House uniil

31 December 2010 and a Non-Executive Director of Friends
Provident plc until its takeover in [ate 2009

Clara Gilmartin, aged 38 -~ Non-Executive Director
Clare was appointed as a Director of Chime on
18 Seplember 2013

Clare spent 10 years growing eBay in Europe, most recently
responsible for the general management for eBay UK

and Greater Europe Her time in that role saw a period

of exceptional growth for the brand and included the
successful move to its mobile platforms Prior to her ten
years at eBay her career was in consultancy focused on
consumer goods and retail
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Board of Directors
continued

Martin Glenn, aged 53 - Non-Executive Director
Martin was appointed as a Director of Chime on
22 August 2013

Martin 1s CEQ of United Biscuits, 2 UK based business with
a wide international presence

Martin was CEO of Iglo Frozen Food between 2006 and
2013 and between 1892 and 2006 worked for Pepsico UK
and Ireland where he was Company President He was

a Non-Executive Director of Leicester City Footbah Ciuby
between 2002 and 2006

Vin Murna, aged 51 ~ Nan-Executive Director
Vin was appointed as a Director of Chime on
22 August 2013

Vin has 25 years' expertence of working with private
equity-backed and publicly isted companies focusing on
the software sector She 1s CEO of Advanced Computer
Software Group Plc a £600m market capitaiised company
which she founded In August 2008 She was formerly
Chief Executive Officer of Computer Software Group Plc,
which she took private in Apnl 2007, and subsequently
undertook a merger and exu for ES00m Vin was named
Cisco Technology Woman of the Year in 2012, and Quoted
Company Entrepreneur of the Year in 2014 Her belief
that education 1s the key to the future drives her chantable
work In the PSFoundation which supports education for
underprivileged children in remote areas of India Vin s
marned with one child

Christopher Sweetland, aged 59 - Nan-Exscutive Director
Chnistopher began his career at KPMG in London where he
qualified as an ACA in 1980 before moving to PepsiCo Inc
whnere he worked overseas for 10 years, latterly as Regional
CFO for Central Europe, based 1 Frankfurt

He joined WPP at the Group HQ In 1989 at the hme of the
Ogilvy & Mather acquisiion, with responsitlity for Finance
for WPP’s Eurocpean operattons After working as CFQO at
one of the operating dvisions, he returned to WPP HQ in
his current role as Deputy Group CFO 1in 2000 He works on
investar relations, capttal expenditure as well as managing
the Group property portfolio
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Robert Davison, aged 56 - Group Secretary

Raobert joined the Group In 1987 as Group Services
Manager He became Director of Admunistration in 1998 and
Group Secretary in 2004 Pnor to joining Chime he worked
in the music industry for ten years, initially for PolyGram,
including working on the launch of the CD format in Europe,
and later with RCA Records establishing a pan-European
manufacturing capability for 12 national trading companies

In his role as Secretary, Robert has been part of the team
dehvenng the corporate transacuons over the last ten
years He is additionally responsible for the management
and compliance of the Group's standards of governance
and risk management, together with the coordination

of resources such as legal, IT, property and people
management

Robert 1s a Fellow of the Instituie of Chartered Secretanes
and Admunistrators

During the year Catherine Biner Bradley (resigned

30 Apnl 2013), Richard Alston (resigned 31 December 2013}
and Paul Richardson (resigned 26 March 2014) were

also Directors




Executive Management Team

The Executive Management Team draws its members from
three areas of Group management executive directors,
senior executives each with management responsibility

for an Indwidual trading division, and representatives of
the business development and commercial aspects of

the Group's operations They meet monthly to discuss the
implementation of strategy, progress made in meeting
targets, resourcing and other group-wide 1ssues and
inihatives The Team I1s responsible far the maintenance of
and compliance {o Group operating standards The Team
discuss individual divisional 1ssues tn addition to those
common across the Group 1n order to ensure best practice
and experience s pooled in meeting the Group's goals

Christopher Satterthwaite, aged 57
(For biographical detalls see page 33}

Mark Smith, aged 58
(For biagraphical details see page 33)

Cnispin Beale, aged 41
Chief Executive, Chime Insight & Engagement

Crispin 1s one of the UK's leading market research industry
figures with a reputation for insightful and strategic vision,
coupled with an entrepreneunal and dynamic approach

to business He has a proven track record of leveraging
expertise from across a business to deliver best practice
to clients, which 1s demonstrated in his consistent delivery
of positive annual results Crispin was promoied to CEQ

of Chime's Insight & Engagement Group in 2010, having
produced a record turnover for Facts international in his
previous position as Chief Executive of that company

Pror 1o working for Chime, Crigpin held a number of
influential and senior roles including Director of Marketing
Services at Post Office Limited, Director of Insight,
Intelhigence and Analysis across Royal Mail Group, Head of
Customer Satisfaction for BT plc and, heading Research and
Intelhgence at Dixons Stares Group {now DSGI plc)

Cnspin is the UK representative for ESOMAR and 1s also
serving his third term as an elected Board Member of the
UK's Market Research Socrety (MRS) Crispin has also
become a member of the Civil Aviation Authonties {CAA)
Consumer Panel, acting as a 'cntical fnend' to champion
consumer's interests
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Jackia Brock Doyle, OBE, aged 49
CEOQ, The Good Relations Group

Jackie I1s the former Director of Communicatons and Public
Affairs, London 2012 Olympic and Paralympic Games With
more than 25 years in Communications and Marketing, she
bnngs phenomenal expertise, energy and tnternational
experience and 1s recognised as one of the world's teading
communications practitoners Jacke has designed and
directed marketing, communication, media and sponsorship
programmes for same of the world's biggest brands and
events, Including Visa International, the Sydney 2000
Olympic Games, the 2002 Manchester Commonwealth
Games, Coca Cola, Samsung, Mars and most recently the
London 2012 Olympic and Paralympic Games :

In 2012 she was voted PR Week's ‘PR Professional of the
Year' for her wark in delivering the Landan 2012 Olympic
and Paralympic Games and together with her team, was
awarded the 'PR Week Campaign of the Year 2012’ In 2011
she was voted Corporate Communications Professtonal

of the year and she 1s also named in the Holmes Report's
‘Influence 100", a ist of the world's most powerful and
influential commurications professionals

In 2014 Jacke was recognised by Debrett's, in association
with the Sunday Times, as one of Britain's 500 most
influential people

Lord Cose CH, KBE, agsd 57
Executrve Chairman, CSM Sport & Entertainment

Sebastian Coe was recently elected Chairman of the

Bnhish Olympic Association He was Chairman of the
London Organising Committee for the Qlympic Games and
Paralympic Games, having previously been Chairman of the
London 2012 bid company

As an athlete Seb set 12 world records dunng his athletic
career At the Olympic Games in Moscow In 1980 he won
Gold in the 1500m and Siver m the 800m, a feat which he
repeated in Los Angeles in 1984

He retired from competitive athletics in 1990 and became

a Conservative MP and was Private Secretary to Willam
Hague In 2002 he was made a Peer He received a
Knighthood in the 2006 New Year's Honours List Seb s
global adwisor to Nike and also works with Chelsea Football
Club as well as being a columnist for The Dally Telegraph

Seb 1s Vice-President of the International Association of
Athletic Federations {IAAF) and Chairman of the Sports
Honours Committee He received a Companion of Honour 1n
the 2013 New Year's Honours List
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Executive Management Team
continued

Adrian Colaman, aged 49
Group CEQ, VCCP Partnership

Adnan started out as a client with Esso Petroleum before
maoving to the agency side His strengths lie not only in
cohesive and hard-hitting campaigns but also in chent focus
and business understanding - experience that means he
understands the marketing mix In 1986 Adnan began work
at IMP & below-the-line agency, and moved to HHCL 1n 1993
Dunng his seven-year stint the agency was named Agency
of the Decade’ In 2000 he became Chief Executive for AMD

VCCP 15 now 12 years old and has grown from an agency of
4 to over 600 people lis head office I1s In London, and it also
has offices in Berlin, Prague, Madnd and Sydney VCCP was
named agency of the yearin 2013

Sue Farr, aged 57
Director, Strategic and Business Development

Sue leads Chime's strategic & business development
programme

Pricr to Chime she was European Managing Director of
Golin/Harns, the IPG owned PR group where she was
responsible for therr turopean network of offices and affilates

Much of Sue’s client career has been spent tn broadcasting
Firstly as Director of Corporate Communications for Thames
Television plc {1990-3) which saw her launch UK Gold, and
subsequently as Director of Marketing and Communications
for the BBC {1993-2000) She was responsible for marketing
strategy, planning and implementation across all the BBC's
public service brands She also created and launched
Proms in the Park

Sue 15 a Non-Executive Director of Millennium and
Copthorne Hotels plc, Motivcom plc and Dairy Crest plc
Sue was voted Advertising Woman of the Yearin 1997, a
WACL Woman of Achievement in 1998 and awarded The
Markeung Society's ‘Grand Prix' in 1998 She was awarded
an Honorary Doctorate by the University of Bedfordshire

in 2010 1n recogrition of her services to Marketing and
Communications

Jim Glover, aged 48
Chief Executive, CSM Sport & Entertainment

Jim began his career in the sports industry at IMG working
in the golf client division

In 1994 he set up Lighthouse Communications, one of the
first Independent agencies to offer the corporate world
independent, impartial advice on sponsorship, which he
buitt up aver the next ten years to become one of the leading
independent consulting agencies in Europe, responsible for
creating successful sponsership programmes for Heingken
International, GlaxoSmithKine, and Land Rover

In December 2005, he oversaw the successful acquisition
of Lighthouse by Fast Track which in turn was acquired
by Chime in 2007 Jim 1s now the Group CEO of the Sport
& Entertainment division, CSM, with responsibility for 575
peopte In 13 countries He played reascnable rugby in the
last century and 1s married with 4 children

Nick Lamb, aged 54
Chairman, Chime Insight & Engagement

Nick has spent over 30 years in the UK Communications
industry working for four different types of marketing
communication agencies

He joined Saatchi and Saatcht in 1979 as a trainee Account
Executive and was present dunng the penod in which it grew
from relative obscunty to become the largest advertising
agency In the world

From there he was appointed a Director of one of the UK's
foremost Sales Promotion and Direct Markeling agencies
MCB, before joining Crown Business Communications as
Managing Director initially to lead Crown’s successful MBO
He oversaw the rapid expansion of Crown before becoming
Chairman following its trade sale to Ferrovtal

In 2007 he joined forces with Chime leading to the joint
acquisition of the market research company Facts
International In 2010 he was appointed Chairman of
Chime’s Insight & Engagement Group, and 1n 2012 he
orchestrated the highly successiul taunch of Watermeton
Research, Chime's digital research business

Edward Leask, aged 66
Deputy Chairman of CSM Sport & Entertainment

Edward 1s a Chartered Accountant, who has concentrated
on the sports and entertainment industry for many years,
including involvement with the formation of Major League
Soccer in the UUSA and more recently the development of
Chime’s investment in sports marketing in China, South
America and the USA

Edward's passion Is salling and still races competitively
He has represented Great Britain in the Soling Class in two
Olympics and previously achieved a Silver medal in the
Flying Dutchman World Championships
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Kevin Murray, aged 59
Charman, The Good Refations Group

Kevin specialises in the field of strategic communications,
brand bullding and reputation management He has years
of experience advising and coaching charrmen and chief
executives, and working with leadership teams Kewvin is
also the authar of two books on leadership communication,
‘The Language of Leaders’ and ‘Communicate o Inspire —
a guide for ieaders*

Previously he was Director of Communications for British
Airways and, Director of Corporate Affairs for AEA
Technology, the science and engineering business that was
floated off from the United Kingdom Atomic Energy Authority
Prior to AEA, Kevin was Group Public Relations Manager

for Bayer in the UK He 1s also a former national newspaper
Journalist, magazine pubhsher and marketing director

Jo Parker, aged 48
Chief Executive, Teamspint

Teamspint 1s the specialist financial services agency

which has been part of Chume for 14 years As a founding
partner of Teamspint, Jo has always believed that specialist
agencies best serve clients that work in complex markets
She 1s a passionate advocate of integrated marketing

and has developed Teamspint's offering on this basis Its
services span marketing consultancy, brand development,
advertising, marketing communications, and digital Six
years ago she set up Teamspirit Public Relations of which
she 1s Chairrman, which was the 2nd largest financial
services PR agency in the UK, 2013 Teamspint was also
voted ‘Agency of the Year' by the Financial Services Forum,
2013 Jo also chairs Chime’s Youth Board, Chime Innovate

lan Priest, aged 50
Group Chief Operating Officer, CSM Sport & Entertainment

lan began his career at the leading below-the-line agency
IMP, reaching board level before leaving to join HHCL and
Partners in 1993, and becoming Managing Director in 2000
In January 2002, alongside his three partners, he founded
VCCP which joined the Chime Group 1n 2005

lan moved into the central team at Chime in 2010, headtng
up Chime Ventures before becoming Group COO of CSM
In September 2013 He 1s President of the IPA, the industry
body for advertising agencies He 1s also a Non-Executive
Director of a number of start-up businesses He ts marned
and has three children
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David Rowley, aged 51
Chief Executive, OPEN Health

David has spent his entire carger in healthcare marketing
and communications, dividing roles evenly between global
pharmaceutical companies {GD Searle, Wyeth laboratories
and Sandoz) and communications agencies serving the
healthcare sector

While David’s specific expertise lies in strategic brand
planning, communication strategy and international brand
development, it 15 his entreprencurial flair that has defined
the last 15 years of his career

In 1995, having left Sandoz pharma as Cardiovascular
Busmess Unit Director, David set up The Pharmaceutical
Brand Consuliancy — a boutique practice specialising in

pan EU brand planning Six years later, the practice had
grown to a significant size and was acguwed by the fledgling
Huntsworth Group Over the following eight years as CEQ of
Huntsworth Health, David led the growth of the healthcare
praclice to a size of approximately 500 staff, $100M revenue,
and 16 offices around the world

In 2010, David left Huntsworth to pursue his ambitions of
starting a new practice In January 2011, David joined forces
with Chime to create OPEN Health, the first channet and
discipline neutral communications business in the healthcare
space As CEQ, David has led the successful start up of

the company, which through both acquisition and organic
growth, has grown to a team of over 190 people In its first
three years

Nick Taylor, aged 61
Group Commercial Director

Nick began his commercial career as a graduate trainee In
the aerospace and medical divistons of Smiths Industries
plc In 1979 he founded Harvard Public Relations,

which went on to become one of Europe's leading TMT
consultancies with offices in London, Pans and Munich
Following Harvard's acquisition by Chime in 2000, Nick
Joined the Executive Management Team and 1s involved in
a number of Chime's overseas businesses, Chime Ventures
(investments and start ups) and Chime’s M&A activity Nick
15 a Non-Executive Director of Mentyre Specialists
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Directors’ Statement on Corporate Governance

The Directors’ Statement on Corporate Governance 1s
prepared in order to give gutdance to both investors and our
wider stakeholders on how Chime 1s managed The Board Is
committed to providing investors with a clear picture of the
steps we take to operate appropnately and effectively In thes
report we atiempt to convey our atlitude to the provisions of
the UK Corporate Governance Code 2012 (‘The Code’} in
addition to our application of good management using the
Code as our minimum standard

CHAIRMAN'S INTRODUCTION

On joining Chuime as Chairman at the end of 2012 I found
Chime a well run business with a strong executive team
However, the Group had gone through a major change and
the Board took the opportunity to estabhsh a revised strategy
with new key objectives

Firstly, the Board itself was restructured aligning both
exishing and new expertise with the stated aims of the
Group We took direction from comments from some of
our shareholders on the membership of our Commitiees
and revised the membership in December In doing so
we applied the principles of the Code on the role and
effectiveness of the Board

We have further formalised some of our processes and
revised the workload of the Committees and the Executive
Dwectors We have made the changes to our priorities in our
Board meetings and this has provided an additional focus
We have therefore re-tuned the Board, concentrating on
strategy, performance and governance Qur new Directors
have already made great contributions in the setting out of
our future vision

As a Group qur appraach to high standards of creative work,
of ethical behaviour and the applied flexible attiiude 1o our
operating environments positions us well as a business to
manage the reputations of others

| beheve we have further improved the strategic management
of the busmess and have the nght team at its head The
Board continues to provide strong guidance to the Company
with the interests of our shareholders as our overnding goal

The following report 1s constructed to inform both existing
and potential stakeholders of cur robust approach (o matters
of governance We will continue to monitor and report on
performance against best practice and as always welcome
comments from shareholders on our current or additional
disclosures

Lord Davies of Abersach
Chairman
26 March 2014

The Company 1s committed to the pnnciples of Corpaorate
Governance contained in the 2012 UK Corporate Governance
Code I1ssued by the Financral Reporting Council {the ‘Code’
avallable at www frc org uk) for which the Board 1s
accountable o shareholders

DIRECTORS AND THE BOARD

The rols of the Board

The Board's role 1s to provide entrepreneunial leadership of
the company within a framework of prudent and effective
controls which enables the identification and management
of rsk The Board 1s responsible for overall strategy and
the use of resources (financiai, human and techrical) In the
pursuit of its set goals

The Board considers significant commitments and habilities
such as banking arrangements, property leases and the
appointment of key staff etc

Where appropriate and necessary the Board delegates
detailed oversight of certain matters to one of its three
standing committees, Audit, Remuneration and Nominations

The Board receives regular updates fram the Executive
Directors on shareholder views on i1ssues faced by the
Company Updates 1ssued by brokers, research agencies
and fund managers referencing Chime are circulated in
order that Directors gain an understanding of shareholder
VIEWS

The Board has agreed levels of delegated decision making
to the Executive Direclors Limits are set by the Board

in lerms of financial commitments, acceptable liability

and nsk levels, the remuneration of staff and for smaller
acquisihons The Executive Directors report to the Board on
progress against targets together with 1ssues, intiatives and
opportunities faced by the Group

Board composition

The Board i1s of a size and has an appropnate level of
experience and Independeance to discharge its duties and
responsibities on behalf of shareholders

The Board compnses two Executive Directors and six Non-
Executive Directars (including the Non-Executive Chairman)
The respeciive penods of appoiniment are shown in the
following table
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Director First appointed

Last elected by shareholders

Overview and Highlights
Strategy and Outlook

Perfarmance

Governance

Directors Remuneration Report

Financiatl Statements

Length of service at next AGM

Executive Directors

Chris Satterthwaite Uecember 2002 May 2013 11 years 5 months
Mark Smith June 19934 - May 2013 19years 11 months
Non-Executive Diractors

Lord Davies M December 2012 May 2013 1 year S months
Rodger Hughes @) July 2007 May 2013 6 years 10 months
Clare Gimartin September 2613 . N/A 8 manths
Martin Glenn August 2013 CNA g months
\mMurrla o August 2013 B NJA B 9 months
Chnistopher Sweetland July 2012 May 2013 1 year 10 months

(INan-Executive Chairman
2 Senior Independent Director

Board restructurning

During 2013 the Board was restructured, resulting in the
departure of two directors and the arnval of three new
individuals Prior to the recruitment process Lord Davies and
Rodger Hughes, the Senior Independent Director, undertook
an evaluahon of the skills and expertise required for the new
appointments Executive search consultancy, Zygos, was
engaged to maich candidates to the requirement, taking into
account the needs of the Board dwversity Once appointed
the new Directors receved a full induction to the Company
and the Board

Additioratly, Lord Davies, with the agreement of the Board,
has restructured the meetings in order to increase and use
time more efficiently This has refocused the Board on the
pronties of strategy, performance and gavernance, set
information requirements for management and, given clanty
to the processes for feedback, monitering and enqurry
Communications between the Directors ouiside formal
meetings has increased as a result

The Board receives further regular updates from divisional
heads who attend Board meetings to discuss progress,
1ISsUes or corporate events

The Board has reviewed and formalised the work to be
delegated to the standing committees Committee reports
are given at each Board meeting

As a result of this re-setiing process the individual Directors
have a closer relationship with the Chairman, improved
communication with therr fellow Board members, Executive
management and, when support 15 required, the Group
Secretary

The changes for the Board are seen as beneficial by

both the executive and non-executive groups No 1ssues

of concern, falure or Incapacity to perform the Board's
required duties were identified As a result the Board
beleves 1t is constituted In a form that 15 fit for purpose and
apprapnately governed on behalf of shareholders

Retirement and propased re-election of Directors

In accordance with recegnised best practice, the Board has
a policy of presenting all Drectars for re-election at each
AGM This ts In ine with the Code provisions for FTSE350
companies and the Board believes governance is best
served by doing so

As Clare Gilmartin, Martin Glenn and Vin Murria were
appointed by the Board as shown above, each will stand for
election by shareholders at the forthcoming AGM

The biographies of each Director are shown on pages 33
to 34

Additionally, dunng the year, Catherine Biner Bradley served
as a Director and as a member of the Audit Committee unti
her resignation on 30 Apni 2013 The Hon Richard Alston
served as a Director throughout 2013 and as a member of
the Remuneration Committee until 5December 2013 Richard
resigned from the Board on 31 December 2013 Paul
Richardson served as a Director for the {ull year, resigning
on 26 March 2014 having previously resigned as a member
of the Remuneration Committee on 5 December 2013
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Directors’ Statement on Corporate Governance

continued

Board halance

The Board restructuring was underiaken to realign the
membership with the needs and development of Chime's
revised strategy We recognise that a Board of diverse skills,
experience and gender will benefit the stewardship of the
Company undertaken on behalf of shareholders Our new
Directors bring international, entrepreneunal and financial
expertise, proven knowledge of the transfer of services from
traditional to digital means and, most importantly, strong
leadership For further detalls see the Board evaluation
section on pages 41 to 42

Board effectiveness

The Board 1s responsible for overall Group strategy,
acquisitions and the consideration of sigruficant financial
matters and major areas of risk It reviews the strategic
direction of the Graup's trading companes, their annyal
budgets and their progress towards achievement of those
budgets The Board s responsible for ensurning the integrnity
of financial information and that the financial contrels and
systems of nsk management, both financial and nonfinancial
are robust and approprate

The Board 1s run as with an open and discussive culture
and the mvolvernent of all members 15 encouraged and
faciitated It 1s acknowledged by the Board that the
independent views of our Non-Executive Drrectors enhance
a balanced debate of agenda items

Directors, mestings and attendance in 2013

Meetings scheduled 4
Meetings held 9

Attendance
Christopher Satterthwaite T 9qfa
Mark Smith 9of9
Lord Davies o 9of 9
Rodger Hughes Safd
Clare Gilmartn [appointed 18/038/2013) H4of 4
Martin Glenn [appointed 22/08/2013] Jof 5
Yin Murnia {appointed 22/08/2013) 50f5
Christopher Sweetland 80of9
Hon Richard Alston [resigned 31/12/2013] 50ofg
Catherine Biner Bradiey [resigned 30/4/2013) Dofl
Paul Richardson (resigned 26/3/2013) 80f9

During the year a number of meetings in addition to those
scheduled took place These were required mainly to
discuss the fundraising, the acquisition of JMi and the
revised banking facuity
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When absence from meetings 1s unavoidable, the views
of the Director concerned are sought In advance then
put to the meeting in order to facilitate a comprehensive
discussion Each Director continues to make themselves
availlable to their fellow Directors and ensures he/she
contributes to the major decisions before the Board

Chairman, Chief Exacutive and Senior Independent
Director

The Chairman, Lord Davies, ensures that alt Directars
receive sufficient, accurate and timely information on
financial, business and cerporate 1ssues prior to meetings
He alsa ensures that hug fellow Non-Executive Directors
have access to any further supplementary information they
require should they request it Lord Davies 1s Chairman of
the Nominations Committee

The Chief Executive's (Chnstopher Satterthwaite)
responsibiliies focus on co-ordinating the Group's
business and implementing its strategy He 1s a member
of the Execubive Management Team which oversees the
implementation of the strategy through the divisions, the
allocation of resources the maintenance and compliance
with standards and, progress towards targets

Rodger Hughes 1s the Senior Independent Director and 1s
alse Chairman of the Audit and Remuneration Committees

Infarmation and support for Directors

New Directors recerve a full, formal and taillored induction

on joining the Board in order to further inform them of the
Group's activities and structure All Directors are able to take
Independent professional advice at the Group's expense In
the furtherance of their duties, If necessary The Company
also makes approprate training available to all existing
Cirectors

Executive Directors are entiiled to accept external
appointments outside the Company and retain the fees from
such appointments provided that the Chairman's permission
15 sought and confirmed by the Board

The Company purchases appropnale insurance n respect
of legal action agatnst its Directors and Officers

Group Secretary

The Group Secretary (Robert Davison) is responsible for
ensuring that Board procedures are complied with Under
the guidance of the Chairman, the Secreiary ensures that
information flows between the Board, the Committees and
toffrom the Executive Directors He facilitates inductions for
new Directors and the prowvision of additonal information
where required and appropriate

The Secretary 1s responsible for advising the Board on
governance matters and s avaitable to all Dwectors for
advice and support as required




Non-Executive Directors

The Board considers its current Non-Executive Directors
to be of sufficient calibre and number that their views

be of sufficient weight that ne individual or small group
can dominate the Board's decision making process

Their qualifications and expenence is relevant to their
directorships and in ther appointments to the Committees
where applicable

The Non-Executive Directors’ terms and conditions of
appointment are avallable for inspection at the Company's
registered office on request and will be availlable, together
with the Executive Directors’ service contracts, at the
forthcoming AGM

independence of Non-Executive Dirsctors

The Code states that 1t 1s for the Board to delermine whether

a Director 1s independent in character and judgement and
consider whether there are any relationships or circumstances
that are likely ta affect a Oirector's judgemeant

In applying the Code, the Board has considered a number
of factors in determining the independence of each
Non-Executive Director and sets out the outcomes below

Lord Davies

Chanrman of the Board and the Nommations Committee
Lord Dawvtes awns shares in Chime, 35,685 at 31 December
2013 His holding ongnates from an obligation to purchase
Chime shares to the value of £100,000 each year and to
build a target investment of £300,000 by December 2016
This obhgation forms part of his service contract

Rodger Hughes

Senior Independent Director and Chairman of the Auadit
and Remuneration Committees

Rodger owns shares in Chime, 27,053 at 31 December 2013
This holding 1s not seen as significant

Non-Executive Directors’ shareholdings

The Board has assessed that the holdings of these Directors
are not significant and believes such levels of investment
should not raise questions regarding therr independence
The Board considers that Directors owning shares in the
Company directly aligns them with the interests of the
shareholders

Chrnis Sweetland

Non-Executive Director

Chns s the WPP representaiive on the Board He is Deputy
Finance Director of WPP and a qualified ACA and, therefore
has relevant and current skills and experience which
contribute to the Board forum Following concerns of Code
camplance from shareholders Chas stepped down fram his
membership of the Audit Committee in December 2013

Ove;wew and Highights
Strategy and Outlock

Performance
Governance

Dreclors Remuneration Report

Financial Statements

WPP sharsholding
The Board 1s conscious and attuned to the potential
concerns of shareholders of WPP Board representation

Under the Subscription Agreement of 1997 and whilst

WPP hold 20% or more of Chime’s share capital WPP may
nominate two directors to the Board On holding above

12 5% they may nominate one directer Chns Sweetland has
shown impartialty and independence in carrying out his
duties on behalf of Chime shareholders

Board assessment

In the past, annual appraisals by exiernal investor research
analysts have recommended that shareholders vote against,
or abstain from, any proposed re-election of Non-Executive
Directors due 1o a perceved non-compliance with the Code
regarding the cntena quoted above The Code requires
companies to ‘Comply or Explair’ We have continually and
consistently met this requirement

Qur restructunng of the Board and the membership of the
standing Committees took into account the views expressed
by our shareholders together with 1ssues of independence,
diversity and, the requisite skills to deliver our new strategy

We believe the holding of shares {within certain hmits)

or representation of a substantial shareholder by a Non-
Executive Director, does not evidence that a Director's belief
and commitment to the business ts compromised We believe
that in the cases quoted above it aligns them directly with
the interests of our shareho!ders Following assessment the
Board considers each of our Non-Executive Directors to be
independent in both characier and judgement We believe
there are no circumsiances that give nse to guestion their
respective Judgements when considenng matiers put before
the Board 1in 2013 or in the future

Performance evaluation

The Board has a process of formal evaluation for indivdual
Crrectors, the Committees and the processes utllised by the
Board itself This s undertaken by our internal audit resource
and is monitored by the Charrman and the Audit Committee
The Board areas evaluated include

* Board organisation, struciure and membership,

* the conduct of meetings,

+ the responsibilities of the Board,

» the performance of the Board and its processes,

* the information provided to Non-Executives, and

+ the effectiveness of the management process from the
Board to lower levels of managemert
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Directors’ Statement on Corporate Governance

continued

The Remuneration Committee evaluated the 2013
performance of the Executive Directors in early 2014
This evaluation 1s described on pages 68 to 70 of the
Remuneration Committee Report

The performance evaluations of the indivduat Executive
Directors for 2013 did not identify any areas of concern

Nan-Executive Directars - parformanca evaluation

The Executive Directors, in consultation with the Chairman,
are responsible for the assessment of the performance of
the Non-Executive Directors The Senior Independent Non-
Executive Director s also consulted during this process
except for evaluation of his own performance

The process of performance evaluation I1s desighed

to consider all elements of performance including any
perceived shortcomings, training or development needs and
unforeseen tasks and responsibilities that have ansen dunng
the year

Whilst no KPIs are set for individuai Non-Executive Direclors,
the tme, effort and application applied in the performance
of their duties for the Board and, where applicable,
Commuttees I1s taken into account

The Board, the Committees and the management process
- performance evaluation

In ine with the requirements of the Code, the Company
additronally carrnes out annual performance evaluations

of the Board, the Committees and the processes uthsed

by each forum The am of the evaluahon s o recognise

the strengths and address any weaknesses and consider
improvements to the management process The evaluation 1s
designed to ensure that the Board meets its objectives and
that effectiveness 1s maximised

This evaluation addresses such Issues as

+ the frequency of meetings and the business transacted,
the workload of each forum,

the timing, level of detail and appropriateness of
information put before meetings,

the reporting process from Commitiees to the Board and
delegation process itself,

the levels of expertise avallable within the membership of
the Commuittees and the need for, selection of and the use
of external consultants, and

the effectiveness of internal controls following the review
and report of the Audit Commutiee

.

.

-

-

Diversity raport

Pohey statement

The Board believes that diversity 1s the soul of creatity

It aids our operations and delivers innovative and retevant
solutions to our business offer We are in a creative industry
We orniginate and develop ideas, campaigns and events on
behalf of our clients who in turn must meet the challenge of
a diverse custamer base

We acknowledge that diversity withun our staff populatron 13
impaortant, not only by gender, but nationahty, ethnic ongin
and culture, age, mantal status, sexual orentation and other
critena Our equal opporiunities policy reflects that belief

We have not to date measured such categones within our
warkfarce, preferrning to promote an open and inclusive
environment However, we will keep the option to monitor
under review

Regulation and legislation has brought requirements

on gender reporting Our own Chairman, Lord Davies,

via his work “Women on Beards' on behalf of the UK
government, has successiully raised the profile and driven
the development of best practice for increased gender
diversity at senior levels within husiness We have adopted
the recommendations he set out for FTSE250 and FTSE350
companies as these embody best practice

We have therefore reported the composition of our executive
forums by gender below, including for context, our overall
staff population and our Executive Management Team

We shall report this annually going forward together with
developments and reasons for any change We shall publish
targets and report on our progress

The Nominations Committee (s charged with selecting
appropriate candidates for senior posts and makes due
regard to the need for diversity within cur executive teams
We shall draw up recruitment criteria which will nclude Lord
Dawvies’ recommendations

Gender diversity - executive forums

At the beginning of 2012 we had a single female Non-
Executive Director on a Board totalling nine members Lord
Davies was appointed Chairman in December 2012 and the
Board was restructured dunng 2013

During the year both Cathenne Biner Bradley and Richard
Alston left the Board and Clare Gimartin, Mariin Glenn and
Vin Murnia were appointed
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Qverview and Highights
Strategy and Outiook
Performance

Drectors Remuneration Report
Financial Statements

Women on our executive forums Emplaoyment of disabled persons

1January 31 Oecember The Group gives full and fair consideration to all applications

2012 sg13  for employment made by disabled persons, having regard

—_— - to their particular aptitudes and abilites Opportunities
Board Directors e300 298 traning, career development and promation do not
Non-Executive Dwectors 1lofd 20f7  disadvantage these employees or any members of staff
Audit Committee 10f3 10f3 who become disabled during their ime with us
Remuneration Committee Oof3 lof3
Norminations Committee Dof5 2of 5
Executive Management Team 20f 15 3ofly

We hawe used January 2012 as our comparater in arder to
reflect the major change in the structure of the Group that
took place dunng that year, with the sale of the Bell Pottinger
businesses and the departure of our then Executive
Chairman and Deputly Chairman

Our target for women on our Board by 2015 1s 25%, in ine
with Lord Davies' recommendation for FTSE250 companies
We shall mirror that target in our Executive Management Team

On 31 December 2013 our total number of permanent
employees was 1,848 (2012 1,732) This included 969
female staff (2012 899) The increase 1n headcount was
therefore 40% male and 60% female

Chime conbinues to promote participation and encourage the
aspirations of our female staff In 2013 we set up 'Grapeving’,
a women's group that meets regularly to share business
ideas, encourage networking and personal development
This will help empower our female staff ai all levels

We have a Youth Board called ‘Chime Innovate’, a group of
young members of staff tasked with innovation, addressing
business 1ssues Membership 1s open to all applicants under
the age of 28 Chime Innovate 15 facitated by Jo Parker

and Amelia Torode two of our top female executives The
membership 1s 50% female

Our Graduate Scheme in 2013/4 has 16 members (2012/3
13) of which 12 are female {(2012/3 9) Of our graduate
Intake In 2012/3, 9 were offered permanent posts within
Chime and/or our associates Five of those were female

We also have an open networking group cailed '‘Cunous’ for
our younger staff who meet for regular networking events
These events often include guest speakers and we extend
Invitations to our clients
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Directors’ Statement on Corporate Governance

continued

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Audit Committee Chairman’s Statemant

This 1s the first formal Audit Commitiee Report to
shareholders and | hope that you will find it helpful in
understanding what we do

Our role, on behalf of the Board, involves providing
assurance that the stewardship of the Company and the
standards of governance adhered lo are appropriate and
that our Hinancial statements provide a farr and balanced
view of the Company’s financial position

The membership of the Committee was refreshed towards
the end of 2013 with Vin Murna and Martin Glenn jaining
us and they are already bringing different and helpful
perspectives to our deliberations Cathering Biner Bracdley
and Chnis Sweetland served on the Commuttee up to Apn)
and December respectively Both made a full and valuable
contnbution and | am personally very grateful to them for
therr effarts

Chime has been changing and that has been reftected

in the actvities of the Committee As set out by the
Chairman and Chief Executive in therr introductions, the
Group has been growing both organtcally and through
acqusition, in particular to build the spaorts marketing
business internationally This presents new nsks and
control challenges as the spread of the Group widens both
geographically and by nature of business

The Committee has responded by ensurnng that

proper due diligence 1s conducted on acquisitions,

the Internal Audit work programme covers all group
companies at least once a year and focuses on areas of
higher nisk,

the risk management framework and processes continue
to be developed,

sigruficant management attention s being pad {o
operations In Braz!l , given the revenues anticipated from
the FIFA World Cup this year and the Olympics in 2016,
the external audit is effective (see belowy),

coniracts are approprate,

the Group coniinues to comply with local laws and
regutations, and

finance function resources are adequate
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accounting policies for revenug recognition on longer term

Headline sarnings

We are conscious of the major difference between
headlne profits and the IFRS loss this year While IFRS
have brought about greater consistency in reporting by
companies internationally {although still not In the USA)
they have become increasingly technical and complex
The fact that the vast majonty of UK listed companies now
additionally pubtish headhine earnings figures and the
general acceplance of these by the analyst community
demonstrates that IFRS profit numbers alone often do not
provide sufficient information on trading performance

I also draw your attention to the comments on deemed
remuneration, one of our adjusting items, in the Significant
Issues section of this report

The Committee has scrutinised the adjustments made by
management and discussed them with the auditors and Is

salisfied that they are legitimate and helpful to sharenolders

understanding of the underlying trading performance

We have set out betow how the Committee has discharged

its responsibihties during the year, explaned the more

significant accounting 1ssues we considered and expanded

on how we satisfied ourselves that the Group audit 1s
effective

If shareholders have further questions en the Audit

Committee’s work then | shall be pleased to answer them at

the AGM

Rodger Hughes
Chairrman of the Audit Committee
26 March 2014




Membership, meetings and attendance in 2013

Meetings scheduled 4
Meeatings held _g:__ i T T _’-I

o Attandn_rE
Rodger Hughes 14 T T yof4
Martn Glenn (appomied 05/12/2013)  1ofl
Vin Murria [appointed 05/12/2013) T 1ofl
Chnistopher Sweetland {resigned 05/12/2013) ETE
Catherine Bmer Bradiey 3 o E;Jf—l

M Chairman of Committes
12 Cathenne Biner Bradley resigned as a Director on 30 April 2013

The external auditors were present at each of the meetings
and may request a meeting without management present if
necessary

Membership of the Committee

Membership of the Commitiee 1s reviewed by the Chairman
of the Commitiee and the Group Chairman (who s not

a member of the Committee) at reqular intervals and

where appropriate they recommend new appointments to
the Nominations Committee for assessment and onward
recommendation o the Board

The Committee 1s compnsed of three ndependent Non-
Executive Directors Two members constitute a quorum
The Audit Committee 1s required to include one financially
qualfied member {as recognised by the Consultative
Commuttee of Accountancy Bodies) Currenily the Audit
Committee Charrman, Rodger Hughes, meets that
requirement

Tha role of the Audit Committes

The powers, duties and responsibilities delegated

to the Commuttee by the Board are formalised in the
Committee's Terms of Reference which are avallable at
www chimeplc com, and include all matters indicated by
Disclosure and Transparency Rule 7 1 and the Code

The report below sets out the work of the Commiitee
dunng 2013

Eemew and Highlkghts
Strategy and Qutlook
Performance

Direclors Remuneration Report
Financta) Statements

The Audit Committes in 2013

In 2013 the Comnmuttes met on four occasions dunng the
year discharging its responsibilihes through the following
activities

reviewed the Group's draft prelimuinary and intenm results
statements prior to Board approval and reviewed and
discussed the external audilors’ detailed reports,
reviewed the Group's interim management statements and
pre-close penod updates prior to their release,
scrutinised future financial projections and chalienged the
assumptions made, reporting to the Board that the going
concern basis remains fully justfied and that gearning was
being prudently managed,

considered the response to new and revised legislation
and regulatory requirements,

considered the appropriateness of the Group's accounting
poiicies,

reviewed regularly the impact on the Group's financial
statements of matters such as the adoption of new
International Financial Reporting Standards,

+ considered the rotatton of the audit partner and
additionally following a formal review, recommended to
the full Boara, which adopted the recommendation, the
reappointment of Deloitie LLP as the Group's exiernal
auditors,

assessed the effectiveness of the external audit process
(see below) focussing on key nisks, decisions on
matenalty and the proposed scope of work,

discussed with the external auditors’ their plan for the
audit of the Group's accounts, Including key nsks,
matenality and the scope of work,

confirmed auditor independence and the proposed audit
fee and approved the terms of engagement for the audit,
reviewed the Group’s internal financial controls and nsk
management system and reported to the Board on the
effectiveness of both,

= approved the internal audit plan and the results of therr work,
gave oversight to the Group whistieblowing policy and the
use of the confidenual helphne,

assessed the Group's progress on corporate responsibility
1Issues, and

evaluated the Committee’s own performance and
concluded that it remarned effective

.

The Committee has reviewed this Annual Report and

reported to the Board that 1| considers it to be far. batanced
and understandable In doing $o 1t considered whether

« the overall impression given Is consistent with the evenis
of the year and the financral consequences thereof,

* the linkage beiween philosophy, strategy, key performance
indrcators and executive remuneration is clear, and

* the information given enables shareholders to assess the
Company’s business mode!, strategy and performance
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Directors’ Statement on Corporate Governance

continued

Significant financial statement reporting issues

The more significant 1ssues considered by the Committee and how they were addressed are as follows

HOW ADDRESSED

Goodwill impairment

Because the Group has expanded through a senes of
acquisitions of businesses with few tangible assets, goodwill
at £228m 15 the largest number in the Group's accounts The
potential iImpairment of its component parts needs to be
carefully considered each year

Revenue recagnitian

As the Group has expanded the mix of revenues has
changed, with greater udgement being required in
accounting for revenues under longer term commercial
arrangements

Ar._countlng for acquisitions

Given the size of the acquisitions made during the year,
it 1s particularly important that they have been correctly
accounted for in accordance with [FRS3

An analysis of the balance sheet goodwill by entity was
compared with the current assessment of the value of
goodwill based on future projections The assumptions

used In management’s projections were challenged and the
conclusions reached by management and the auditors were
discussed Particular attention was paid to those entities
{cash generaling units) where there is lower headrcom in \‘
the impairment test calcufations As a result the Committee :
was satisfied with the carrying value of goodwill in the Group
balance sheet and the charge for imparment in the ncome
statement

Questioned management on the basis of accounting
for longer term contracts, ensured that the scope of the
auditor's work adequately covered this area and discussed
their work, and conclusions with them Obtained satisfaction
that judgements made were reascnable

Questioned management on therr approach to accounting
for acguisitions and the consequent accounting entnes
Discussed with the auditors their work In this area, In
particular as regards the identification of intangible
assets, accounting for deferred consideration or deemed
remuneration and expensing of costs

Deemead remuneration

In order to comply with the IFRS Interpretattons Committee’s
agenda decision (published in January 2013) on the
interpretation of paragraph B55 of IFRS3, regarding
contingent payments to selling shareholders who continue
as employees, the Group changed its accounting pohcy for
the 2012 accounts However, members of the Committee
remain concerned that thus results in capital payments for the
acquisitions of a business being charged as an operating
expense, which daes not properly reflect the underlying
economic substance It might therefore be seen to conflict
with a true and fair view
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T’he Committee debated this matter at some length and
concluded

» the financial statements as a whole may stifl be regarded
as giving a true and fair view , being complhant with IFRS
and consistent with general practice,

« ta assess thewr understanding the atiention of readers of

the financial statements should be drawn to this item by

separate disclosure within operating expenses and a note
of the Board's view in the accounting pclicy note,

the Charman of the Commuttee should write on behalf of

the Board to the |1ASB as part of therr recent request for

comments on IFRS3, seting out our concerns and seeking

a change to the Standard




Assessing the effectiveness of the extarnal audit process
The Commuttee satisfied itself as to the effectiveness of the
external audit process as follows

The audit firm

The FRC cverall report on the results of the Annual Audit
Quality Reviews of Audit Firms and the separate report on
the results for our auditors, Deloitte, were reviewed to ensure
that no issues of concern arose that might have a bearing on
the audit appointment  No such issues arose Subsequently
Deloiite demonstrated how areas identified for particular
attention in the AQR report had been addressed in therr audit

The audit partner

As part of the normal rotation process a new audit partner
was proposed for the 2013 audit The new partner was
invited to formally re-pitch to the Audit Committee for the
work, enabling H to satisfy itself that he has the appropriate
experience and understanding for the role Following
completion of the audit the Committee assessed the
partner's performance against expectations

The audit team

Continuity of personnel was reviewed and found satisfactory
This was considered particularly important this year because
of the discontinuity of audit partner To supplement the
Committee’s necessarily lmited exposure to junior members
of the audit team feedback was sought from Group Finance
Managers on the performance of the external audit team, 1n
particular as regards their understanding of the business,
techrmical competence and attitude In providing this
feedback, Group Finance in turn obtained input from the
divisional Finance Directors

The audit pian

The scope of the audit, including coverage by individual
company, was reviewed and debated by the Committee

with the auditors prior to work being commenced This was
done in the hght of both the auditors’ and the Commitiee’s
assessment of the key nsks The auditers exptained the
matenalty thresholds used in determining their audit scope
and the Committee confirmed that these were in accordance
with normal audtt practice

The generality of the Audit Plan document was assessed
and found satisfactory Arrangements to identify, report and
manage conflicts of nterest were satisfactory

The Commuttee also consiciered whether it wished to
commission further audit work to be conducted beyond that
which the auditors constdered necessary for the expression
of their opiniens on the group and subsidiary accounts and
concluded that, in the ight of the Group Internal Audit Plan,
it did not

Overview and Highlights
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The audit work

The Commuttee requested and recewved feadback from
Financial management on the conduct of the audit at Group,
divistonal or subsidiary levels No matlers arose requirng
attention by the Committee

Matters arising from the audit

These were promptly and effectively communicated

and addressed as appropriate The robustness and
perceptiveness of the auditors in their handling of the key
accounting and audit jJudgements were seen as appropriate
The detailed report received from the auditors following
completion of their work gave comfort as to the diligence of
execution of that work

Added value

In appraising the overall performance of the auditors the
Committee constdered whether they had provided useful
feedback arsing from their work additional to ther statutory
responsidibifies

Independence

In addition to receving the auditors’ formal confirmation

of their ndependence the Committee considered whether
this was demonstrated through their general approach and
attitude and were satisfied that this was the case

Non-audit services

it was debated and confirmed that Group policy on non-
audit services provided by the audit firm (and set out below)
remains appropiate and was complied with Fees additional
to those for the statutery audit were particularty high this
year due to the work required on a major acquisition, being
due diligence investigations and work on the Circular to
shareholders The Commitiee considered the auditors

to be in the best position to conduct this work, given the
timescales and knowledge required In the view of the
Committee 1t did not compromise the iIndependence of the
audi of the financial staternents

Audit fees

The level of audit fees was reviewed t0 ensure that it was
sufficient for the work necessary but not excessive In
particular, changes In fees from the previous year were
considered i refation to changes in the group and in rnisk
assessments
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Audit tendering

The Commuttee considered whether the audit appomntment
should be put out to tender, In particular having regard to the
proposed rotation of audit partner In doing so It considered
both the performance of the current auditors and the likely
costs and potential benefits of change

It was decided to follow a process whereby Deloitte was
tnvited to re-pitch for the work on a sole basts on the
understanding that if the Committee was not satisfied, other
firms would then also be invited to tender In the gvent the
Commiitee was satisfied by Deloitie’s proposal and did not
proceed to the open tender stage

Going forward the Committee will continue to keep the audit
appointment under review, having regard to the new UK and
EU requirements for audit tendering

Following the above the Audit Committee has recommended
to the Board that Deloitte LLP 1s re-appointed

Group policy on the provision of non-audit services by
the Auditor

The Committee has an established policy for the
commissioning of non-audit work from the Group’s auditors

The external auditor I1s excluded from providing non-audit
services to Chime where the cbjectives of such assignments
are inconsistent with the objectives of the audit Addiionally,
no work Is awarded to the auditors which would result in an
element of self-review either during the work or via the

audit iiself

The Commitiee has agreed fee imits {both by assignment
and aggregated for the year) with management where
work may be awarded without reference to the Committee
Assignments In excess of the agreed imits require pnor
approval of the Committee

The Commitiee receives an update on non-audit work
awarded and fee levels regularly
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Internai audit

The Committee has oversight over the Group's internal
audit functton It agrees an annual audit plan and receives
updates directly from the internal audit manager at each
meeting The Committee monitors the level of resources
required to meet the demands of the growth in the Group

The Audit Committee report 1s approved on behalf of the
Audit Commuttee

Rodger Hughes
Chairman of the Audit Committee
26 March 2014




REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Charman of the Remuneration Committee’s Statement
can be found on page 54 This section forms part of the
Directars' Remuneration Report

Membership, meetings and attendance in 2013

Meetings scheduled 4
Meetings held N 7 o -__4

Attsndanct;
Rodger Hughes U o o Yofy
Lord Bavies (appointed 05/12/2013] o lofl
Clare Gilmartin (appointed 05/12/2013) o - EE
Hon Richard Alston [rES|gn;JDSIIEIEDIS] 12} ) Jof3
Paul Richardsen [resigned 26/03/2014) &  pof3

U Chairman of Commuttee
B Resigned as a Director on 31 December 2013
Ul Resigned as a Directar an 26 March 2014

When required the Chuef Executive, Chnstopher
Satterthwaite, and the Chief Operating Officer and Finance
Oirector, Mark Smith, attend meetings but are not members
During the year l.ord Davies attended two meetings as

an adwvisor prior to being appointed to the Committee

No Director 1s in attendance when their own personal
remuneration 1s discussed

Membership of the Committee

Membership of the Committee 1s reviewed by the Chairman
of the Committee and the Group Chairman at regular
intervals and where appropnate they recommend new
appointments to the Nominations Committee for assessment
and onward recommendation to the Board The Committee
1s compnsed of three independent Non-Executive Directors,
which 1s the mintmum membership required under the Terms
of Reference Two members constitute a quorum

Summary of the role of the Remuneration Committee
Rodger Hughes 1s Chairman of the Remuneration Commuittee

The Committee measures the performance of the
Executive Directors and of other key members of the
senior management as a prelude to recommending their
annual remuneration Performance 1s measured against
key performance indicators set by the Commitiee at the
beginming of the year (for further detalls see page 68)

Overview and Highlights
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The Committee 15 also responsible for overseeing the
operation and use of the Company's share based Incentive
schemes The remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors
1s recommended by the Chairman and Chief Executive and
takes account of the ime spent on Board and Commitiee
matters Final decisions are made by the Board but no
Drrector takes part in any discussion regarding his or her
own remuneration

The powers, role and responsibities delegated to the
Committee by the Board are formalised in the Committee
terms of reference (available at www chwmepic com)

The Remuneration Commuttee in 2013

The Committee met on four occasions during the year,
discharging its responsibibties through the following
activities

undertock a review of executive remuneration including
consultating with shareholders and drafting of proposals
to be put before the 2013 AGM

agreed the level of bonus awards to the Executive
Directors and Company Secretary for 2012,

reviewed and approved the maturity of the 2010 grant of
the Deferred Share Plan,

agreed the matunty of the 2008 grant of the Savings
Related Share Option Scheme,

agreed the 2013 grant of options under the Savings
Related Share Option Scheme,

considered and agreed the levels of participation and
performance targets of a grant of award under the 2010
Co-Investment Plan,

considered and agreed the key performance indicators for
each of the Executive Directors and Company Secretary
for 2013,

agreed Executive Directors’ and Company Secretary’s
safary levels for 2013,

considered appropnate salary levels for new appointees to
the Board and made recommendations to the Nominations
Committee,

considered proposals for iIncentive schemes for senor
management of the Company,

reviewed details of the remuneration of higher paid
employees seeking justification for any significant
changes, and

reappointed Towers Watson as executive remuneration
consultants to the Company

.

During the year the Committee took additional objective and
independent advice on the Remuneration Review and

the proposals put to the shareholders at the 2013 AGM
from Deloitte
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NOMINATIGNS COMMITTEE REPORT

Membership, meetings and attendance in 2013

Meatings scheduled 1
Meetings held V! o o 2

N Attendanca
Lord Davies [? " 2ofe
Rodger Hughes ~ 7 20f 2
Clare Gilmarun (appainted 05/12/2013) o2
Martin Glenn [appointed 05/12/2013) _7 __F_ 7 0 of 5
Vin Murnia [appointed 05/12/2013) N o Enﬁ
Hon Richard Alston ¥{resigned 05/13/2013] o F:_ 20f2
Paul Richardson [resigned 05/12/2013}®) o 2of 2

11 The addwional meeting was required as the Committee cansidered the
requirement, selecuon recommended appsintment and contractual terms
for new Non-Executive Directors to the Board

& Chawman from S December 2013

PtChairman 1 January ta 5 December 2013

"I Resigned as a Dwectar 31 December 2013

I Resigred as a Director 26 March 2014

Summary of the Role of tha Nominations Committee

The Commutiee 1s responsible for the formal and transparent
procedure for the appointment of Directors to the Board

It leads the process of selechion for both new Board
appointments and membership of Committees

The Committee reviews the structure, composition and size
of the Board It gwes consideraion to the appropnate level
and mix of skills and expertise and applies other critena
such as independence, diversity and level of commiment to
Its recommendations

The Committee considers any executive vacancies and
appointments with due consideration to succession planning
and evaluaies terms of applicable service contracis

Where appropriate it consults the Remuneration Commitiee
members and our external remuneration consultants, Towers
Watson on approprate levels of pay

The powers, role and responsibilities delegated to the

Committee by the Board are formalised in the Committee's
Terms of Reference (avallable at www chimeplc com)
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Appointment process

The Board has a process for Board and senior staff
appointments It takes into account the reason for

any appointment, the personal attnbutes, underlying
competencies and relevant skills required together with
governance 1ssues such as diversity and independence

The Board does not believe that the mandated use of
executwe search and selection consuliants 15 necessanly
appropriate Although use on occasion (see below) may be
beneficial

The Board was restructured in 2013 Catherine Biner
Bradley resigned in Apnl and the Committee undertook a
review of the appropriate size, structure and composition
of the Board The review took into account the revised
Group strategy - the challenges of internatignal expansion,
the customer shift tg digital platforms and, the needs of a
more diverse Group with a larger number of operating units
cutside of the UK

Foliowing the assessment, The Zygos Partnership was
engaged as executive search consuitants and tasked with
finding suitable candidates 19 potential candidates were
censidered (of which 11 were women), 7 shorthsted and
interviewed (of which 5 were women)

The Nominations Committee recommended three candidates
to the Board in August and the Board considered and
approved their appointment Martin Glenn and Vin Murra
were appointed to the Board on 22 August and Clare
Gitmartin on 18 September

In November 2013 the Committee reviewed the composition
and requirements of the three Standing Committees In

the case of the Nominations Committee itself this was
undertaken by Lord Davies and Rodger Hughes The aim of
the review was to deal with a number of 1ssues

The Audit Committee had a reduced membership of two
Directors following the resignation of Cathenine Biner Bradiey
n April The Remuneration Committee would be reduced to
two by the end of the year on the departure of Richard Alston
The composition of the Audit and Remuneration Commitiees
had been crnticised by a number of shareholders due to WPP
nominated Directors being members

The outcome of the review resulted in the three new Non-
Executive Directors taking up memberships in the standing
Commitiges and the two WPP nominated Directors stepping
down The memberships of each Committee can be found in
the Committee Reports earlier in this section




GENERAL INFORMATION

Relations with shareholders

The Company is keen {0 promote two-way communications
with its institutional and private investors and responds
quickly to queries received Chnstopher Satterthwaite,
Chief Executive, and Mark Smith, Chief Operating Officer
and Finance Director, are the Company’s prtncipal
spokespersons with investors, analysts, the press and other
Interested parties

In addition 1o direct communications with its shareholders
the Company publishes copies of all announcements and
circulars etc on the Group website, www chimeplc com
Shareholders are given ai least 21 days’ notice of the Annual
General Meeting at which all Directors are generally present
and at which questions are both invited and encouraged

The Board reviews presentatrons to be given to analysts and
shareholders and receves updates on direct contact with
shareholders

Electronic communicatiens

Shareholders have the option to recerve shareholder
communications by electronic means or to continue
receiving paper copies The Company believes this equates
with the advice it gives to its clients regarding utilising all
channels of communication and also further illustrates our
commitment to the environment by reducing the carbon
emissions assoclated with the production and delivery of
printed matter Currently 66% of our shareholders opt for
delivery electronically This represents 75% of our 1ssued
share capital

Accountability

Financial reporting

A review of the businesses in the Group 1s ncluded in

the Chief Executive’s Statement The Board uses ths,
together with the Chairman’s Statement and the Drrectors’
Report on pages 4 to 5 and 30 to 32 respectively, to
present a balanced and understandable assessment of
the Company's positicn and prospects The Directors’
responsibilities for the financial statements are described
on page 53 of the Report and Financial Statements

Internal cantrol

The Board has an established process for identifying,
evaluating and managing significant nisks faced by the
Group The Board regularly reviews the process, which
has been in place from the start of the year to the date of
approval of this report and which 1s in accordance with
revised guidance on internal control published in QOctober
2005 (the Turnbult Guidance)

Overview and Highlights
Strategy and Outlook
Performance
(Governance i
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The Board 1s responsible for the Group's system of internal
conirol and for reviewing its effectiveness

The control and nsk management procedures are designed
to highhight any weaknesses and/or fallures in the systems to
the Board at the earliest opportunity together with action taken
andfor proposed Such a system s designed to manage
rather than eliminate the nsk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against matenal misstatement or loss

Informatron on the Group's significant nisks, together with the
relevant control and monitoring procedures, 15 reviewed on
a monthly basis by the heads of the business units under
the guidance of a nominated Executive Director and/or the
Company Secretary This information 1s presented to the
Executive Directors to assess any identified nsks and the
overall effectiveness of the system of internal control An
update on all significant nsk management 1ssues 1s made

to the Board at each quarterly meeting

Additionally, companies annually complete a review of
specified nsk areas and ther local nsk management
processes under the supervision of divisional management,
the Group Internal Audiior and the Company Secretary The
Audit Committee monitors and investigates potential areas
of nsk raised by the trading companies, internat audit and
by the Group's centralised administrative functions such as
legal services, human resources and IT at each meeting

The Board recognises the need to ensure that established
risk management procedures and standards are integrated
o all acquired businesses and accordingly potential areas
of non-compliance are identified during the due diligence
process and addressed post-completion

A review of the internal audit function has been conducted
and reported to the Board within the annual review of the
system of internal controls Recommended changes to
the scope and application of internal audit procedures
have been adopted The internal audit programme for the
year has been presented to and approved by the Audit
Committee

The Group 1s now 2 worldwide business and the Executive
Drrectors continue to review new international oppor tunities
The Audit Committee has broadened the scope of work

of both the internal audit funchions and the systems of nsk
management in order to ensure standards of control are
maintained throughout the enlarged Group Control of the
overseas businesses is currently effected by designated
senior executives reporting directly to the Board
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Gwven the nature of the Group's activities, the Board
recogmses the nsks associated with (s ability to attract,
motivate and retain talented employees Accordingly, a
significant part of the Group's nsk management processes
are focused In this area and the Group continues to utiise
employee benefits schemes shown on pages 126 and 129
to help meet this requirement

The rsk management process

The Group has material investments in a small number of
assocliated companies thal are not managed by the Group
Accordingly, the Group can only Influence, not control, their
management practices and therefore the review of internal
controls for these operations 1s less comprehensive than that
for the Group's managed operations

Financial contral
The financial control procedures are descrnbed under the
following five headings

1 Financial reporiing - The Group has a comprehensive
system for reporting financial results to the Board,

each trading company prepares monthly results with a
comparison against budget The Board reviews these

for the Group as a whole and by operating segment and
determines appropriate aclion Towards the end of each
financial year the operating units prepare detailed budgets
for the following year Budgets and plans are reviewed

and necessary changes made by the Board before being
adopied formally

2 Qualty and integrity of personnel — One of the Group’s
core values 1s Iniegnity, this 1s regarded as vital lo the
maintenance of the Group's system of internal financial
control and 1s reflected in the quality and experience of the
Group's financial staff

3 Operating umnit financial controls — Key controls over

major business nsks include reviews against performance
indicators and exception reporing The trading compantes
regularly assess their exposure to major business risks and
appropriate action 1s taken both at operating and Group level
in order {o ensure that nsk 1s minimised as far as possible

4 Electroruc Data Systems -~ The Group's financial and
management information 1s processed by and stored on
data systems Accordingly, the Group has established
controls and procedures over the secunity of data held The
Group has put in place arrangements for processing to
continue and data to be retained in the event of complete
fallure of any system

5 Controls over central functions - A number of the Group’s
key functions, including treasury, taxation, acquisitions and
insurance, are dealt with centrally Each of these functions
has clear and detalled procedures and 1s required to report
to the Board on & regular bass, the treasury details are
reported daily io the Finance Director

Additional information

Further information regarding the contents of this report 1s
availlable on the Group website www chimeplc com, or from
the Company Secretary on request

Fair, balariced and understandable

The Board believes the disclosures set out on pages 21 and
25 of the annual report provide the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the Company's performance,
business and strategy

Application of the principles of the Code

The Company has applied the principles set out in section
1 of the Code, Including both the main prnciples and the
supporting principles, by complying with the Code as
reporied above

Statement of comphance with the Code

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2013, the
Company has been in comphance with the Code provisions
set out In the 2012 UK Corporate Governance Code, except
for prowision D 1 2 — Executive Directars’ remuneration

for external non-executive directorships 1s not stated, as
this information is available in the financial statements

of the companies concerned (Alsc see the Direclor's
Remuneratton Report on page 54 )

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf
of the Board

Rohert Davison
Group Secretary
26 March 2014
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Directars’ Respansibilities Statement

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual
Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicabte law and regulations Having taken advice from
the Audit Committee, the Board considers the Report
and Accounts, taken as a whole, to be farr, balanced

and understandable and that it provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's
performance, business and sirategy”

Company law requires the Directors i¢ prepare such
financial statements for each financial year Under that iaw
the directors are required to prepare the group financial
statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and have also
chosen tg prepare the parent company financial statements
under [FRSs as adopted by the European Union Under
company law the directors must not approve the accounts
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss
of the company for that penod In prepanng these financial
statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requires
that drrectors

properly select and apply accounting policies,

present nformation, Including accounting pelicies, In a
manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information,

provide addiional disclosures when comphiance with the
specific reguirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable
users to understand the impact of particular transactions,
other events and conditions on the entity's financial
position and financial performance, and

make an assessmen! of the company’s ability to continue
as a going concern

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any hme the financral position of the company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Comparies Act 2006 They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities

Cverview and Highkghts
Strategy and Qutlook
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The directors are responstble for the maintenance and
integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the company's website Legislation in the United Kingdom
goverring the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions

Oirectars’ rasponsihility statement
We confirm that lo the best of our knowledge

1 the financial statements, prepared In accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the EU, give a true and fair view of the assets, labiltties,
financial position and profit or loss of the company and
the undertakings included in the consohdation taken as a
whale,

2 the strategic report, includes a farr review of the
development and performance of the business and the
position of the company and the undertakings included
in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a
description of the pnncipal nsks and uncertainties that
they face, and

3 the annual report, fair review of the business and financial
statements, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and
understandable and provide the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the Company's performance,
business model and strategy

By order of the Board

Christopher Satterthwaite
Chief Executive
26 March 2014

Mark Smith
Chief Operating Officer and Finance Director
26 March 2014
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Introduction to the Directors’ Remuneration Report

Diractors’ Remuneraticn Report
This report sets out the Group's remuneration policies for
Directors for the year ended 31 December 2013

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

2013 saw the membership of the Committee change with
our Chairman, Lord Davies, and Clare Gilmartin joining as
members in December Richard Alston and Paul Richardson
stepped down at that ime and | would like to personally
thank them for their valuable contnibutions during their time
on the Committee

Like many companies we have worked 10 develop our
remuneration policies dunng 2013 In preparation for new
reporting requirements We have bullt on the remuneration
review undertaken last yvear, the results of which were put to
shareholders at last year's AGM To surnmanse our work

Palicy

Following the change of leadership we sought to put in
place remuneration policies for Executive Directors aligned
to strategy whilst retaining the link to the creation of
shareholder value The resulting changes cluded a move to
a greater proportion of vanable pay, the deferral of 50% of
bonuses n restricted shares and the setting of shareholding
requirements for each of the Directors

Shareholders have different views and we have attempted
o reftect the positon of the majenty Our proposals iast
year were modified in the light of the views expressed in
our censultations with shareholders The palicy being put
forward for approval at the farthcoming AGM does not
contain any major changes from the 2013 review but some
of the details have been modified further to reflect the
comments received and to provide additional ¢lanty
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2013

Last year we set challenging targets for the Executive
Dhrectors and the profit target was not met, despite four of
the five dvisians outperforming Based on performance
against the other KPI targets we awarded 33 3% of the
maximum bonus having regard to the broader context,
including unantictpated events such as the successful
acquisition of JMI

2014

As set out In the report which follows, the Executive
Directors’ salanes, pension contributions and general level
of benefits will remain unchanged from 2013, and bonus
performance targets have been set, 50% relating 1o profits
and 50% based on KPIs

The 2011 Co Investment Plan award witl vest on 1 September
2014, at 34 3% of the maximum We shall make awards
under the Performance Share Plan in 2014 of 200% of salary

for Chnistopher Satterthwaite and 175% to Mark Srruth with

stretching EPS and TSR targets weighted equally

The future

Going forward we hope the structure we have putin
place will stand the test of time but we shall keep 1t under
review, monitoring developments in the marketplace {(with
the assistance of Towers Watson) We value the views

of shareholders and | would welcome comments and/or
qguestions at the forthcoming AGM or at any time

Rodger Hughes
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
26 March 2014




The Remuneration Committee

The Committee Report for 2013, together with detaits of
membership of the Committee can be found in the Directors'
Statement on Corporate Governance on page 38 That
section forms part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to
be put to shareholders for approval at the forthcoming AGM

The Committee 1s responsible for ensuring there 1s a formal,
rigorous and transparent procedure for the development
and implementation of policy on executive remuneration

It takes its lead from the Board in inking remuneration to
the achievement of strategic goals

The full Terms of Reference of the Committee are available
on the Company website www chimepic com

The Committee retains the services of Towers Watson to
provide specialist and therd party advice Towers Watson
provide insight to best practice, incentive plan design and
implementation and, formulaic calculations of performance
against our TSR comparator groups The Committee deems
Towers Watson's advice to be objective and independent

Aims of remuneration

The aim of our remuneration arrangements Is to attract,
motivate, reward and retain executive talent In doing so
the Commuittee takes into account market trends and best
practice

There are six main elements of the remuneration packages
for Executive Direciors

+ basic annual salary,

* pension arrangements,

* benefits {other than pension),
» annual bonus payments,

+ deferred share incentives, and
* long-term incentive plans

Overview and Highights
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Remuneration policy For Executive Directors

Executive remuneration was the subject of a formal review
by the Remuneration Committee in early 2013 following the
development of a revised Group strategy and changes to
the Board The main cutcomes of the review approved by
shareholders at the 2013 AGM were

= there 13 an increased emphasis on vanable pay linked to

the achievement of the strategy with base salaries frozen

until no earher than January 2016,

there 1S an increase in the maximum bonus opportunity

from 50% to 100% of salary subject to stretching PBT

targets and achievement of strategic KPls

at least 50% of any bonus earned 15 deferred into shares

for a period of three years to further align Executive

Directors’ interests with those of shareholders,

long-term incentive awards shall be made under a

new Performance Share Plan with a longer performance

period of at least four years and a delay to full vesting of

five years, and

+ formal shareholding requirements for Executive Directors
were Infroduced

Proposed policy

Al the AGM on 15 May 2014 we are seeking shareholders’
approval of our Directors’ Remuneration Policy, as set out in
the next section of this report The main substance of gur
policy I1s as approved by sharenolders at the 2013 AGM
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Remuneration Policy

The table befow summarises our proposed Remuneration Policy to be put before shareholders at our AGM 1n May 2014 If
approved the Policy will apply for three years from the AGM in 2014 Any changes required dunng the life of the policy will be
put befare shareholders n general meeting

Salary
Recognises and rewards the status, skills and experience of the individual and therr cnticality to the success of the Group
Link to Broup strategy Policy and operation Maximum opportunity
Facilitates the recruitment and Base salanes should be competitive relative to market peer In normal circumstances increases
retention of the nght peopte for groups and the salanes of Group Divisional Heads to Executive Orrectors will be similar
senor roles to those awarded to the broader
In setting salary levels, the Committee considers employee population
» the expertence and responstbility of the Executive Directors,
« their personal perfermance dunng the previous year, The current salanes payable to the
«+ salary levels within companies of a simiar size and nature, Executive Directors are frozen unt!
« the rates of increases for other employees n the Group, at least January 2016 (The last
+ specific retention or recruitment 1Issues and increases were awarded in July

in the case of Chnstopher Satterthwaite, the proportion of is  2012)

time spent on fee earning chent work and the management of

key chents Only in exceptional circumstances
such as a significant change In

The Commiitee reviews salanes with effect from January each year responstilities, significant growth

within the Group or pencds of
sustained wnfiation Increases In
excess of those awarded to the
broader employee population may
be considered by the Commuttee

Dlscretﬁm
The Committee retains discretion to grant salary increases but only within the confines of the circumstances detalled above

Pension

Provides market-competitive funding for retirement

Link to Group strategy Policy and operation Maximum opportunity
Faciitates the recrutment and Executive Directors are entitled to an employer pension 20% of basic salary
retention of the nght people for contrnibution of up to 20% of salary Only basic salary is

senior roles pensionable

Employer pension contnbutions can be pad into a Group Money
Purchase or Group Personal Pension Plan However, depending on
Executives personal circumstances the Committee may agree that
the employer pension contntutions are pad in1o the indmwvidual’s
chosen pension vehicle or as a cash allowance in heu of a pension
contnibution

Discretion
The Committee retains discretion (o grant pension contiibutions up to 20% of salary
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Benefits (excluding pension)
Protects against risks and provides other benefits as part of a market-competitive remuneration package

Link to Group strategy Policy and operation Maximum opportunity
Facilitates the recruitment and Benefits provision for Executive Directors can include In the regular course of events
retention of the nght people for + medical benefits, including cover for spouse & children subject  the total value of benefits provided '
senior roles to scheme restrnctions!™ {excluding pension) will be no more
- life assurance!’, than 15% of salary, although this
« permanent health insurance® may be ncreased in the event
+ transport-related benefits including parking space and access of a matenal change to the costs
o car and dnver when required for business purposes, of prowision
« such other benefits as the Commitee deems to be appropriate,
subject to the value of such benefits not exceeding 15% of In exceptional circumstances such
salary when tolalled all other benefits provided excluding as relocation, the value of benefits
relocation and repatnation expenses and provision may exceed the stated
» reimbursement of reasonably incurred business expenses percentage of salary
(ncluding those linked to relocation and repatrnation) where
approved by the Commitiee
Discratinn

The Commitiee retains discretion to provide benefits to the Executive Directors withun the 15% cap Flexibility is required w order to meet plan
and underwniting costs/requirements Addiionally but only in exceplional circumstances (e g due to the costs of insurance preniums, or
policy design) the cap of 15% may be exceeded

Notes

" These classes of benefits are available to the general staff population of the Group
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Remuneration Policy

continued

Annual benus plan

Focuses on the achievement of the Company's short-term business objectives and the performance of Executive Directors 1n

achieving those targets

Link to Group strategy

Policy and operation Maximum opportunity

Rewards the achievement of
annual Group performance
against targets that are linked
to Group strategy and financial
parfarmanca

The deferral of 50% of any bonus
earmed by Executive Directors into
shares for a penod of three years
encourages retention and further
aligns the interests of Directors
with those of shareholders

The annual bonus aflocatien for Executive Directors 1s capped
at 100% of salary Al least 50% of the maximum bonus will half paid in cash and half deferred
be based on financial metncs for the financial year with the in shares under the Deferred Share
remaining half assessed agamst KPIs These may be common Plan

aor indredual to the Directars cancerned

Up to 100% of basic salary with

Each year the Committee will determine the performance targets
for the payment of the bonus Financial targets will be set, taking
Into account relevant factors such as market expectations,
previous perfarmance and the internal budget Adjustments
required for acquisitions and disposals may be taken into account
at the time of the relevant event but only where such adjustments
are reqguired in order that the targets retain their original purpose
and the resulting adjusted targets are not matenally less difficult
10 achueve

The Committee will set at least four KPls for each Executive
Director inked to the Company's strategic targets KPls may
change each year depending on strategic prionties and whilst
most targets will be financial, behavioural targets may also be set

In assessing performance aganst KPIs the Remuneration
Committee will have regard to therr relative importance n
performance during the year in question, but will not waight any
one KPI more than 30% of the total

A maximum award wilf only be made for cverachievement ¥f the
performance targets are achieved approximately 60% of the
maximum possible bonus will be paid

Far threshold levels of financial performance approximately 30%
of the maximum may be payable

The Committee reserves the nght to make adjustmenits to the
bonus payable in respect of achievement of performance
targets taking into account events durning the year and the overall
shareholder expernience

50% of any bonus earned s payable in cash, with the remaming
50% payable in deferred Company shares under the Deferred
Share Plan, for three years from the date of grant Vesting of

the shares 1s subjeci to continued employment Where beneficial
awnership 1s transferred to the participant guning the deferred
penod as provided under the rules of the Ptan, dividends

are payable

Discretion

The Committee retains discretion within the imits descnbed above on the nature and weighting of targets, the level awarded against
performance and, adjusiments made to performance targets due to acquisiions andfor disposals (e g affecting proftt performance} The
Committee may increase the proportion of bonus to be paid in deferred shares The Committee has the ability to exercise discretion to
overnde the formulaic bonus outcome within the imiis of the Bonus Plan where 1t believes the outcome 1s not truly reflective of performance
and {0 ensure farrness to both shareholders and parhcipants

The Committee witt apply judgement in assessing an individual’s performance agamnst the KP\s agreed for the year when the nature of the
targets means they are not quantfiable

Clawback and malus provisions

The Committee has the discretion to require the Executive Directors to repay some or all of any net bonus amount paid {the ‘Clawback"}
should new facts come to ight after the payment of the bonus which result either in the adverse restating of Company results or which
materially and adversely change the faciual data by which the Commitiee has measured the Executive's performance In each case of
adjustment the Committee will act proportionately to the relevant correction 10 good fath towards the Exacutive and within twa years from
the end of the performance year in question The Clawback provisions on awards made under the Deferred Share Plan apply only to awards
made to Executive Directors after 2013
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Long-term incentive plan - the performance share plan 2013 ['PSP’]
Ensures a direct link between executive reward and shareholder returns

Lirk to Group stratagy Policy and operation Maximum opportunity

Rewards growth in sharehoider The PSP shalt be operated 1n accordance with the Plan rules The maximum award of shares to

value over a multi-year penod as approved by sharehalders on 15 May 2013 Awards to a participant in a year I1s set by the
Executive Directors can be released spht over four and five Remuneration Committee but will be

Long-term performance years (see below) no more than 200% of basic salary

conditons, deferred vesting and

the malus conditions discourage Awards are subject to the satisfaction of performance conditions

excessive nsk-taking and align the  which will determine the propertion (if any) of the Award to vest

interests of Direclors with those of

shareholders Awards are subject to a mimimum of a four year performance
penad with 50% vesting as soon as practicable after the
announcement of the preliminary annual resulis for the final year
The remaining 50% 1s subject to an additional retention penod of
a further 12 months before vesting as scon as practicable after the
preliminary announcement of results for the following year

Awards made from 2013 to 2017 will be subject to targets refating
to headhne EPS and to TSR taking analysts’ expectations into
account Weighting between the two targets will be between 40%
-60% A broad index deemed most appropnate by the Committee
for comparative TSR purposes wit! be set at the ime of each
award cycle Thresholds at which awards will vest will be set by the
Committee each year and may differ from year to year Threshold
performance will result in vesting at 25% of the maximum award

For and on each award the Commuttee may agree that dividends
will accrue dunng the pertod te vesting and be payable o the
participants

Discretion
The Committee may amend or substitute perfermance targets If one or more events occur which cause the Cammittee to consider that it
would be appropnate Any amended or substiuted performance condition should not be matenally less difficult to satisfy

The Committee has imited discretion over the methadology used in assessing EPS and TSR performance In accordance with the PSP rules
and this may affect the formulaic outcome Such discretion will only be used in order that targets retain their onginal purpose and are not
matenally less difficult to achreve

The Committee retains the night to use Its jJudgement In assessing performance agamst targets 1n order to ensure a fair outcome n relation
to overall sharehotder experience

At any point before the 1ssue or transfer of Award Shares, the Remuneration Committee may decide to pay a participant a cash amount
egual to the value of the Shares he would otherwise have received following vesting

Clawback and malus provisions

Additionally, the Committee may, at its discretion prior to the vesting of an Award made under the PSP, reduce the number of Award shares,
cancel an Award or impose further condition on an Award The circumstances in which the Remuneration Committee may exercise this
discretion include a matenal misstatement of the Company s audited results a matenal fallure of sk management by the Company or by a
member or business unit of the Company s group, or senous reputational damage to the Company or by a member or business unit of the
Company's Group
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Remuneration Policy

continued

Long-term incentive plan - co-investment plan 2010 ('CIP)
Ensures a direct ink between executive reward and shareholder returns

Link to Group strategy

Rewards growth in shareholder
value and aligns tnterests

of Directors with those of
shareholders

For Executive Directors the
Performance Share Ptan has
replaced the Co-Investment Plan
for LTIP awards from 2013

Policy and operation

Maximum opportunity

The CIP 2010 i1s an annual ‘reling’ plan with discretionary share
awards made to senior employees (including but not mited to
Executive Directors) Participants receive an award of shares
which vesi afler a three-year performance penod subjecti 1o the
achtevement of demanding performance conditrons sel by the
Committee for each award Partcipants are required to maintain
an investrment in the Company throughout the vesting penod For
Executive Directors this investment 1s 25% of each award under
the Plan

Awards made in 2011 and 2012 were subject to a target of EPS
growth in excess of CPl For the achievement of between CPI
+5% to CPl +12% payout would be in the range of 30-100% of
the award There will be no payout for below CPl +5%

For TSR, maximum payout will result from the achievement of
the Company being placed at or above the 75™ percentile of the
Comparator Group 30-100% of payout pro rata from achieving
median to 75" percentite and, nil for below median placement

Discretion

The maximum award of shares to
a participant in a year 1S set by the
Remuneratran Committee but will
normally be no more than 100% of

basic salary

For the remaining awards the EPS

Target for 100% payout are

EPS Growth of CPl plus 12% and
achieving TSR Performance at or

above the 75" percentile of the
Comparator Group

The Committee may change the performance targels or measures in the event it 1s deemed far and reasonable to do so, on the basis that the
condiions are not matenally easier or more difficult to achieve

Notes

This 1s no longer an active plan for Executive Directors Awards made in 2011 mature in 2014 and awards made 1n 2012 mature In 2015

The onginal Comparator Group included Bloomsbury Publishing. Centaur Media, Creston, Future, Huntsworth, ITE Group, Tarsus Group,

Wilmington Group Cello Group, M&C Saatchi, Next Fifteen Chrysalis Group and Media Squared Both Chrysalis and Media Squared

delisied in 2011

Savings Related Share Option Scheme
Offers all UK-based employees who meet service and tax qualfications the opportunity to build a shareholding 1n a tax-

efficient way

Link to Group strategy

Policy and opsration

Encourages investment in Company UK based Executive Directors are elrgible to participate in the
Company's Save As You Earn (SAYE) scheme on the same
basis as all other UK based employees

shares

The option price is usually discounted by 20%

The Committee may decide to make irvitations followang either

N any gven year

of the preliminary announcement of annual results or the intenm
announcement The Committee may decide not to make an invitation

Discretion

The Committee has the discretion o decide the hmit of shares available for any given imatabion to staff, to amend the quahfying penod of

Maximum opportunity

The current Company saving

maximum in practice 1s £1 200

per year, although this could be

increased to the scheme maximum
of £6,000 per year in ine with HMRC

SAYE hmits

employment for participation, and to set the maximum savings amount per individual participant

Notes

The scheme 15 open to all UK based staff meeting tax cnitena and a qualfying period of employment
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Use of discretion and judgemant Executive remuneration in relation to the broader

The Commuttee, 1n line with market practice, and through employee population

the operation of the prewiously agreed the vanous Plan The Commitiee has regard forincreases to employee salary
rules retans discretion over a number of factors within the levels and employee bonus arrangements In reaching
cperation and administration of the Plans noted above This decisions about Executive Directors’ remuneration No

may result in the override of the formulaic outcome of both specific comparison metrics are used We operate a people
short and long term incentives business in which the knowledge and retationships held by

key individuals are frequently witally important to the success
The Commuttee shall only exercise such discretion provided of the business Therefore, within the general employee

within the previously approved Plan rules and this Policy population, mndmdual salanes are set mainly by taking

where il 1s In the interests of sharehoiders to do so Such Into account market levels, changes in responsibility, and

discretion shall not be exercised to reward failure but io importance to chent relationships etc Similar factors are

address changes in circumstances unforeseen by the taken into account In setting Executive pay

Committee Any use of such discretion shall be reported to

shareholders in the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the The rate for Executive Directors' employer pension

appropriate year contributions 1s higher than that of the broader employee
population — this reflects market practice for semor
executives

Sirmidar insurance-related benefils are avallable 1o a large
proportion of Group employees

Employees are not consulied on the remuneration of the
Executive Directors

Sharsholding requiremants
Ensures a direct link between mdividuals’ capital investments and that of shareholders

Link to Group strategy Policy and oparation Maximum opportunity
Share ownership aligns the The Committee has set shareholding guidelines for the Non- Chairman
Directors interests with those of Executive Charrman and for Executive Directors £100,000 per annum investment
shareholders and provides an in Chime shares to a target of
incentive for capital growth and the These provide a target invesiment as a percentage of salary £300 Q00 by December 2015 and to
avaidance of nsks and a penod to achieve the target be held at that tevel thereafter
For the Non-Executive Chairman, £50,000 of his annual fee Chief Executiva
must be invested in Chime shares and he must make a matching  To 300% of salary by December
iwvestment in each year until the requirement 1s met 2017 and to be held thereaiter

Chief Operating Officer and Finance
Director

To 250% of salary by December
2017 and to be held thereafter

Discretion
For the Executive Directors they must achieve the target investment by the target date but may divest from their current holdings with the pnor
permusston of the Board and Committee Chairman

Notes
The current shareholdings of the directors are shown on page 71
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Remuneration Policy

continued

External Directorships

Provides executives with broader experience of business operations and assists personal development

Link to Group strategy

Policy and operation

Maximum opportunity

Exposure to other organisations
provides insight into a balanced
view of Chime’'s business

and assists in the personal
development of Chime's
executives

Pesiions in other organisations must have the prior appraval
of the Chairman of the Board Where fees are payable by the
external organisation the Board shall agree whether these may
be retained by the executive concerned

Positions held may have different
levels of fees

Currentty Christopher Satterthwarte
1s Non-Executive Charr of the
Roundhouse Trust, a Director of
Business in the Community (both
of which are unremunerated) and
the Senior independent Directar of
Centaur Media plc

Mark Smith 1s the Non-Executive
Chair of Holiday Extras Investments
l.td

The fees where paid, recevable for
those appointments are avalable

in the financial statements of those
organisations

Discretion

The Chairman may not approve appointments if following assessment, there 1s a conflict of interest, a tme comm#ment which f met would
distract from the applicable Chime role, or for any other reason

Remuneration of Non-Executive Diractors
Facilitates the recruitment and retention of suitable calibre Non-Executives to the Board

Link to Group strategy

Policy and operation

Mzomum opportunity

To provide a qualfied well
balanced independent Board of
sufficient calbre and expenence
to deliver strategic leadership o
the Group

Non-Executive Directors are paid a fee for ther directorship
and additionally for membership of the Audt and/or the
Remuneraton Committees and as Senior Independent Director
The Norminations Committee does not attract an additional fee

The Chairman is not paid supplementary fees for Committee
memberships

WPP nominated directors are unremunerated

Non-Executive Direclors may not participate in incentive or
pension schemes

Nan-Executive Director fees are reviewed evary two years in the
hght of market levels (the last review tock place in August 2013)

There 15 no opportunity beyond the
agreed fees and the overall limit set
out In the Articles of Association

Discretion

The Board may agree that a Director sit on one or more Committee The Commitiee may agree additional fees where additional work or
time commitment (s required such additional fees shall be disclosed together wath a descrption of the wark undertaken in the applicable

financial report
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The table below outlings the Cempany’s policy on the remuneration arrangements for new Executive Directors
The Committee considers the current 12 month notice period that applies to each of the current Executive Directors
to be adequate 10 recrult new Direclors

Remuneration element

Policy on recruitment

Salary

The Committee will offer a market-related salary as necessary to attract high calibre individuals, taking
inte acceunt the skills and expenence of the indwiduals and in line with the factors cansiderad when
evaluatng the salaries of existing Executive Directors

Benefits

A benefits package in ine with its pohicy for existing Executive Directors will be offered, although where
indimvduals are not based in the UK adjustments may be made to reflect local market practices

Additionally the Committee may approve a relocation package including paying for family fights,
accommodation allowance, removal costs and visa assistance etc

Pension

The maximum contrbution will be 1In ine with the Company’s policy for existng Executive Directors

Incentive pay

The Committee wilt offer the ability to earn a bonus in ine with the policy for existing Executive Directors
and they will be eligible to participate in the PSP To attract the best candidate, the Committee may offer
bonus ar PSP awards in excess of the maximums permitted for existing Executive Directors subject to
the maximum vanable annual remuneration opportunity for new recruits totalling no more than 300% of
salary

Honounng existing commitments

Where the new Executive Director 1s relinquishing existing incentives granted by a previous employer
the Committee may consider a compensaton arrangement on a case-by-case basis The resulting
payment wili endeavour to equal the value foregone by the executive and may use a mixture of cash
and shares and, where possible, awards will be periormance-related

For internal promotions to the Board we will respect prior contractual arrangements Any commitments
made prior to appointment and not relating to appointrment will be allowed to pay out according to the
terms under which they were made, subject to applhicable incentive plan rules
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Remuneration Policy
continued

Exit payments

This table sets out our policy on exit payments in relation to each remuneration element for Executive Directors Any payments
on early termination of service contracts for the Executive Directars and of any employee, would be in line with contractual
and statutory requirements The terms of the service contracts of the Executive Directors and the letters of appomtment of
the Non-Executive Directors' provide for termination by giving of notice, but do not include compensation for loss of office ar
employment In the event of termmation by the Company, Executive Directors may be entilled to compensation in respect of
their statutory nights under employment protection legislation in addition to their contractual nghts

The Remuneration Commitiee considers that the 12 month notice penod that applies to Executive Directors gives a Director
an appropnate degree of protection in the event of a termination by the Company and 1s consistent with market practice

Type of remuneration Treatment on axit

Salary, Benefits and Pension/ Salary benefits and pension contridution/pension allowance will ba paid over the nctice period The
Pension Allowance Group has the discretion to make a lump sum payment in heu of notice to an equivalent value The
Group may seek to mtigate the payment due }

Annual Bonus including Deferred  Subject to assessment of performance against targets by the Committee, Executive Directors are

Shares eligible to receive the Annual Bonus iIf they are employed on the last date of the financial year If the
Group operates its nght to make a payment in lreu of notice prior to the end of the annual performance
penod, an assessment of performance against targets will be made by the Committee and any bonus
determined to be payable will be paid pro rata to penod of service

Any bonus amounts previously awarded and deferred in shares will be released 1n accordance with the
rules of the Deferred Share Plan

For permitted reasons (e g death, retwement, ill-health, iyucy or disability or redundancy) the Commuttee
may determine the end of the deferral pened for a given award to be the date of the terminaiion of
contract The Commitiee has the discretion to reduce the number of Award Shares pro-rata to the
penod of service dunng the deferral penod

In the event of a change of control or hquidation the Deferral Penod will be deemed to have come tg an
end on thal date and the Award Shares will be released The Commitles may decide that the number of
Shares subyect to the award will be reduced pro rata to the actual performance penod

LTIP ~ Co-Investment Plan If a participant ceases 1o be employed within the Group for any reason other than one justifying
summary cisrmissal, he will be entitted 1o retain any award that has already matured If a participant
No new awards will be made to ceases to be employed within the Group before an award has matured, his award will lapse unless

Executive Directors under iis Plan  ne leaves for a permitted reason Examples of permitted reasons are death, f-nealth, injury, disability,
redundancy Where a participant leaves for a permitted reason, his award will be reduced on a pro rata
basis by his service during the performance penod unless the Committee decides to make a smaller or
larger reduction (including no reduction at all) having regard 10 such factors as it considers relevant

The participant's award will vest according to the performance targets measured over the normal
performance penod unfess the Committee decides that the performance targets will be measured 1o
another date as the Committee may decide 1s more appropnate

In the event of a change of control of the Group the number of shares to vest may be reduced pro rata
to the Director's service dunng the performance penod The performance penod sha!l be shortened

to the penod of the Director s service within the performance penod on a pro fata basis unless the
Committee decides that the award will vest to a greater or lesser extent having regard to such factors as
it considers relevant

Participants may, with the agreement of the acquinng company surrender their awards in return for
substitute awards over shares in the acquining company If, immediately following the change of control,
not less than 75% of the shareholders of the acquinng company are the same as the shareholders in
the Group immediately before the change of controt and participants are offered or granted substitute
awards, the Committee may decide that unvested awards will not vest

LTIP - Performance Share Plan If the Executive Director ceases to be an officer or employee of the Group by reason of njury, il-health,
disability or for any other reason at the Commitiee s discretion (except where a participant 1s dismissed
lawfully without notice), he wili be a *Good Leaver |In these circumstances the Executive s unvested
awards wall normally continue untl the normal vesting date, although the Remuneration has the discretion
to determine that the Awards will vest as soon as reasonably practicable within a year of the termination
date The Commitiee will decide the extent to which an unvested Award vests taking into account the
extent to which the performance condiiens are satisfied Unless the Committee exercises its discretion tg
deciwde othenwmse, the praportion of the angunat Performance Penod that has elapsed on the termination
date will 250 be taken into account in determirng the exdent 1o which an unvested Award vests Vested
nil-cost options will be subject to a s1x month penod where the participant may exercise the oplion
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Exacutive Director total remuneravuon at different lavels of performance

Christopher Satterthwarte — Chief Executive Officer

Minmum

OnTarget  [3 | R B

Abcve Target [ B8 | A7

£ 000s 500 | 750 | 1000 | 1250 | 1500 | 1750 | 2000 | 2250 |

Mark Smith - Chief Operating Officer and Financial Director

Minimum R
On Target e sd ey I T

00| 750 | 1000 | 1250 | 1500 | 1750
Fixed remuneration . Bonus . Long-term incentive plans

£ 000s

Service contracts
The following tatle summarises the dates and notice periods for each Director’s contract

Date of Board Contract Campany Executive
appaintment date notice period notice penod
Executive Directors
Chnistopher Satterthware December 2062 5 September 2013 12 months 12 months
Mark Smuth June 1994 5 September 2013 12 months 12 manths
Non-Executive Directors
Lord Davies {Chairman] December 2012 8 December 2012 3 months 3 months
Rodger Hughes July 2007 1 July 2007 3 menths 3 months
Claire Gilmartin September 2013 15 September 2013 3 manths 3 rnonths
Martin Glenn August 2013 8 August 2013 3 months 3 months
Vin Murria —August 2013 8 August 2015 T —3 months 3 manths
Christopher Sweatland o July 2012 Linked to WPP -

shareholding

Director appointments are subject to Board approval and election by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting following
appaintment and, thereafter, by annual re-election
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Directors’ Remuneration in 2013

Salary B Faas Benefita Bonus
£ £
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Executive Directors
Christopher Satterthwaite 525 000 512,500 22103 23,786 174 a5 393,750
Mark Smith 31 375000 350000 28,759 29,022 124875 281 2508
Non-Executive Directors (1)
Lard Davies [Chairman) ¢50,000@ 63 0778 - - - -
Rodger Hughes al 4] _ _
(Senior Independent Directar) 53750 145000 ) B
Clare Gilmartin
(3l - - - - -
rappointed 18 09 2013) e
Martin Glenn
3 - - - - -
(appointed 22 08 2013] 14.827
Vin Murria 03] - _ - - -
{appointed 22 08 2013) 14.827
Paul Richardson _ _ _ - _ B
(resigned 26 03 2014] i
Christapher Sweetland - - - - - -
Hon Richard Alstan
resigned 31 12 2013] 30.000 3eooo - - - -
Catherine Biner Bradley 11250 30,000 _ _ _ )

(resigned 30 04 2013)

™ Changes to the membership of Committees were made on 5 December 2013
1 The remunerabion of Lord Davies includes a commitment by the Company to pay £50,000 of his fees in shares There are no direct restrictions on sale of these
shares However Lord Davies contract includes commitment by him 1o make a matching investment each year and for hus investment in the Company to be

£300 Q00 by the end of Apnl 2015 for 2013 The shares will be purchased in the market after the prelyminary announcement of the 2013 results

M Changes to the level of fees payable to Directors were effective from August 2013
“ Payments to Rodger Hughes in 2012 were in respect of his duties as the Senior Independent Director as Chairman of the Special and Standing Committees
and as Intenm Group Chairman (1 July to & December 2012)

& Awarded in shares deferred for three years

® At the 2013 AGM shareholders approved payment of a discretionary bonus to the Executive Directors Of the totals shown £196 875 was paid to Chnstopher

Satterthwane n deferred shares Mark Smith was paid £140 €25 n deferred shares

M Chnstopher Satterthwaite recevedt £165,000 in cash as a pension aliowance Mark Smith receved £25 000 n cash as a pension allowance and an additional
£50 000 paid into his pension vehicle Where payments to pension schemes were made those retirement schemes are money purchase schemes

©34 3% of maximum approved for release resuting in 97 153 shares vesting for Chnistopher Satterthwaite and 63,158 for Mark Smith The value of the vesting
shares 1s based on average share prce 1 October - 31 December 2013 £3 17 The shares do not vest untl Septernber 2014 The actual vaiue on vesting will

be reported in the 2014 Annual Report

mMark Smith is currently a participant in the Savings-Retated Share Option Scheme from the grant in 2002 with 8,995 shares under gption This 1s not included

above as the exercise period falls in 2014
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Total 31 Total

Emofumants excl Pension  Pansion Cantnbutions and Allowances Long Term Incentves Dacember 31 Dacember

£ £ E £ £

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

721928 830,036 _ 105,00001 90000 308,247 & 737363 1135175 1,020,036

2288634 660 272 750000 70000 200,387 1@ 456798 804021 730272
63,077 - - - - T

53,720 146,000 - - - - 53750 145 000

11,801 - - - - - 11,801 -

14827 - - - - - 14,827 -

14,827 - - - - - 14,827 -

300aa 30000 - - - - 30 0ao 30,000

11250 30000 - - - - 11250 30 000
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Directors’ Remuneration in 2013
continued

Salary and fees

Increases were last made to Chnstopher Satterthwarte and
Mark Sruth in July 2012 In 2013 changes were made to
varnable pay elements and, as part of these arrangements,
no salary increases will be made until 2016 The Executive
Director's salaries are shown on page 66

Buring 2013 the Board membership changed with three new
Non-Executive Directors joining m August and September
and two Directors retining during the year On recruiting

the new directors, the Nominations and Remuneration
Committees considered the market rate for the calibre

of candidates considered and the time commitment
required from the appointees This assessment resulted in
an amendment to the fees payable to our Non-Executive
Directors as follows

£
Non-Executive Chairman T 250,000
Seror Independent Director - 55000
Nan-Executive Director T 40 000
Committee membership ST 5000

WPP norminated Directors are unremunerated The Charrman
does not receive supplementary fees for Committee
membership Committee fees are not payable for the
membership of the Nominations Committee

Pensian

Chnstopher Satterthwarite recerved a pension allowance
paid in cash of £105,000 Mark Smith received a payment of
£50,000 into hus pension scheme and a pension allowance
of £25,000 in cash

Benefits

The benefits provided by the Group to the Executive
Directors consisted primarily of vehicte-related benefits such
as a car or car allowance and pnvate medical insurance

Annuai honus

The Executive Directors’ annual banus arrangements are
focused on the achievement of the Group’s short term
objectives

Hatlf of the bonus payable 1s on the achievement of the
Group profit target The remaining 50% 1s payable after
the assessment of performance against key performance
indicators {KPis)

The expectatton s that if all targets are met a bonus of not
less than 60% would be payable with the final amount being
agreed after an assessment ' the round’ of performance
of the iIndmvidual concerned and events occurnng during
the penod

In 2013 the budget profit target was not met therefore that
element 15 not payable

BB Chime Commumnications plc

Key Performancs Indicators and parformance
The KPis for the year were weighted equally

1 Increase profit margin
Shareholder return measure Margin declined from 16 4%
In 2012 to 15 2% Qutcome mussed

2 Return on equity
Shareholder return measure The return on equity target
included the need to make adjustments for the number and
timing of contnbutions from acquwisirons Qutcome missed

3 income fram and number of shared chents
Strategic objective Level of income was maintained
at 68% and the number slightly increased ta 1725
(2012 1720y Outcome achieved

4 Average fee per client
Strategic objective Increased by 8 8% from £31,000 to
£99,000 The number of chents paying Group compantes
over £100,000 durning the year increased from 2110 2012
to 249 Outcome achieved

5 Income from overseas businesses
Strategic objective Increased by 65% during the
period Of total income 19% was denved from overseas
businesses {2012 12%) Outcome achieved

6 Assessment of individual performances
Management performance measure An assessment of
individual performance of each Executive Director This
KPI takes into account the operating environment and
unforeseen events dunng the year (e g acquisitions and the
management of 1ssues) Outcome achieved

Cammercial sensitivity

Where our disclosures allow we have provided the detail

of targets aganst actual performance Certain targets

are considered by the Board to be commercially sensitive
both in the original targets set and In the detaill of any
adjustments necessary to accommodate for the uming and
profit contnbutions of acquisibons and disposals We have
therefore not disclosed the profit before tax or the return on
equity target

Assessing individual performances

The Committee acknowtedges that whilst targets are set for
the year in order to motivate specific performance, factors
not foreseen during target seting should alse be considered
when assessing an individual’s performance Unforeseen
corporate evenis in 2013 included the acquisition of JMI, the
placing and extended banking faciliy
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Performance and award TSR target

The Commuttee considered the perfarmance of the Group, The TSR Target 1s based on achieving total shareholder

the Directors’ individual performances and bonus payments return over the three year Performance Penod compared to a
to the wider staff population The onginal profit target had comparator group of other medra businesses

been missed and therefore no award would be made for
that element The Commitiee considered the KPIs The

Pasitian in Comparator % of TSR portion of Award
Committee will not reward fadure Three of the five formulaic Group Shares that will vest
targets had been achieved and the Committee agreed that —_—
Below median 0%

whilst the achievement against the oniginal objectives had e _
fallen short, the overall performance, including the three At median 30%
acquisitions, the refinancing, the success in building a
strong business in Brazil and the rearganisation under the
revised stralegy was important context

Between medran and_ i 30% to 100% pro rata

75" percentile
At or ahove 75" percentile 100%

The assessment resulted in an award of 33 3% of the
maximum {100% of salary) to be paid entirely in shares
deferred for three years rather than as 50% cash/50%
deferred shares which would be our normal practice

The cash equivalent values to be awarded in shares are
to Chnstopher Satterthwaite, £174,825 and to Mark Smith,
£124,875

The Comparator Group includes the following 14 companies
Bloomsbury Pubhshing, Centaur Media, Chrysalis Group,
Creston, Future, Huntsworth, ITE Group, Media Squared,
STV, Tarsus Group, Wilmington Group, Cello Group, M&C
Saatchi and Next Fifteen

Performance and vesting
The EPS Target was not met therefore that element of the

Long-term incent
ong cantive plans award did not vest EPS for the pericd was negative

Co-lnvestment Plan Award 2011

An award under the Co-Investment Flan was made to the
Executive Directors in September 2011 The award had a
performance perod of 1 January 2011 to 31 December
2013 Vesting, subject to the achievement of performance
targets, will take place on 1 September 2014 There are two
performance targets each equally weighted

EPS target

The EPS Target 1s based on Chime achieving annual
average earmings per share {EPS) growth over the three-year
Performance Period in excess of the Consumer Prices

Index (CPI)

EPS Growth in excess % of EPS portion of Award

of CPI Shares that will vest

5% or less o a C
5% B ’ 7
Between 5% and 1%  30t0 100 prorata :
12% T 100

The Committee reviewed the TSR performance and agreed
that only 34 3% of the maximum (1 e 68 6% of the maximum
for the TSR element) would vest

In assessing performance the Committee reviewed the
treatment of the two companies from the comparator
group which delisted during the perfermance penod
Chrysalis delisted wathin 30 days of the start of the three
year performance period and Media Squared within

11 months As provided by the Plan rules, the Committee
agreed that a methodology where the proceeds of the
theoretical investment were re-invested in the remaining
comparator group of 12 comparies This reflected a
consistent investment approach In terms of the companies
originally selected

The vesting that will take place as soon as practicable after
1 September 2014 will resuit in Christopher Satterthwaite
receiving 97,153 shares and Mark Smith receving 63,158
shares
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Directors’ Remuneration in 2013
continued

Long-term interests awarded dunng 2013
On 15 May 2013, awards were made to the Executive
Drrectors under the Performance Share Plan as follows

Number

of Shares

Award level Facevalue subject
(% of salary]  of Award to Award

Christapher Satterthwaite 200% E1050,000 410958
Mark Smith 175% £B56,347 258649

The share price used to determine the number of shares
under Award was £2 555 this being the average middle-
market quotation of a share (as derived from the Daily
Official List) over the five dealing days immediately prior
ta the Award Date

Form and operation of award

The performance pencd is 1 January 2013 - 31 December
2016 A first tranche of 50% of any award will vest as soon
as practicable after the preliminary announcement of
financial results for 2016 with the second remaining tranche
vesting after the results announcement for 2017

The awards were granted as nil-cost opticns and will
be exerctsable, subject o the rules of the Plan, duning
the penod from the vesting dates above untl the tenth
anniversary of the anginal award

Performance conditions

The Performance Conditions shall apply equally to both
tranches 60% of each tranche {rounded down to the nearest
whole share) shall be subject to the TSR Performance
Condition and the remaining 40% of each tranche shall be
subject to the EPS Performance Conditton

60% of the 2013 Awards are subject to a performance
condhlion measuring the Company’s Total Shareholder
Return {'TSR’) over a Performance Period of four financial
years of the Company starting with the year ending

31 December 2013 compared to the constituent members of
the FTSE250 index (excluding investment trusts) The FTSE
250 was considered to be the most appropriate comparator
group given the growth ambitions of the Company

The TSR performance targeis for the 2013 Awards are as
follows

Extent to which the TSR
Rank of tha Company’s TSR Performance Condition
within the l'.icingarutor [imup Iles heen satisfied

Upper quintile or abuve_ 100%
Pro rata between 25% and 100%

Between median and upper

quintile ) on a ranking bass
Median 25%
Below median 0%

The remaining 40% of the 2013 Award 1s subject to a
performance condition measuring the Company's cumulative
earnings per share over the same Performance Period The
EPS performance largets for the 2013 Awards have been

set based on the achievement of the following annualsed
growth rates

Annual compound growthin  Extent to which the EPS
EPS aver the Performance Performance Condition has
Penod heen satisfied

15% pa or more  100%
Between 7% pa and 15% pa

Dna str_mght—lln;haSﬂ—sbet»;'éen
25% and 100%

7%pa 25%

Léss than 7% p a 0%

For the 2013 Award, this results in cumulative targets of
101p and 122p for threshold and maximum performance
respectively, based on the 2012 headline results earnings
per share (21 2p)

Dwvidends payable on the unvested award will not be
accrued for the benefit of the participants
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Implementation of Remuneration Policy in 2014

Implementation of policy in 2014

As set out In our policy, the salaries and pension payments for the two Executve Directors are frozen until January 2016
The value of benefits may change but only in respect of the cost of the insurance policies There is no intention to widen
the st of benefits provided

With regards to annual bonus for 2014, 50% will be paid on the achievement of a stretching headline profit target and 50%
measured against a set of KPIs hinked to our strategic ams At this stage the disclosure of any further detail on the measures
15 deemed to be commercially sensitive Additional detall, to the extent the Commitiee deems 1t possible, will be set out n our
next report

It1s our intention to make an award under the Performance Share Plan of 200% of salary to Christopher Satterthwatte and of

175% to Mark Smith We shall retain EPS and total shareholder return as the performance measures The targets will continue
lo be stretching over the four year performance perod For the 2014 Award, these will be weighted equally At the tme of this
report being approved, the targets had not yet been finalised with the Board

Directors’ interests in shares of Chime Communications plc

The interests of those Directors of the Company who held shares in the Company dunng 2013 are detaled below All were
Directors for the whole year The remaining Directors of the Company did not have interests it the Company during 2013 wath
the exception ¢of Catherine Biner Bradley who heid 16,762 shares on 1 January 2013 and on 30 Aprl 2014, the date of her
resignation from the Board

Chnstopher Satterthwarte Mark Smith Lord Davies Rodger Hughes
Shareholding - beneficial holdings L o .
1 January 2013 333w 300080 . 27083
Acquired T E— 7 1308 e
Eeferred Share A\«Era 75.214 ) B o 53724 o T
Placing o 16867 B33 16887 e
31 December 2013 7 43pzogn 352 1370 " 35685 27053
Defarred Shares [beneficially owned]
1 Janvuary 2013 — - - o T
Awardedt® S o 75214 s3gzed
Released ST I o - ) 7 S
Lapsed LT - S
31 DecemEE_DE_" - 75,21q[11_ ) 53,724 T ST o
Co-investment Plani®
1 January 2013 7 731383 456 798 T T T T
Awarded o - B o
Released - - ____ - T B - T T
Lapsed 238095 132275 T
31 December 2013 499,268 324523 ] -
Performance Share Plani®!
1 January 2013 - - o
Awarded!® 410858 256,849 ] S
R—eE—ased - - - o -

Mark Smith also has options over 8,995 shares under the Savings-Related Share Option Scheme and held these throughout
the year without further grant, exercise or lapses

) The total shareholding hgure includes shares awardec under the Deferred Share Plan and beneficially owned by participants duning the deferral period The
deferred shares are subject to retention conditions but not further performance conditions

2 Co-Investment Plan and Performance Share Plan Awards are subject to perfarmance conditions over a specified Performance Penod

® Details relating to this award are on page 128

* Performance conditons related to this award are detaled on page 69 The awards made 1n 2013 were as nil-cost opiions
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Implementation of Remuneration Policy in 2014
continued

Shareholding guidelines for Executive Directors were introduced in 2013 By 31 December 2017, Chnistopher Satterthwaite 1s
required to have acquwed and thereafter to hold shares in Chume Communications to the value of 300% of basic salary and
Mark South to have acquied and thereafter {o hold shares in Chime Communications 1o the value of 250% of basic salary

Past Directors and lass of office payments
During 2013 no payments were made to past Directors and no loss of office payments were made

Payments to Cathernne Biner Bradley and the Hon Richard Alston, who both resigned from the Board dunng the year, for the
periods as Directors are shown in the table on page 66 All payments were in respect of directors' fees

TSR performance graph
The following graph compares Chime's TSR performance to that of the same investment in the FTSE250 (excluding

Investment Trusts) This companson has been chosen because the FTSE 250 {(excluding Investment Trusts) 1s the comparator
group for the current long term incentive plan (The Performance Share Plan)

TSR 1s the measure of the returns that a company has provided for its shareholders, reflecting share price movements and
assuming reinvestment of dividends Data 1s averaged over 30 days at the end of each financial year

350

300 —
250 h
200 —

150 —

Share price p (rebased to CHW)

0
1Jan 09 1 Jul 09 1Jan 10 1Jdul 11 1.Jan 11 1.Jul 11 1Jan 12 1Jul 12 1Jan 13 PJul 13

= Chime =—-—FTSE100 ——FTSE 250 {excluding Imestment Trusis)
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CEO pay table
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Total CEO
Remuneration inc
Vesting LTIP Awards B EQEQ.D?’-I“’ AELSES 134 £622873 £1 020036 - E1135 1756
Total CEO
Remuneration exc
Vesting LTIP Awards _ Es24 094t £873,903 £622 873 £1 DEQ,@ o £826.928
Annual Variable Maximum __ £250 0oao £250,000 £250 0oo _Jquaj_su_ ) EE%%DUU
Pay £ Actual
Bonus £250 000 £250,000 0 £393 750 £174,825
Actualas %
af maximum 100% 100% 0% 100% 333%
Long-term Maxtmum NolTPwith . 4491400 No LTIP with 238035 263286
ana ¥ Actual performance 336016 performance 0 97153
No of Shares Actualas % B pericdending =~ T period ending s - 0
of maximum n year 477% I year 0% 34 3%

" ncludes taxable gain of £46 1160 respect of Deferred Share release

@includes an estmated gan of £308 247 based on the vesting of 97 153 shares in September 2014 The estmated value of Chime shares 1s based on the

90 days prior to 31 December 2013

Percentage incraase in CEO remuneration

The foliowing table sets out the percentage change tn (2013
over 2012) in Chief Executive Remuneration against siaff in
two comparator groups

Executive Chime

Chief Management Central

Executive Team Staff

Salary +25% +72% fl 9%
Berefits -71% +38% +71%
Annual Bonus -55 E% ) _-21 a% ) -43B6%
Total Remuneratign -22 4% +02% -6%

Staff comparator groups
We have shown the percentage change against two
comparator groups

Executive Management Team

The Executive Managemeni Team are responsible for the
implementation of sirategy, the allocation of resources and
other commercial aspects of the Group The membership 15
mainly drawn from the semior management teams within the
dvisions Most of these individualts work directly with clients

Therefore those members are remunerated on the
performance of the individual divisions they represent
Christopher Satterthwaite spends a significant proportion
of his time with Group chients and therefore the comparison
1S relevant

Chime Central

The Ctume Central team are those staff who work directly
for the Company in managing the Group Their bonuses and
incentives are paid on Company performance and therefore
there 1s a direct correlation between the Chief Executive and
this group of staff

Relative importance of spend on pay

Chime 1s a group of people businesses Therefore our ability
to atiract and retain and motvate our staff 1s an ymportant
factor in our success The following table sets out the
change m profit, dividends and remuneraton expenditure for
2013 over 2012

2013 2012 Year on Year Change
£000 £000 £000 %
Dwidends 6283 5345 940 18
Staff pay 113800 117763 -3,863 -3
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SHAREHOLDER VOTING

In early 2013 the Committee undertook a review of executve
remuneration The Group had restructured and adopted a
revised strategy It was therefore prudent to ensure that the
policies used remained fit for purpose

The imtial outcome of the review resulted in

an increase In base salanes for the two rematning
Executive Directors to reflect the additional responsibilities
of their roles and the growth of the Group,

salares to be frozen untl 2016,

anincreased maximum bonus award to 100% to reward
the achrevement of short term goals mcluding,

* the deferral of at least 50% of any bonus award Into
shares for three years,

the establishment of a new Long Term Incentive Scheme,
The Performance Share Plan, and

sharehaolding guidelines for Executive Direclors

The Remuneration Committee aisc proposed paying the
Executive Directors a bonus of 37 5% of salary in deferred
shares {(deferral two years)

This was in addition to the cash bonus paid of 37 5%

of salary As the total of 75% was above the previously
disclosed maximum of 50%, the Committee felt that the
payment should be put before shareholders for approval
Unfortunately, a number of shareholders saw this additionat
bonus as discretionary and did not feel able to support the
resolution
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During the review the Committee Chairman, Rodger Hughes,
consulied with a number of major shareholders together with
the ABI and RREV In order to gain a market view of desirable
structure and 1o gauge market attitudes to our proposals

We would like to thank those individuals that took part The
consultation was productive and as a result we amended our
ornginal policy design in the following areas

the type and weighting of the performance measures for
bonus payments,

» the size and 'build period’ for the shareholding
requirement,

the maximum award mits under the Performance Share
Plan (PSP),

the performance target metrics for the PSP,

+» the penods to vesting for the PSP, and

overall use of possible discretion availlable to the
Commitiee

In addition, a number of shareholders saw the addtional
bonus as discretionary and indicated opposition to its
payment

Shareholder voting

At the AGM on 15 May 2013 three resolutions regarding
Executive Remuneration were put before shareholders with
the following outcome

To approve the Director’s Remuneration Report for year ended
31 December 2012
i For Against Withheld Did not vote
36,129 830 16 030 584 17652926 15,341 458
B327% 3073% - -

0f votes cast

Of 1ssued

share capital 42 43% 18B2% 2073% 18 02%

To approve the Bernus Payment to Executive Directors in respect
of 2012

i For Against Withheld Did not vote
29,803 946 18 998,219 21011 175 15341456

Of votes cast 61 07% 3893% - -
Of issued
share capital 35% 2231% 2467% 18 02%




To Approve the Establishment and Rules of the Performance
Share Plan
For  Agamnst Withheld Did not Vote
34 494 666 17960,644 17358 030 15 341456
65 76% 34 24% - -

Of votes cast

Of issued

share capital 4051%  2109% 20 38% 18 02%

The 1ssued share capitat (1SC) of the Company on 15 May
2013 was 85,154,796

Commant on shareholder voting

Whilst each of the resolutions was approved by shareholders
it 1s unfortunate that the Commitiee was unable to convince
all our members of the ments of the proposals In 2013 Two
areas are particularly worth noting

WPP position

Qur largest shareholder WPP abstained {withheld) its vote
on the three resolutions as part of a general WPP policy
At the ime of the AGM vote WPP held 17,330,000 shares
representing 20 35% of the voting nghts of the Company
The WPP representatives on the Board supported the
proposals

Banus payment

We were aware that a number of shareholders and
governance agencles viewed the bonus as discretionary
and ex-gratia However we believe good governance
practice was followed We paid below our previously
agreed maximum in cash, retaining @ mix of 50 50 cash
and shares and put ihe balancing payment of deferred
shares before shareholders However, analysis of votes
cast and discussion with a number of parties suggests that
shareholders registered votes against both the Remuneration
Report and the bonus payment as a result
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Policy development

In further developing our Remuneration Policy the Committee
have taken note of the events surrounding the review of
2013 The Commuittee has built on this in the policy to be
put before shareholders at the forthcoming AGM and as set
out on pages 56 to 64 We have documented the caps and
limits applicable to each of our schemes, described the
limits, potential reasons for use of Committee discretion and
most importantly, hnked our remuneration to a continued
and improved return to shareholders We believe the design
of our policy 1s fit for purpose and In ine with our staled
business strategy

This Report was approved by the Board of Directors and
signed on its behalf by

Rodger Hughes
Chairman of the Remuneration Commitiee
26 March 2014
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Independent Auditor’s report to the

Members of Chime Communications plc

Opinion an financial statemants
In Gur opinicn

«+ the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of the group’s and of the parent company's affairs
as at 31 December 2013 and of the group's profit for the
year then ended,

+ the group financial statements have been properly
prepared In accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union,

» the parent company financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Praciice, and

* the financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006 and, as regards the group financial statements,
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

The financial statements comprise the Consolidated Income
Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income, the Consolidated and Parent Company Balance
Sheets, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the Parent
Company Reconciliation of Movements in Shareholders'
Funds and the related notes 1 to 38 The Tinancial reporiing
framework that has been applied in the preparation of the
group financial statements Is applicable law and IFRSs as
adopted by the European Urmon The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in the preparation of the
parent company financial statements I1s applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards {(United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Separate opinion in relation to IFRSs as issued by the |ASB
As explained in note 2 to the group financial statements, In
addition to complying with its legal obligation to apply IFRSs
as adopted by the European Union, the group has also
applied IFRSs as ssued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB)

In our opinion the group financial statements comply with
IFRSs as 1ssued by the 1ASB

Going concern

As required by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the
directors’ statement on page 21 that the group 1s a going
concern We cenfirm that

« we have not identified any maternal uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt on the group's ability to continue as
a gong concern, and

= we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements I1s appropriate

However, because not all future events or conditions can be
predicted, thts statement 1s not a guarantee as to the group’s
ablity to continue as a going concern
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Dur assessment of risks of matarial misstatement

The assessed fnsks of matenal misstalement descrnibed below are those that had the greatest effect on our audi strategy, the
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altocation of resources in the audit and directing the efforts of the engagement team

How the scope of our audit responded to the risk

Carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets

The Group’s assessment of impairment of goodwill and intangible
assets and the Company’s assessment of tmpairment of
investments are judgmental processes which require estimates
concerning the forecast cash flows and the associated discount
rates and growth rates based on managements view of

business prospects and taking 1n to account the odd versus

even year fluctuation

Acquisition accounting

The Group s assessment of the recognitin and measurement

of geodwill and ather intangible assets on acquisitions IS
dependent on whether to recognise contingent consideration

as either deferred consideration or deemed remuneration This
involves significant Judgements in relation to ink to employment
cenditions n relation to contingent consideration payments and
valuation of customer contracts, relationships brand names and
proprietary technologies

Revenue recagnition

The recognition of revenue on a gross and net basis and
accounting for long term projects represent significant areas of
judgement |n terms of whether to recognise revenue on a gross
or net basis, the judgements relate to whether the group Is acting
as an agent For long-term projects the judgments relate to the
amount of revenue to be defarred as fees received in advance and
the allowance that should be made for future recoverability of
recewables work in progress and acerued income recogrised for
On-going projects

We recalculated the discount rates applied to future cash flows
and warked with our internal valuation specialists to assess the
appropriateness of the underlying caiculations and benchmarked
the resulting discount rates against other companies operating
in the media sector We have compared the assumed growth
rates and forecast cash flows against histonc trends achieved in
the business and analysed actual performance against forecast
performance to assess the retiability of the management
forecast We compared management sensitivity analysis against
recent trading actwity, histortc trends and our understanding of
the future prospects of the business to identify whether these
scenarios could give nse ta further impairment

We audited all current year acouisitions including assessing

comphance with IFRS 3 Business Combimations testing of

the share purchase agreements and coansidering whether all
components of consideration and/or remuneration had been
correctly identified We tested the halance sheet of the acquired
businesses at the date of acquisition and acquisition adjustments
to supporung evidence For the identified intangible assets we
assessed the underlying calculations and judgements by testing
the mathematical accuracy of the calculations and testing the
nputs, such as future contracied revenue COStS and customer
relationships and ether factors making up the intangible assets
to signed contracts referencing the future contracted revenue
forecast cost base for the entity and hustoric revenue trends

with customers

In arder to assess the judgements over revenue recognition on
erther a gross or net basts we performed a review of the contracts
ta confirm whether 1t was appropriate to recognise the gross
revenue and performed detailed testng of the undertying costs
recharged to supporting evidence

We assessed the significant judgements made by management
tn relation to project based revenue recogrition by agreeing the
revenue recognise to contract terms and conditions, and tested
margins on the projects to historic financial performance We also
tested the judgements in the forecasts to completion to historic
margins and Cost requirements to contracts

We tested the recoverability of receivables work in progress and
acecrued income by sample testing recevables work in progress
and accrued income to cash receipts post year end and/or
custorner acceptances for invaices raised
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independent Auditor’s report to the

Members of Chime Communications plc continued

The Audit Committee's consideration of these risks 1s set out
on page 77

Qur audit procedures relating to these matters were
designed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and not to express an opinton on
individual accounts or disclosures Qur opinion on the
financial statements 1s not modified with respect to any of
the nsks described above, and we do not express an opinion
on these indwidual matters

Our application of materiality

We define matenality as the magnitude of misstatement

in the financial statements that makes it probable that the
economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person
would be changed or influenced We use matenality both in
planning the scope of our avdit wark and \n evaluating the
results of our work

We determined materality for the group to be £1 275 million,
which 1s 5% of headline profit beiore tax, and below 1% of
equity Headline profit before tax 15 defined as group loss
before tax exciuding amortisation of acquisition intangible,
deemed remuneration charges including finance charges,
cost of acquisiions and restructuning and impairment of
goodwill These adjustments are made consistentiy by the
Group tn therr earmngs communications with the market and,
n the opimon of the Directors, provide a more comparable
measure with similar organisations and are consistent with
the profit measures that are most relevant to analysts and
Investors

We agreed with the Audit Committee thai we would report
to the Committee all aucht differences in excess of £25,500,
as well as differences below that threshold that, in our

view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds We also
report {o the Audit Committee on disclosure matters that we
identified when assessing the overall presentation of the
financial statementis

An averview of the scope of our audit

Cur group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding
of the group and its environment, including group-wide
controls, and assessing the nsks of matenal nusstatement
at the group level Based on that assessment, we focused
our group audit scope focused pnmartly on the aucht work at
14 [ocations 11 of these were subject to a full audit, whilst
the remaining 3 were subject 10 an audit of specified audit
procedures where the extent of our testing was based on
our assessment of the nsks of material nusstatement and of
the matenality of the group’s operations at those locations
These 14 locations represent the principal business units
and account for 91% of the group's net assets, 75% of

the group's aperating income and 72% of the group's

loss before tax They were also selected to provide an
appropnate basis far undertaking audit wark {0 address

the risks of matenal misstaterment identified above Qur
analytical procedures at the 14 locations were executed
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at tevels of matenality applicable to each individual entity
which were lower than group materiality

At the parent entity level we also tested the consolidation
process and carned cut analytical procedures to confirm
our conclusion that there were no significant nsks of material
misstatement of the aggregated financial information of

the remaining components not subject to audit or audit of
specified account balances

The group audit team continued to follow a programme of
planned visits that has been designed so thai the a senior
member of the group audit team visits each of the locations
where the group audit scope was focused at least once
every two years and the most significant of them at least
once a year In years when we do not visit a significant
compaonent we will Include the component audit partner in
our team briefing, discuss their risk assessment, and review
documentation of the findings from their work

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies
Act 2006
In our opinion

* the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be
audited has been properly prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006, and

= the information given in the Strategic Report and the
Drirectors’ Report for the financial year for which the
financal statements are prepared is consistent with the
financial statements

Matters on which we are required to repart by exception

Adeguacy of explanations received and accounting records
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to
you if, in our opinion

* we have not received all the mformation and explanations
we require for our audit, or

« adequale accounting records have not been kept by the
parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been receved from branches not visited by us, or

« the parent company financial statements are notin
agreement with the accounting records and returns

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters

Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to
report if 1 our opinion certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration have not been made or the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited 1s not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns We
have nothing o report ansing from these matters




Corporate Governance Statement

Under the Listing Rules we are also required to review the
part of the Corporate Governance Staiement relating to
the company’s compliance with nine provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code We have nothing 1o report
ansing from our review

Our duty to read other informationin the Annual Report
Under Internauonal Standards on Audiing (UK and Ireland),
we are required to report to you If, In our opinion, information
in the annual report 1s

« matenally inconsistent with the information in the audited
financial statements, or

« apparently maternially incorrect based on, or materially
Inconsistent with, our knowledge of the group acquired in
the course of perferming our audt, or

* otherwise misieading

In particular, we are required to consider whether we have
rdentified any inconsistencies between our knowledge
acquired duning the audit and the direclors’ statement

that they consider the annual report 1s fair, balanced and
understandable and whether the annual report appropriately
discloses those matters that we communicated to the

audit committee which we consider should have been
disclosed We confirm that we have not identified any such
Incensistencies or misleading statements

Respective respansibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities
Staterment, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that

they give a true and fair view Qur responsibility is to audit
and express an opinion on the financial statements in
accordance with applicable iaw and Internauonal Standards
on Auditing {UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards
for Aucitors We also comply with International Standard on
Quality Control 1 (UK and Ireland) Cur audit methodology
and lools aim to ensure that our quality control procedures
are effective, understood and applied Cur qualty controls
and systemns include our dedicated professional standards
review team, strategically focused second partner reviews
and independent partner reviews

This report 1s made solely to the company’'s members,

as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audht work has been undertaken
so that we might state to the company's members those
matters we are required to staie to them in an auditer's
report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibilty
to anyone other than the company and the company’s
members as a body. for our audit work, for this report,

or for the opinions we have formed
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Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit Involves obtaining evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to

give reasonable assurance that the financial statements

are iree from malenal misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or errar This Includes an assessment of whether

the accounting policies are appropnate to the group’s

and the parent company’s circumstances and have

been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial
statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-
financial information in the annual report to Identify materal
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to
identfy any information that 15 apparently matenally incorrect
based on, or materally inconsistent with, the knowledge
acquired by us In the course of performing the audit If we
become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the /imphcations for our report

Anthany Morns, FCA [Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom

26 March 2014
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Consolidated Income Statement
Year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012
Notes £'000 £'000
Continuing upsrations
Revenue i T3 99188 344,234
Costofsales T T T T T neses?) | (1B4444)
Operating income ] 3 Amaas 159780
Operating expenses [mcludmgriaemed remuneration] T T 5 570.110] i [154.897]
Operatng profit 5 19 4,893
Other gans and losses 7 T 7 (3.ees) T 1877)
%e of results of associates o T o _-—1‘3_ T es2 560
Investmeant Income - B o 8 66 27
Finance costs B T 7 e 7 pesn [664)
Finance cost of deferred consideration T 8 A_-_ (309) T [325]
Finance cost of dee;ned remuneration T T T T '9_ ) i (34s) T [270]
(Loss)/profit befare tax __ e [.739) 2544
Tax o o B 10 [Aaee) {5.200)
Loss for the year from continuing operations - e ____ [9.188) Eﬁﬂ
Dscortmudoperatons . T o~ oo oo o
Prafit from discontinued uperatlons’ T - o T 4 o - 2790
(Loss)/profit for the year [9.168) 134
Attnbutoble o T T T S
Equity holders of the parent T - (10,831} {1276)
Non-cantrolfing interest ; m _:___f_—j' ;:k__j __ o ____ ) ‘ 1,663 _7 :_ _l‘ll[l_-
[9.168) 134
Earmings per share {pence) o o R
From continuing and dascuﬁnﬁ@ operatrclns ‘ . : N ——_; . 7 T
Basic - ’ 13 [1263p) "[159p]
Diluted T o o 13 (1283p) _ [159p]
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year ended 31 Oecember 2013

2013 2012
£°000 £°000
[Lass)/prafit for the year o e _ (9.168) 134
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss o o o o
Profit on revaluation of available for sale investments _ _ 1@ 4
Exchange differences on translation of foreign aperations B o 2es) o (560}
Total comprehensive income far the year (9.,308) [422]
Mwbutobleto
Equity holders of the pargt. o ~(11,009) {1.821)
Non-controlling interest o o . __ Le9? 1389
(9,3086] (422]
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
Year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012
Notes £°000 £'000

Non-current assets
Googwll 7 1w gyl 178109
D}herulntanglble asséts - B A i - TG N 7 _'TDE o o ﬁ
Bﬁ:perty, plant and equnEment T T 9,837 T 7 g8es
Investiments |niassnc:|ateis o *l_ B #_7A I :_j *_i‘q*ﬂi_j_ 75-08_9 S 5719
Other investments h B o ) _-" - o . o ) 20 . 514 o 354
Deferred consideration re_cewable - S T T T —E B 7 282 - 307
otver frencalasses T I R
Deferred tax asset - T T T r_Tl o 3,510 S 2084

255,180 196 872
c_m?antassa:__"_m T o o -
Work it progress B j_A :-;7 S _tﬁss N 2,783
Trade and uthewecewabg_ S T T T 80,259 B 59,403
Ee?erred consideratran recelvable - T S 7-‘5_‘ T T 1.000
Current tax receivable T T o T T - 65
Cash and cash equwaleg T - T T T T IB.EB; o 17 892

106,722 81,143
Total assets 361,902 278 115
Currantllahllltms_ - T T T _——:-—‘ T T e s e
Trade and other payables o TS " (en018) (70714
Current tax hahilities S T S T T T ) (2.180) - [3850)
Dbhigauons under finance leases ST T C 28 {20} T Eﬁ
Bankloansandoverdrafts a7 - oqamy) (144
Deferred consideratian o - S 28 L E?_S]__ o [3.966]
Deemed remuneration : 29 (1.671) (13815)
§mrt-term pru\nsmns* -------- T -éE-g - (1,420] T [1,208f

[102,206) [93,804)
Net current assets/(habilities) 4,516 [12,661)
Non-currentliabiiies e
Bank toans payable after maore than one year . ) 27 [57.852) (13 385)
Deferred consideration - e (1L608)  [11984)
Deemed remunerauon o : _— . o 29 [4880)  [8BH]
Deferred tax habilities - - 11 (657) -
Long-term pravisions B 30 [652) [1462)
Obhgations under finance leases T 26 - (20)

(75.648) [27 715]
Total habiities {177.855) [121519]
Net assets 184,047 156 588
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2013 2012
Notes £°000 E£°000
Equity N . . . ) .
Shaeceptal T T T EN us28 20522
S—hare pr;mlum account - - L - ) - _ 32 1?2.939“ -81_9213_
Own shares - o S 3@ (L718)  [2554]
aj[tal reduction reserv: T T T _RHE- . - 7 32 385
Translavon reserve R 5_{ o {156} T T
Accumulated profit T 7 32 3318 22,772
Equity attnbutable to equity holders of the parent 181,913 155,244
Nan-controlling mterg_ T ) 2,134 1352
Total aguity 184,047 156 598

The financial statements were approved by the board of Directars and authonsed for 1ssue on 26 March 2014 They were

signed on its behalf by

Mark Smith
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2013

Accum-
Capital uiatad Non-

Shara Share Own reduction Transiation profit/ controlling

capital pramium sharas reserve reasarves [loss) Total intgrests Tatal

£°000 £'000 £°'000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £°'000 £°000 £°000
Balance at
1 Janyary 2012 20,237 79,986 (4,191) 32,385 __ 668 289,303 158,388 873 159,361
Total comprehensive income for
the year - === MeHo) (1272] (L.B21) 1399 (u22)
Transoctions with owners e
Acquisitn of subsidanes 226 1739 - - = - 1,965 196 2,161
Issued to staff underopons 589 238 - - = - 297 - 237
Shareissuecosts {20} - - - - (20) - _.[20)
Dhsposed an exercise
of options = 2144 - - [2067) 77 - 77
Purchase of own shares = - 507 0 - s - 807 - [507)
Purchase af non-controlling
Interest R - [1781] (1.781) [22] [1.803)
Equity dividends == - - - (5.349]  [5.349) - (5.349]
Credit in relation to share
based payments = - .- . _-_ 193 1833 - 1,933
Tax on share based payment
Exercises S _-__ 28 o83 - ]
Dividends to non-controlling
nterests _ . e T - . _-_ (322 (13e2)
Recycle purchase of non-
contralng Interestondigposat -~ - - - - g 1770 17718 128 1,807
Disposal of subsidiary - - - - 48 [(48) - - -
Balance at
31 December 2012 20,522 81,943 (2,554] 32,385 176 22,772 155,244 1,352 156,596
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Accum-
Capital viated Non-

Share Shara Dwn  reduct Transiation profit} controlling

capital  premium shares resarve resarves [loss) Total interests Total

£'00D £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £000 £°000 £°000
Balance at
1 January 2013 20,522 81943 ([2,554) 32,385 176 22,772 155,244 1,352 156,596
Total comprehensive income
for the year . - = - = (332] (10.671) [11,003) 1697  [9.308)
Transoctions with owners ) e o o
Acquisition 0_fsub5|d|ar|es __ _lB24 18037 - - - - 20,861 63 20,924
Share placing_ o 2133 23467 = -_ = - - - 25600 - 25600
Issued to staff under optigns 50 227 - - - =2 - 2717
Shereissuecosts - {1 735]) - - - - {1,735} - {L735)
Disposed on exercise of
opuons B o - Y ¢ | R ¢ -0
Purchasg of own shares - - lpoo - - [(1000) - - -
Purchase of non-controlting
Interest .- L Tl T__ o T_._.-c - . - -
Equity divdeods - _ - - T _-__ [6289] _(e,289] _ [998] (7.287)
Credit in relation to share
basedpayments - T _ _~_ _ .2 _ - . (28] [(128) - _[128)
Tax on share based payment
EXErCISES - - - - - 388 388 - 388
Recycle purchase ef non-
controlling interest ondisposal . - (1138) (1.138] (7)__[1,145)
LLPpartnershipshare -~ - = - - _ T - - 27 27
Retease of capital
reduction reserve - - - [32385] - 32,385 - - -
Balance at
31 Dacember 2013 24,529 122,939 [1.718) - (156) 36,313 181,913 2,134 184,047
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012

Notes £°000 £000
Nat cash from operating activitiss 33 3,146 _ 11,984
Investing activities o o
Interest recewved - o T 58 .
Owvidends received from investments and assoctates B 320 o 118
Proceeds on dispasal of property plant and equipment 19 87
Purchases of property plant and equipment [5.748) (3.105)
Purchases of ather intangible assets [379) (27}
Loans granted to investments and associates o T - B _[_ID—B]
Acquisition of subsichanes [(net of cash acquired) (58.156) [10,829])
Acguisition af option - [300]
Acquisiuan af avalable far sale nvestmant, B - (100]
Disposal of subsidiary/associate [134) 11358
Deferred consideration received 1,025 450
Net cash used ininvesting actwities ~ - (62,995) o [2,430)
Financing activities
Dividend paid o (5.289) (5 34g)
Bmdends paid 1o mimones ~ [998) ) {1 322]
Increase (0 borrowings N R o 57.977 7 14,073
Repayment of borrowings o o _; T (13,565) {8 313)
Repayment of obkgauions under finance leases - (117) [168)
Proceeds on ssue of ordinary share capital T 24,142 278
Purchase of own shares (164) {430]
Investment by nan-controling shareholder o - -
Purchase of non-cantraling interests o (894] f1,6888)
Net cash used in financing activities 80,092 (3120]
Netincrease In cash and cash equivalents 243 B 434
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 17,892 11,320
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 132 138
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year L 18,267 17882
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and loan note deposits less overdrafts
Net cosh comprises
Cash and cash equivalents 18,267 17892
Bank loans a7 [58,023] [13,529])
Finance leases 26 (20) f127)
Loan nates outstanding 25 [809) [58]
Overall nat cash [40,585) 4178
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 31 December 2013

1 General information

Chime Commurucations plc 1s a Company incorporated

in United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006 The
address of the reqistered office 15 Sauthside, 6th Floor, 105
victoria Street, London SW1E 6QT The nature of the Group's
operations consist principally of sports marketing, public
relatrons, advertising, market research, direct marketing,
design and event management consuliancy

These financial statements are presented In pounds sterling
because that s the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Group operates Foreign operations
are included in accordance with the policies set out In

note 2 The Group's overseas operations are princtpally
conducted 1n US Dollars, Brazihan Reals or Euros The rates
used are as follows

Closing Closing
rate as at Average rate as at Average
31 Decernber rate 31 December rate
Currency 2013 2013 2012 2012
US Dallar o e 1.6488 __ 156843 . 161530 1 58496
Euro o i 1.976 11777 122200 123310
Brazihan Real 3.8720 33731 3 30660 3 09664

2 Significant accounting policias

Basis of accounting

The financial statemenis have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards The
financial statements have also been prepared In accordance
with IFRSs as 1ssued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) adopted for use in the European
Union and therefore comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS
Regulation The group has adopted all applicable standards
effeclive for he current financial year with no matenal
impact to the account, with the exception of the additional
disclosures required by IFRS 13

The financial statemenis have been prepared on the
histoncal cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are carried ai fair value (n accordance with the
accounting peolicies set out below

The consolidated income statement, consolidated

balance sheet, cansoldated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated staternent of changes in equity and
consohdated cash fiow statement have been prepared on
a basis consistent with the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2012

Cntical accounting judgments and key sources of
estimation uncertatnty

In the process of applyng the Group’s accounting policies,
Management 1s required to make judgments, esttmates

and assumptions that may affect the financial statements
Management believes that the judgments made n the
preparation of the financial siatements are reasonable
However, actual outcomes may differ from those anticipated

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertamty at the balance sheet date,
that have a significant nsk of causing a matenal adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assels and liabilties, are
discussed below

Valuation and asset fives of separately identifiable

intangible assets

In order to determune the value of the separately \dentfiable
assets on the acquisition of a business combrnation,
management are required 1o make estimates when utihsing
the Group's valuation methodologies These methodologies
include the use of discounted cash flows, revenue and profit
before tax multiples Asset lives are estimated based on the
nature of the intangtble asset acquired and range between

1 and 5 years and indefinite lives

imparrment of goodwill and other intangible assets

There are a number of assumptions the Directors have
considered in performing impairment reviews of goodwill
and intangible assets, as determining whether goodwilt or
intangible assets are Impaired requires an estimation of the
value in use of the cash generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated The value In use calculation requires
Directors to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash generating unit and a suitable discount rate
In arder o calculate net present value Note 14 details the
assumptions that have been applied

Contingent consideration

Contingent constderation relating to acquisiions has been
nchluded based on the fair value of the Directors estimates
of the most likely cutcome (notes 28, 29 & 34)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Year ended 31 December 2013

2 Significant accounting policies [continued)

Deemed remuneration

Deemed remuneration represents paymentis made for the
acqguisition of businesses that are dependent on continuing
employment, in accordance with the iIFRS Interpretations
Committee’s interpretation of paragraph B55 of IFRS3

that this dependency means that they should be treated

as remuneration regardless of other factors Last year the
accounting peolicy was changed to reflect this decision and
the impact disclosed However the Board remain concerned
that this results in capital payments for the acquisitrons

of a business being charged as an operating expense,
which does not properly reflect the underlying economic
substance The charge for the year for deemed remunaration
has therefore been separately disclosed io assist the
understanding of the readers of the financral statements

Revenue and cost recognition on long-term contracls
Revenue and cosls are recognised on long term contracts
by reference to the stage of completion of activity under
thal contract as al the balance sheet date Management
has considered the stage of completion of each contract
and made a number of assumptions 1n order to estimate
the relevant revenues and costs to recognise under these
contracts Management are savsfied that that the amounts
recognised in 2013 are appropnate and consistent with the
terms of the contracts and the stage of work completed

Vacant property provisions

Provisions for property represent amounts set aside in
respect of property leases which are onerous and the
unavoidable costs of restoring leasehold properties to the
condition specified in the lease at the end of the contractual
term The quantification of each of the provisions 1s
determined based on the Directors’ best estimate and i1s
dependent on the Group’s ability to exit the leases early
or to sublet the properties In general, property costs are
expected to be incurred over penods for which individual
properties remain vacant o, where occupied, to the
fermination of the leases in question

Basts of consolidation

The consoldated financial statements Incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidianies) made up to 3t December
each year Control 1s achieved where the Company has the
power 10 govern the financial and operating pohcies of an
Investee entity so as to obtain benefits from its actvties

88 Chime Communications pic

On acquisition, the assets and llabilibes and contingent
habilities of & subsidiary are measured at therr farr values at
the date of acquisition Any excess of the cost of acquisition
over the fair values of the identfiable net assets acquired

1s recognised as goodwill Any deficiency of the cost of
acquisition betow the farr values of the identifiable net assets
acquired (1€ discount on acquisition) i1s credited to the
income statement in the period of acquisition The interest of
non-controlling shareholders 1s stated at the non-controlling
shareholder's proportion of the fair values of the assets and
labilities regogrused

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of dunng
the year are Included In the consolidated income statement
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate Following the adoption

of 1AS 27 1n 2011, transactions to acquire non-controlling
shareholders’ interests i a subsidiary are recorded in equity

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiares to bring the accounting policies
used into ine with those used by the Group

All intra-Group transaclions, balances, iIncome and expenses
are elminated on consolidation

The Drrectors have, at the time of approving the financial
statemenis, a reasonable expectation that the Company
and the Group have adequate resources to continug 1n
operational existence for the foreseeable future They
continue to adopt the going cancern basis of accounting
In prepanng the ftnancial statements Further detal is
contained in the Corporate Governance Report on page 38

Investments 1n associates

An associate 1s an entity over which the Group 1sin a
position to exercise significant influence, but not control
or [ont control, through participation in the financial and
operating pohcy decisions of the invesiee

The results, assets and habitles of associates are
incorporated 1n these financial statements using the equity
methad of accounting except when classifted as held for
sale Investments in associates are carned in the balance
sheet at cost as ad|justed by post-acquisition changes i

the Group's share of the net assets ¢f the associate, less
any impairment in the vaiue of individual investments
Losses of the associates in excess of the Group's interest In
those associates are not recognised, unless the Group has
incurred a legal or constructive obligation or made payments
on behalf of the associate




Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's
share of the farr values of the identfiable net assets of

the associate at the date of acquisition 1s recognisec

as goodwill and 15 included In the carrying value of the
investment Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below
the Group’s share of the farr values of the identifiable

net assets of the associate at the daie of acquisition (1 e
discount on acquisition} 1s credited in the iIncome statement
in the penod of acquisition

Where a group company transacts with an associate of the
Group, unrealsed profits and losses are eliminated io the
extent of the Group’s interes! in the relevant associate

Other investments

Other investrments represent investments 1n equity securnties
that present the Group with opportunity for return through
dividend income and trading gains They have no fixed
maturity or coupan rate The fair values of the listed securities
are based on quoted market prices For unlisted secunties,
where market valug 1s not avallable, the Group estimates
relevant far values on the basis of publicly avalable information
from outside sources Where this 15 not possible, investments
are held at cost and are reviewed for mpairment

Other investments are designated as 'availabie for sale’ and
are shown at fair value with any movements in fair value
taken te equity

On disposal the cumulative gain or loss previously
recagrised in equity 15 included within the profit or loss for
the year Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for
equity investments classified as 'avallable for sale’ are not
subsequently reversed through profit or loss

Goodwill

Goodwill anising on consolidation represents the excess

of the fair value of consideration gver the Group’s interest

n the fair value of the identifiable assets, habiittes and
contingent habiliies recogmsed Goodwill s recognised as
an asset and reviewed for impairment at least annually Any
impairment 1s recognmised in the income statement and 15 not
subsequently reversed

Goodwiil ansing on acquisitions before the date of transition
to IFRSs has been retained at the previous UK GAAP
amounts subject to being tested for imparrment at that

date Goodwill written off to reserves under UK GAAP prior
to 1898 has not been reinstated and 1s not included In
determining any subsequent profit or loss on disposal

For acquisitions accounted for under IFRS 3 the consideration
used n the calculation of goodwiil includes third party costs
incurred to effect the acquisition Foliowing the adoption of
IFRS 3 {revised} {acquisitions from 1 January 2010) these
costs are expensed through the income statement and
included in costs of acquisitions
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On disposal of a subsichary or associate, the attnbutable
amount of goodwili 15 included in the determination of the
profit or toss on disposal

For acquisitions accounted for under IFRS 3, future
anticipated payments to vendors in respect of earnouts
are based cn the Directors’ best estimates of the farr
value of future obligations, which are dependent on future
performance of the interests acquired and assume the
operating companies improve profits in ine with Directors’
estimates and are included in Labilities greater or less than
one year as appropriate

Foltowing the adoption of IFRS 3 (revised), changes to
earnouts are recorded in the income statement through
costs of acquisitions In this instance, when earnouts are

to be settled in cash or share consideration, the far value
of the consideratton s oblained by discounting to present
value the amounts expected to be payable in the future The
resulting interest charge 15 included within finance costs of
deferred consideration

When a business is acquired from former shareholders
who become employees of the Group, should their earn out
payments be dependent on continuing employment then all
payments are treated as remuneration for post acquistion
services Tms)s a change o the previously adopted policy
of the Group and I1s as a result of the publcation in January
2013 of the IFRS IC Update of the Committee's agenda
decision on IFRS 3 Business Combinations-Continuing
employment

The charge to the income statement s included in deemed
remuneratton and the fair value of the liabiity 15 included as
deemed remuneration In the balance sheet, classified as
current or non-current lrabilities as appropnate

In accordance with IFRS an impairment charge s required
for both goodwill and other indefinite ived assets when the
carrying amount exceeds the ‘recoverable amount’, defined
as the hugher of fair value less costs to sell and value In use
Our approach in determining the recoverable amount uiilises
a discounted cash flow methodology, which necessarily
Involves making numerous estimates and assumptions
regarding revenue growth, operating margins, lax rates,
appropniate discount rates and working capital requirements
These estimates will ikely ciffer from future actual resulis

of operations and cash flows, and it 1s possible that these
differences could be matenal In addition, judgments are
applied in determining the level of cash-gengrating unit we
identfy for impairment testing and the cntena we use to
determine which assets should be aggregated
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Year ended 31 December 2013

2 Significant accountng policies {[continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s measured at the farr vatue of the consideration
recelved or receivable and comprises the gross amounts
billed to chients in respect of fees earned, expenses
recharged and commission-based income Revenue 15
recognised in the Income statement when the economic
benefits ansing from an arrangement are probable

Revenue 1s largely derived from retainer fees and services
performed subject to specific agreement Revenue 1s
recognised when the service 1S performed in accordance
with the contractual arrangement through an assessment
of the time incurred to date compared to the total hours
required to complete the contract, and an assessment of
the value delivered to the client compared to the total vatue
of the contract If the outcome of these can be assessed
with reasonable certainty, revenue and related costs are
recogmsed in the Income statement Losses are recognised
as soon as they are foreseen

Operating iIncome ts revenue less amounts payable on
behalf of clients to external suppliers where they are
retained to perform part of a specific client project or
service, and represents fees, commissions and mark-ups
on rechargeable expenses and marketing products

Contractual arrangements are reviewed (o ascertan whether
the group acis as prnincipal or agent wath regards to third
party costs {f the relationship 1s that of agent then the
recharge of third party costs 1s not recognised through
revenue Or cosiof sales

Revenue and operating income are stated exclusive of VAT,
sales taxes and trade discounts

Long-term coniracts

Where the outcome of a long-term contract for services
or goods can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are
recogmised by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract activity at the balance sheet date

The stage of completion is determined through an
assessment of the proportion of services that have been
delivered compared to the total services required to
complete the contraci, except where this would not be
representaiive of the stage of completion

Variations 1n contract work, claims and incentive payments
are included to the extent that the amount can be measured
reliably and its receipt1s considered probable

Where the outcome of a contract cannot be esbmated
relably, coniract revenue Is recognised to the extent of
contract costs incurred where 1t 1s probable they will be
recoverable Contract costs are recognised as expenses in
the penod in which they are incurred
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When it 1$ probable that tolal contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss 1s recognised as an
expense immedately

Leasing

lLeases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substanhally all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee All other leases are classified as
operating leases

Assets held under finance leases and the related lease
obligations are recorded in the balance sheet at the fair
value of the leased assets at the inception of the leases
or, If lower, the present value of minimum lease payments
The excess of the lease payments over the recorded
lease obligations 1s treated as finance charges which are
amortlised over each lease term to give a constant rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligation

Rental costs under operating leases are charged to the
income statement in equal annual amounts over the penods
of the leases

Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into
an operaling lgase are alsa spread on a straight-line basis
over the lease term

Foreign currencres

Transactions in UK companies dencminated in currencies
other than pounds sterling are recorded at the rates of
exchange prevaling on the dates of the transactions At
each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that
are denormnated 1n foreign currencies are retransiated at the
rates prevailing on the balance sheet date Gains and losses
ansing on retranslation are included in net profit or loss for
the penod Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated

On consolidation, the assets and habilties of the Group’s
overseas operalions are translated at the exchange rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date Income and expenses
are iranslated at the average exchange rates for the penod
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly Exchange
differences arising, If any, are classified as equity and
transferred to the Group's ranslation reserve Such translation
reserve differences are recognised as INCOMe of as expenses
in the penod in which the operation 1s disposed of

Translatron differences on non-maonetary financial assets
and iiabihties are reported as part of the fair value gan
or loss Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as investments in equity securities classified
as avatable for sale, are mncluded n the fair value reserve
In equily

Goodwill and farr vaiue adjustments ansing an lhe acguisition
of a foreign ennty are treated as assets and labilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate




Finance costs

Finance costs, which mclude interest and bank charges, are
recognised In the income statement in the year in which they
are incurred

Operating profit
Operating profit 1s stated before the share of results of
associate, investment income and finance costs

Retirement benefit costs

The pension cost 1s the amount of contributions payable by
the Group to the defined contributton pension scheme and
to personal pension schemes of certain employees during
the accounting penod These are charged as an expense as
they falt due

Long-term incentive schemes

The group operates a number of long term incentive schemes
to remunerate certain employees Benefits accrumng under
these schemes are recognised In the Income statement at
fair value as they are accrued

Taxation
The tax expense repreésents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax

The tax currently payable 1s based on taxable profit for the
year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the
income statement because 1t excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deduct:ible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible
The Group's hability for current tax 1s calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s the ax expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and hiabiibies in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used i the computation of taxabie
profit, and 1s accounted for using the balance sheet liability
method Deferred tax iabiliwes are generally recognised

for all laxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that It 1s probable that
taxable profits wilt be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utised Such assets and
habilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
anses from goodwill or from the intiaf recogmition {other than
In a business combination) of other assets and abilities

N & transaction that affects nesther the tax profit nor the
accounting profit

Deferred tax llabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences ansing on investments n subsidianss and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where

the Group 15 able to control the reversal of the temporary
difierence and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse In the foreseeable fuiure

COverview and Highhghts
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced (o the extent thal it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

avallable to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax ts calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply In the penod when the hability I1s settfed or the

assel s realised Deferred tax s charged or credied in the
income statement, except when it relates to items charged or
credited directly to equity, In which case the deferred tax I1s
also dealt with in equity

Other intangible assets

Other Intangible assets comprise acquired customer
relationships and contracts, brands and computer software
Customer relationships, coniracts and corporate brand names
acquired as part of acquisitions of business are capitalised
separately from goodwill as an intangible if their value can be
measured rellably on imtial recognition and 1t 1s probable that
the expected future economic benefit thal are attnbutable to the
asset will flow to the Group Corporate brands are considered to
have indefinite economic life and are therefore tested annually
for imparment Compuler software is capiialised based on the
cost incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software
intangible assets are stated at cost net of amortisation and
any provision for impairment The costs are amortised over
their estimated useful ives using the following rates

Computer software 4 years
Customer contracts and relationships 1-5years
Brand names tndefinite life

Property, plant and equipment

Property. plant and equipment are stated ai cost net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment Depreciation
1s provided 1n equal instaltments to write off the cost less
residual value over the estimated useful economic lives of
asset type as follows

Short-term leasehold improvemenits 5 years
tator vehicles 6 years
Fixtures, fittngs and equipment 4 years

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over therr
expected useful Iives on the same hasis as owned assets or,
where shorter, the term of the relevant lease

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset s
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and 1s recognised In
the income statement
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2 Sigmficant accounting policies [continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets excluding goodwill

Al each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there 15 any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset 1 estimated «n order

o determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any)
Where the assel does not generate cash flows that are
independent from other assets, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs An intangible asset with an indefinite useful
life 1s tested for impairment annually or whenever there 1s an
indication that the asset may be impared

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs

to sell and value in use In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to thewr present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
rnsks specific to the asset for which estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating
unit) 1s estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) I1s
reduced to its recoverable amount An imparment loss

15 immediately recognised as an expense In the iIncome
statement

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit} is
increased o the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recogrised for the asset (cash-
generating unit) in pnor years

Work in progress

Work in progress is stated at the lower of invoiced cost

and net realisable value, net of payments received on
account Cost represents work supplied from ouiside the
Group awaiting billing to c¢lients at the year-end and directly
atinbutable overhead costs

Provisions

Prowvisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obhgation as a result of a past event and it1s probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and are
discounted to present value where the effect 1s matenal
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Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial habiliies are recognised on
the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash, overdrafts (where the group has
formal nght of set off) and cash held on short-term deposit
{up to three months) Cash equivalents are cash deposits
held on three months deposit at the Royal Bank of Scotland
plc The deposits guarantee the loan note creditors Interest
accruing on the deposiis are payable to the holders of the
loan notes less any costs ansing

Trade recevables

Trade recewvables do not carry any interest and are stated at
their nominal value as reduced by appropnate allowances
for estimated irrecoverable amounts

Investmentis

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date where a purchase or sale of an investment 1s under
contract whose terms reguire the dehvery of the investment
within the timeframe established by the market concerned,
and are initially measured at cost, including transaction cosis

Investments are classified either as available for sale,

and are measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair
value, or at amortised cost, where no fair value Is readily
determinable Gains and losses on avallable for sale
financial assets ansing from changes m fair value are
recognised directly in equity, until the secunty 1s disposed of
or 1s determined to be imparred, at which time the cumutative
gan or loss previously recognised 10 equity 1s included in the
net profit or loss for the penod

Bank borrowings
Interest beanng bank loans and overdrafis are recorded at
lhe fair value of proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue cosis

Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest-bearing and are stated at
thewr norminal value

Equity instruments
Equity instruments 1ssued by the Company are recorded at
the fair value of proceeds receved, net of direct ISsue costs

Share-based payments

The Group has applied the requirements of IFRS 2 Share-
based Payments IFRS 2 has been applied to all grants of
equrty instruments after 7 November 2002 that were invested
as of 1 January 2005




The Group 1ssues equity-seltled share-based payments to
certain employees Equity-settled share-based payments
are measured at fair value at the date of grant The fair value
deterrmined at the grant date of the equity-settted share-
based payments 1s expensed on a straight-hne basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of shares
that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non-
market based vesting conditions

Fair value 1s measured for all schemes with market-based
conditions by use of the Monte Carlo model For all other
schemes, farr value is measured by use of the Black-
Scholes model The expected Iife used in the model has
been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for
the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions, and
behawioural considerations

Overview a_nd Highhights
Stategy and Outlock
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Directors Remuneration Report

A hability equal to the portion of the goods or services
received 1s recognised at the current fair value determined
at each balance sheet date for cash-settled share-based
payments

The Group also provides employees with the abitity to
purchase the Group's ordinary shares at 80% of the current
market value The Group records an expense, based on its
estimate of the 20% discount related to shares expected to
vest on a straight-line basis over the vesting peried Further
details are included m note 36 to the accounts

Standards not affecting the reported results nor the financral positton
At the date of the authonsation of these financial statements, the folfowing Standards and Interpretations which have not
been apphed in these inancial statements were in 1ssue bui not yet effective (and In some cases had not yet been adopted

by the EU)

Standard
{FRS 1 {amended)

Government Loans

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

1AS 27 {revised)
IAS 32 (amended)

IFRIC 20

Separate Financial Statements
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Stnipping Coslts in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine

The directors do nat expect that the adoption of the standards listed above will have a matenal impact on the financial

statements of the Group n future periods, except as follows

* IFRS 9 will mpact both the measurement and disclosures of Financial Instruments
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Year ended 31 Decemnber 2013

3 Business and geagraphical segments
Business segments

Segmental reporting

For management purposes, the Group 1s currently organised
into five operating segments Sport & Entertainment,
Adverusing and Marketing Services, Public Retabons,
Healthcare, and Insight and Engagement

Pnncipal activities are as follows

Sport & Entertainment

The Sport & Entertainment division is the fastest growing
Sport & Entertainment group 1in the world, and includes
ICON, the Essentally Group, IWUKA, Fast Track and most
recently JMI In the UK market, Fast Track and Essentially are
number one and number two respectively In the sponsorship
leagues tables (Marketing Magazine, November 2012)

Advertising and Marketing Services (‘'AMS')

The AMS division includes the VCCP Group and Teamsprrit
It possesses specialst skills in advertising and marketing
services, direct marketing, digital commumication, search
relations, potnt of salg, sales promotion, data consultancy
and technical design, mulbmedia content, youth marketing
and experential, marketing consulting, retal and shopper
marketing and specialist media planning and buying It also
specialises in the niche market of financial services
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Publc Relations

The Good Relations Group is a fully integrated brand
communications and CSR consultancy servicing more
than 400 clents in the UK and internatonally Comparues
include Corporate Citizenship, a best-in-class global CSR
consultancy, InEvidence, a market-leading and global
business-to-business customer advocacy agency, Good
Relations Brand Communications, one of the UK's leading
consumer brand and B2B public relations agencies,
Harvard, a renowned technology public relations business
and TTA Property, an award-winning property public
relations business

Healthcare

Open Health, a healthcare communications and market
access group was formed in 2011, and comprises
organically developed and acquired businesses The group
brands are Open LEC, Open Plan, Reynolds-MacKenzie,
Succinct, The Earth Works, Harvey Walsh and pH
Assaciates

Insight & Engagement

The Insight & Engagement division brings together some
of the country’s leading insight specialists wiih the most
extensive and Innovative research solutions to help their
clients {o reach faster conclusions, make better decisions
and develop mare informed solutions The Insight and
Engagement division 1s made up of Opinion Leader
Research, Facts International and Watermelon Research




Segment information about these businesses 1s presented below
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Govemance
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Advertising
Sport & and
Enter- Marketing Public Insight &

tainment Sarvices Relations  Healthcare Engagement Elimination Consolidated
2013 £'000 £°000 £°000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £'000
I}avanue o )
External sales 109,028 122,087 85330 21661 11,070 - 299,186
inter-segment sales 7.901 15,280 1,897 534 7429  (33,041) -
Totalrevenue B 116,929 137,317 37,287 22,195 18,4889 (33,041]) 299,186
Segment result )
Operatngwncome 55576 65807 21228 18,451 9,067 - 170129
Operating profit/{loss] by segment (9.502) 4,237 1,359 2,599 _ 2,667 - 1,360
Central administration costs [1,341)
Operating profit 19
Othergansandlosses L o (3.225)
Share of results of associates o B B 692
Investment income ~ - _ s ) 66
Finance costs e e _ {1,637}
Finance cost of deferred consideratian e R -.'.)
Finance cost of deemed remuneration __[345
Loss bafore tax - . e L _ (4,739])
Tax [4.429)
Lass for the year (9.168)
Profit for the year from discontinued
OpErations -
Lass after tax and discontinued oparatians {9.168)
Other segment information _ L o - . ~
Capaladdtigns 2,480 _ 2,493 §75 440 136 . - 6,124
Depreciation and amorusation 3,583 1,708 405 1,125 67 - 6,888
Goodwill o 130,277 50,827 14,681 24,360 7,865 - 227,810
Balance sheet ) _ o
Segmentassets T - i -
[inctuding goodwill) 181,713 87,187 25,538 35,652 11,933 342,023
Investments in associates and other
mnvestments s BBD3
Oeferred consideration recevable B o 282
Unallocated corporate assets 12.994
Consolidated total assets 361,902
Liabihttes L o o
Segment liabiities 44,888 31,014 _ 8,976 18,247 3,623 ___ 106,748
Unallocated corporate liabilities ) 13.370
Oraw-down under Group facility 57.737
Consalidated total habihties 177,855
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3 Business and geographical sagmants (continued)

Advenrtising
Sport & and
Enter- Marketing Public Ingight &

talnment Services Rolations  Healthcare Engagement Elmination Consolidated
2012 £'000 £000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £°'000 £'000
Revenue o _ i L
External sales 171 380 104995 40931 13,315 13,613 - 344,234
Inter-segment sales 4,000 9887 ¢ 0892 473 4133 [20,585] -
Totalrgvenue 175380 114882 43023 13788 17746 [20585) 344234
Segment result o o o o
Operating Income 65842 54313 21 075 10852 _7608 - 159,790
Cperaung profit by segmant . 439 3870 _ Bazg 1433  21% - 8769
Central administration costs [3876]
Operating profit 4893
Other gains and losses o e {1677]
Share of results of associates e e 560
Investment income e o . o 27
Fiapeecosts _  _ . _ _  _ ___ . __ _ . . o . _lee1)
Finance cost of deferred consideraion - o 99
Finance cost of deemed remuneration (270]
Profit befure tax B 2,544
- s
Loss for the year (2,656]
Profit for the year from discantinued
operations 2,790
Profit afver tax and discontinued operations 134
Other segment information - _ﬁ o “___ :-__ : o “d_:
Capttal additons 1gws 778 465 147 1 - 3105
Depreciation and amaortisation 37s8 1031 7i2 883 48 -  B153
Goodwill o 71971 491885 18218 24360 765 - 178108
Balance sheet - o T T o
Segment agsets T T
[including goodwilt) 121,335 57.032 46,088 27211 7561 269 227
Investments in associatesand o o o
other investmenis . o L o 6,073
Deferred consideration recewvable 1307
Unallocated carporate assets 1508
Censclidated total assets 278115
Liabilities o . o
Segrent habdities e 49 DBl 25,844 9880 17972 3730 106 507
Unallgcated corporate llabihties 13 P81
Draw-down under Group facility 1731
Consolidated total liabilities 121 519
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Geographical segments

The Group's operations are located In the United Kingdom,
Europe, the Middle East, the Far East, the USA, South
America, Afnca and Australasia The Sport & Entertainment
division I1s located in the United Kingdom, the Middle East,
The Far East, South Amenca, Europe, Afnca and Australasia
The Group’s Advertising and Marketing Services diviston

15 located in the United Kingdom, Continental Europe and
Australasia Public relations i1s carried out in the United
Kingdom, Europe, Africa, the Middle East, the Far East

and the USA The Insight & Engagement and Healthcare
divisrons are located solely in the United Kingdom

Cverview and Highlights
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During the year our largest cusiomer represented 10 45%
of revenueé Management believe that operating income 1s
a more meaningful measure Our largest client represented
12% of total operating income {2012 12%)

This was a client of the Adverlising and Marketing
Service dwision

The following table provides an analysis of the Group's
revenue by geographical market, based on the billing
iocation of the client

Revenue fram contrnuing operations by gecgraphical segment Ezg;g Ei:g;tal
United Kingdom _ o B 189,482 250071
Europe and Africa L B o a o /_j_ _7 o £8.877 58663
Middle East e T
USA - - 13,245 10734
SouthAmenca o ~ 8544 8473
Rest of the Warld } ’ N w2z gage
299,186 344234
The following I1s an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets, and additions to tangible assets and iniangible
asselts, analysed by the geographical area in which the assets are located
2013 2012
Carrying amaount of non-current assets £°000 £000
Urited Kingdom o L . 199,215 181824
Europe Middle East and Afnica T ; i o _ 5,069 o 7951
USA, South America and Rest u?ﬁua world ) o B : o 50,896 o 7,197
255,180 196,972
2013 2012
Capital additions £°000 £'000
Urited Kingdom o . - - oMy
Europe Middle Fast and Africa - i 489 - a4g
USA, South America and Rest of the World - 460 B 203
5,74S 3078
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4 Discontinued operations

On 18 June 2012, the Group entered into a sale agreement
to dispose of the Bell Pottinger businesses to BPP
Communrcaticns Limited, ('BPP Communications’) The
businesses sold to BPP Communications included the
entities Bell Potinger Public Relations Limited, Pelham Bell

Pottinger Limited (60%). Bell Pottinger Public Affairs Limited,

Pelham Bell Pottinger Asia Pte Limited, Bell Pottinger Middle
East FZ-LLC and Bell Pottinger Bahrain S PC and the trade
and assets of Bell Potiinger Sans Frontieres, Bell Pottinger
USA Inc and Bell Pottinger Central These companies
carned out part of the Group's public relations operations

Lord Belt and Piers Pottinger were Charrman and
Deputy-chairman of Ctume Commurnicauons plc, and
are shareholders of BPP Communications, and as such
the disposal 1s noled as a related party transaction

The disposal was completed on 30 June 2012, on which
date the control of the Bell Pottinger Businesses passed to
the acquirer

The total consideration was £19 6m, settled in £13 9m cash,
shares representing a 25% holding in BPP Communications
Limited valued at £4 1m, an amount of £1 0m which was
deferred for a penod up to 30 June 2013 and £0 6m of
deferred canstderation hability transferred The £1 Om

was receved dunng June 2013 BPP Communicaticns
Limited has been recognised as an associate at the balance
sheet date

The results of the discontinued operations which have
been Included In the consolidated Income statement were
as follows

12 months to

31 Decembar

2012

£°000

Revenue o o - . B N L 28,319

Operowngwcome _ _ ____ _ ___ ___ ___ __ __ _ ______ _wmms

Dperating {toss]/profit . B ) (54

[Loss)fprofitbeforetax T (sq)

Profit on disposal of dlSCDHU;UEd operations T T - - o 42‘.9?

Attrbutable taxexpense a2y

Net profit attnhutable to discontinued operations 2,780
Aunbutoblete B o B B

Equiyholdersoftheparent __________ ____ . _____ . _ 238

Non-controlling inierests

ugy

in the pertod to 30 June 2012 the Bell Potiinger businesses centrnbuted £0 5m to the Group's net operating cash flows, paid
£0 1min respect of investing activities and paid £0 9m in respect of financing activities

A profit of £3 Om arose on the disposal of the Bell Pottinger Business, being the proceeds of disposal less the carrying

amount of the subsidiaries net assets and attributable goodwill
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S Operating profit

Profit has been arnved at afier charging

Continuing Discontinued

operations operations Total
2013 £'000 £000 £°000
Pepreciation of owned property plant and equipment _ 21,4 0000000- 3,214
Depreciation of assets held under finance eases o 86 _ - &8
Amortisation of other intangible assets - computer software o —liéi T m_; : 108
Amortisation of other intangible assets *EUSIE;—Er?ﬂa[IUﬂSl’-‘FES S 3,568 . T 3,'_55
Impairment of goodwill B o ~ o _ o . 1712 A; i -,— I : 1,712
Rentals under operating leas;; - psgpeﬁ 7_ : o _;— - E.'-ISB B 7__ _ - ) 4,458
Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment T . L 123 ____ __F—__- j : 123
Staff costs [see note 6) j o . 121,699 4—_; 121,699
- Deemed Remunerotion [see note 6] o 7_ - . 780D et _ 7,800
Net farergn exchange losses - - o 445 - . 445

Conunuing Discontinued

operations operatlons Total
2012 £000 £°'000 £000
Depreciation of owned property, plant and equipment . _e%.1 79 3040
Depreciation of assets held under finance leases _______ o __ _ _ N B E o _ - B . 88
Amortisation of other intangible assets - _cimpu_te; software ; B - :-._ . ; ;Eli
Amortisation of ather intangble assets - customer relationships il o egqaq - 284
Rentals under operatrng leases - properyy  ~~51y4 3@ . 52l
Loss on disposal of praperty, plant and egqsipment ) 7 o o d34 . - 434
Staff costs (see note 8] o B . l_fEI.SBE 7 Taqas | 129037
Net foreign exchange losses j - T 304
An analysis of audhtors’ remuneration 1 provided below

2013 2012
£000 £°000

Fees payable to the Company's auditar far the audit of the Company’s
annual accounts . . S | S 101
Fees payable to the Company';a—u-dlmr and therr associates for other services ) o _ o _
- Audit related assurance services L A - - :_ 30 B a3
- the audit of the Cornpany’s subsidiaries purgant to legslation i o 332 -_EJH
Total audst fees e 483 421
Taxation comphance services 70 78
Other taxation advisoiy services 105 108
Corporate finance services - _38_
Qther services 49 39
Fees in relatton to prospectus 750 -
Tatal non-audit fees 974 263
Total fees paid to Company’s auditors 1,437 684

Fees in relation to prospectus of £750,000 included services for due diigence working capital reporting, accountants
report on historical financial information, report on taxation and pro forma combined financial mformation n relation to the
acquisition of Just Marketing Inc
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6 Staff costs

2013 2012

Average number of staff Number Number
Spart and Entertainment o L - m647 o W_EEF
;\Eve‘r’tgaand Market;n_g Sem;(ces_;i o - i 7____477 o ] B _' GEE o 5a7
PublcRelawons " 285 3
Healthcare ] - R 113
@gh{ and Engagement o I 78 T 70
1,848 1732

2013 2012

Staff costs £'000 £°000
Wages and Salares . o o 101.407 _ 101,255
Social Secunty costs ) o ] __:_ 10,229 :__77 11,809
Penston costs . o e 2,381 - 2,679
éhare—based payment awardsgr—a‘_nted to Dwectors and employees h L ) {128) S 2,020
Deemed Remuneration B o 7,800 1074
121,699 128037

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme for the benefit of the majonty of employees This 1s an
ndependently admumistered fund, the assets of which are held separately from those of the Company As at December 2013,
contnbutrons of £260,000 (2012 £233,000) due in respect of the current reporting penod had not been paid over to the schemes

7 Other losses

2013 2012

£'000 £'000

Loss on dispasal of trade _ o o s L [895]
Impairment in1 carrying valugqf ather Investments ___ B o - o _ = (668]
Loss on disposal of subsujlary_u S o - [3.225]) ) [114)
(3.225) [1677)

The Group disposed of a business in the Public Relations diviston dunng 2013 resulting in a loss of £3,224,578
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2013 2012
£000 £°000
DlVl(jgntiEEelved o 10 -
Earest on bank depo;ts T v_ : _ :u—¥ T 52 ‘ T E
Other interest recewabte T N . q o 12
€6 27
9 Finance costs from continuing operations
2013 2012
£°'000 £°000
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans o L (L5110 o (577}
E;est ont unsecured loan notes - _7 - - o (18) - —;_-_
Interest on obligatrons under finance leases - N o _H [11) [EI]
Other interest payable - T - (100) T F[B_B]
(1.637] [664)
Finance cost of deferred consideration ) . o _ [3o9) (325)
Finance cost of deemed rémuneratlon ' [345) [270)
[2.291) [1253]
10 Tax
2013 2012
£'000 £'000
Current tax o o _ R
UK corporation tax at 23 25% [2012 245%] o " apsz 5,148
R&]u;tmeht n respect of prior years . ST T EIE]__ R (436]
. _ 3578 Y712
Foreign tax N T o 7 TTaasr 7 7 iswo
Eusmm respecl—tl?p;ﬂnryears T T T (14) - 157
- o _ o - 4,801 _ B473
Deferred tax T __ ) _ ~ o
Current year onginating Eﬁpumﬁfer_enczg - - {911) o [1223]
Adjustment i respect of prior years S T 439 o __[—56]
(472) (1279]
Tax charge for the year 4,429 5200

UK Corporation tax 1s calculated at 23 25% (2012 24 5%} of the estimated assessable profit for the year

Taxation for other junsdictions is calculated at the rates prevaihng in the respective junsdichons
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10 Tax (contnued)
The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the inceme statement as foilows

2013 2012
£'000 % £°'000 %
(Lass)/profit before tax _ . o748 - 2544 I
Tax a_t—tﬁeﬂ( corpuratm;n—t_a;rate of 23 25% [2(]12_22! E{} : o i ) m[l:l] - 253_% - @_)_ _Eﬁ
:E:p-enses t}\-;i ar;. nD(&Eu}t\gle in ﬂeie_rr—nmg taxa—bgprgfns : “?Eﬁ o -‘;I a L il—lTB_: ﬁ'l_E!%
Remuneration expense on business combinations _ _ 1,896  -398% 2899 1140%
Lass/{profit] on disposalfwnte-off of investments 1,104 =233% 243 17%
Unrecognised tax losses carned forwardf{ukilised] o o ~ 258 T ?5 4% 127 T 08%
Prior year corporation tax adjustn;an-t— ) 7 {689) _145% [279) B _[ﬁ%_]
Prior year deferred tax adjustment - o o - 439 -93% — [56]) - [0 4%)
Unreheved overseas wuhhuldmgt?f - o S s o 1% 289 20%
Recognition af previously unrecngmsed_d_éfeﬁd \ax assets t L —[TBOE] i _ 64% ) - T
Effect of reduction of tax rate on deferred tax 229  -48% 124 09%
Effect of differences in tax rates of subsidiarres operating in - o T )
other jurisdictions (13) -0 3% 112 08%
Tax expense and effective tax rate for the year 4,429 -93.2% 5200 204 5%
Tax on discontinued operations - - 94 37%
4,429 -83 2% 5.294 20B 2%
11 Deferred tax
2013 2012
£°000 £°000
Deferred tax asset movement _ .
At 1 January ﬁ ) -7 ) N o -__ 2,084 o 1552—
Osposals . o - - B3
AcqwsﬁEn of subsmﬂarg—'_ - o - _ ) 108 [322]
Credit/[charge) to equity T 7 ;ﬁ V: ﬁ_—F_ _ ’ 242 B B ag
Credit/fcharge] to the pmf&iz;d Ioss account B o T ‘___ - 472 B 1,279
Exchange adjustments T o o [54) a -
At 31 Oecember 2,853 2084
Analysis of deferred tax asset T T - . o __ _ ) o
Oepreciation in excess of capnal a1luwan_|:§s_ T o 740 : ES_
Short term temporary differences _ . 316 787
Share based payments ~ o o s o 1,069 B 9499
Losses N ) o o o ) 721 —__—_ B E!_El——
Intangibles ) B o e 7 -[75_17
2,853 2084
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Deferred tax agsets of £0 5 mion in the UK (2012 £0 5 milion) and $14 3 mithon in the US {2012 $3 6 milion) have not
been recognised in deferred taxation due to insufficient certainty that there will be appropnate profits avalable 1n the future
to utiise them

In the UK, the Finance Act 2012 included legislation to reduce the main rate of corporation tax from 24% to 23% from

1 Apnl 2013 This gives an effective tax rate of 23 25% for current tax for the year ended 31 December 2013 The Finance Act
2013 included legislation to further reduce the main rate of UK corporation tax to 21% with effect from 1 April 2014 and to
20% with effect from 1 Apnl 2015 Deferred tax has been provided at the rate prevading when the temporary differences are
expected to reverse

Accelaratad Share Short tarm
tax based timing
depreciation paymant Lossas  differences  Intangihles Total
£°000 £°000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 January 2012 B B8 783 254 186 [B6E] 1,032
Acquisitrons o - 1 - 384 - [712] (322}
Disposals - (63 ee - - B8 @
Charge/[credit] to proﬁt_a;ﬁl_ns_;agc_ount_ T _L—193__ 166 [410) jii - 738 1279
Credit to equity - 98 I _—9—8
Balanceat1 January 2013 . 816 %8s 233 787 (751) 2.084
Acquisitions o a 3 - - a1 [2189) 108
e T T T o
%rg—eﬁzredlt]ta p;mt and Igss;c_cpgnt B _—“ __[543] A _[_]3_2} T *527‘ S [iﬁ]_ _].Eli.—_ qgy
Chargetoequty - P 242
Other S S S T i [_12i7 - L [12)
E:ichangre adJUSImEntS_ o T . T T 27 D [_3]7 o (34) o —7[‘5tl_]
740 1.088 721 316 7 2,853

No deferred tax llability 1s recogrused on temporary differences of £1,060,000 (2012 £399,000) relating to the unremitted
earmings oOf overseas subsichanes as the group 1s able 1o control the uming of the reversal of these termporary differences
and 1t1s probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future The temporary differences at 31 December 2013
represent only the unremitted earrings of those overseas subsidianies where remiitance to the UK of those earnings may
result in a tax labiity, prnincipally as a result of dwvidend withholding taxes levied by the overseas jurisdiciions in which these
subsidiaries operate

12 Dividends
2013 2012
£°000 £°000
Amounts recognised as distributions ta equrty holders in the year o
Final dn;(’:lend for the year ended 31 Cecember 2012 of 5 14p per share [2011 4 50p] o o _ h4o2 3645
Intenm dmidend for the year ended 31 December 2013 of 2 20p per share [2012 2 10p per share] o 1.893’_ T ﬁ__l?UT
6,289 5349
Proposed fnal dwidend for the year ended 31 December 2013 of 5 14p pes share {2012 S 14p per share} 5,043 4381

The proposed final dividend 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and has not been included
as a hability in these financial statements The dividend will be paid on 13 June 2014 to those shareholders on the register at
23 May 2014 The ex-dwidend date 1s 21 May 2014

Under an arrangement dated 3 Apnl 1998, The Chime Communications Employee Trust which holds 910,704 ordinary shares
representing 0 9% of the Company’s called-up share capital, has agreed to wave dividends over 427,124 shares (0 4% of
the company's called up share capital), the difference being those shares held under the deferred share scheme
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13 Earnings per share

2013 2012
pence pence
Earnings from canunuing and discentinued opergtions o
Basic _ o _ _ (12e83p) {159
Diluted o ] o L (12 63p] [159p]
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share 15 based on the following data
2013 2012
£000 £'000
Earnings for the purposes of basic and diluted earnings per share being net
floss)/profit attnibuiable to equity holders of theparent. ™~~~ o (10831}  _  [L276)
Numbar Number
Waighted average number of ordinary sharas for the purposes of basic eamings per share 85,742,203 80,203,311
Effect of dilutive potental ordinary shares e
Deferred shares o o L 7)295.49ﬂ 840,598
Share options o - ’ " s22,342 603,570
Wetghted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of diluted eamings per share 86,560,039 81 647 479

Diluted earmings per share 15 calculated on the proiit for the year attributable to pareni company shareholders divided by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year adjusted for the potenttally dilutive impact of
employee share incentive schemes and shares to be issued as part of deferred or conbngent consideration on acquistions
of subsidhanes

Some share options that had a higher purchase price than the average market price of the shares for ihe year ended
31 December 2013 were outstanding These options have been excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share
as they would have been antidilutive

2013 2012
pence pence
Earnings from continuing operations S . .
Emgs pe_r share o o B ) T - T
Basic 7 pessy  (uarp
Diwed L _wessml {44
£°000 £°000
Earnings e
Net loss atiributable to equity halder of the parent ‘ ) o T (10,831 [1.276]
Adjustment to exclude [profit] irom discontinued operations o B - i {2 790)
Adjustment te exclude non-cantrolling interest of discontinued operations - 48y
Earmngs from continuing operations for the purpose of basic earmings per share being
net profit attributable to the equity holders of the parent L (10,831} {3,5821
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The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for both basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing

and disconiinued operations

2013 2012

pence pence
Earnings from discontinued operations B o
Basic __‘ ) B o j . - ) )_— 288p
Dluted T e
14 Goodwill

2013 2012

£'000 £°000
Carrying amount st 1 January ~ ~ . 172,109 168220
Impairment of goodwill o C ’ [1.712) o -
Exchange dlfferen_cgig ' o i R i S __[u483) ~_[738]
Recognised un:cqmsmon ofsub5|d|arrTe—s_ - 7ﬁ“ T ) T :_— ) 54,881 B 26,170
Other changes in respect of prior year acqmsmuns_ T 7__ T N T S8 o [3024)
Disposal of subsidiaries ) S (3.043) {12,518
At 31 December 227,810 178,108

The Group tesis goodwill annually for impairment or more frequently if there are incdhications that goodwill might be impaired

The impairment of goodwill of £1,712,000 relates to goodwill on previous acquisitions that are undergoing sirategic
restructuring following the detenoration in the results of the business The impairments arose in Sport and Entertainment,
Advertising and Marketing Services and Public Relations divisions

The carrying value of goodwill and other intangible assets at the reporting date for the significant CGUs 1s as follows

2013 2012
£°060 £°000
Sport & Entertainment L . . . L o L
Essentlally: Goodwill - o L o o . i ﬁEB,DBS o 29,065
Essentally - Intangibles 486 486
. o o ) . o 29,551 28551
EﬁlTl’ECk o j o ) o ) T L: B 2_5.579‘_ o 25,985
Just Marketing Inc _7 : o _ o __ o o —_: 4‘1.002_ L I
Advertising and Marketing Services ;i L N B ) L : : j__,
VCCP 34,917 33,176
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14 Goodwll [continued)

Significant CGUs are those whose carrying value of goodwill exceeds 10% of the total goodwill balance

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value 1n use calculations The key assumptions for the value In
use calculations are those regarding discount rates and growth rates during the penod Management estimates discount
rates using pre-ax rates that reflect current market assessments of the tme value of money and has taken into consideration
the nsks specific to each CGU

The Group prepared cashflow forecasts based on the 2014 budgets and the five year plan approved by the Directors The
budgets and the five year plan were prepared by local management talkung into accaunt revenues fram existing clients and
the resources required to service the clients They also used their industry knowledge with regards to the marketplace and
pncing when formulating the budget

After the initial five year forecast period, a long term growth rate of 2% (2012 2%) has been applied to the cash flow
forecasts into perpetulty This rate does not exceed the long-term growtn rate for the relevant markels, and 1s apphicable to all
of the CGUs

The pre-tax rate used to discount the forecast cashflows from all CGUs in the Adverlising and Marketing, Public Relations,
Healthcare and Insight and Engagement sectors 1s 10 6% (2012 11%) A pre-tax rate of 10 6% {2012 11%) has been used
for the Sport and Entertainment CGUs, other than one CGU located in Brazil, where a rate of 13 1% (2012 13%) has been
assumed n order to take account of the nsk profite

The Group has conducted a sensiivity analysis on the impairment test of each CGU's carrying value If discount rates were
increased by 1% and operating income reduced by 10% 0 each penod, goodwil! aliocated to one CGU woutd be impaired
by £632,000 The CGU operates within the Public Relation segments For the same CGU, if the sensitivities were taken in
1solation only the increase in the discount rate has an impact The discount rate would need to increase by 0 9% before any
imparment would be recorded

The cumulative goodwill imparrment as at the brought forward balance sheet date was £39,311,000
in 2013 other changes in respect of prior year acquisttions predommantly include

+ Revisions to the estimate of deferred consideration payable relaiing to acquisitions completed prior to the tmplementation
of IFRS 3 {revised 2008)
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15 Acquisition of subsidiaries
In 2013, the Group made a number of acquisitions m arder to grow the business
The Sport and Entertainment division made 3 mamn acquisitions as follows

+ Complete Leisure Group which owns the nghts to all Lord Coe's income streams over the next iifteen years Primarily,
these Income streams constitute commissions, royalties and consulting income Lord Coe 1s one of the most high profile
figures in world sport and the proposed acqutsition of CLG will assist CSM Sport & Entertainment ('CSM'} in its ambition to
become one of the top three sports and entertainment businesses in the world, and

+ People Marketing I1s a sporis marketing and communications agency based in Shanghai It will significantly enhance the
geographrcal spread of CSM's activities and provide access to the Chinese and South East Asia markets

+ Just Marketing inc {'JMI'} a global marketing firm focused on motorsports, operating primartly in Formula 1, NASCAR (the
National Association for Stock Car Auto Racing) and IndyCar JMI has offices in Indianapolis, London and Hong Kong The
acquisitton will help CSM’s fulfil its aspiration of becoming a leading sports marketer In particutar it provides

* aleading position in motorsports, a sport in which it currently has imited presence,
« gives a foothold into the United States, one of the world's largest sports marketing markets,
* reduces CSM's revenue volatility through JMI's mulb-year contracts, longstanding relationships and strong revenue visibility

The VCCP Partnership made 1 main acquisition as follows

+ WARL Group Limited which brings specialist retail and shopper skills to the VCCP Partnership

Complete Leisure Group

On 30 January 2013 the group exercised its option to acquire Lord Coe's 93% interest in The Complete Leisure Group
Limited {{CLG"}, a company incorporated in the United Kingdom, for inihial consideration of £1,565,000 1n cash This was in
addition to the payment in November 20112 of £300,000 for acquirtng the option bringing total consideration 1o £2,265,000
A further 6% was acquired from minonty shareholders for £110,000 bringing the total share acquired to 95%

Additional amounts are payable 1o Lord Coe contingent on the results of the business, capped al the maximum of
£10,200,000 {undiscounted) As at 31 December 2013, £1,795,855 (discounted for finance ¢costs) has been provided for as
deemed remuneration The deemed remuneration I1s expected to be paid in 2015 and 2017 The total maximum consideration
and deemed remuneration payabie for CLG 1s £12,600,000

CLG was acquired by Chime's Sport and Entertatnment division

The fair value of the net assets acquired is detailed below

Provisional Fair value Provisional

book value adjustments fair values

£°000 £°000 £°000

intangible fixed assets - o - ~ 1,895 _ 1,885
Other investments - i - 79ﬁ [79]_ T -
Debtors and other c;rent as@ _t - B 103 T L 103
Cash at bank - - & - 7 g3
aed_ltors S e e e [228}7 [394) - (622)
Net assets . _ 530 1422 2,012
Gaodwil I S 391
Minonty Interest o [138)
Fair value of censideration 2.265
Cash consideration o __i ____j_; T o i : 2,265
Cash acqurred o } (636]
Cash outfiow arising an acquisition 1,629
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15 Acquisition of subsidiaries [continued])

The adjustment to invesiments 1s to de-recognise INvestments in non-core businesses The adjustment to intangible fixed
assets 1s to recogmise £1,895,558 of intangibles relating to customer contracts and relationships The adjustments to
credilors relates to the recogrition of deferred tax on intanQible fixed assets

Costs amounting to £87,954 have been expensed during the year and are included in operating expenses

Goodwill represents the rights held by CLG to Lord Coe's income streams for the next 15 years Lord Coe 1s one of the maost
high profile figures in world sport and the proposed acquisiion of CLG will assist CSM Sport & Entertainment i its ambution
o become one of the top three sports and entertainment businesses 1n the world CLG contributed revenue of £1,490,849
and an operating loss of £1,667,222 (after a deemed remuneration charge of £1,795,855 milien) to the results of the Group
since acguisiion {f the acquisiion had been completed at the begmning of the year, the Group revenue for the penod would
also have been £1,490,949 and group operaling profit would have been £1,667,222

WARL Group
On 15 May 2013 the group acquired 100% of The WARL Group Limited {("WARL'), a company incorporated in the United
Kingdom, for initial consideration of £5,046,000 of which £1,331,000 was paid in shares and £3,715,000 was paid in cash

Additional amounis are payable contingent on the results of the business, capped at the maxirnum of £8,300,000
(undiscounted) As at 31 December 2013, £776,000 (discounted for finance costs) has been provided for as deemed
remuneration The deemed remuneration 15 expected {o be paid in 2016 and 2019 The total maximum consideration and
deemed remuneration payable for WARL 1s £13,400,000

WARL was acquired by Chime’s Advertising and Marketing Services division

The fair value of the net assets acquired 1s detatled below

Pravisional Fair value Provisional

hook value adjustments fair values

£°000 £°000 £°'000

Intangible fixed assets B o 88 2809 2,697

Property plant and equipment - 108 - 108
Debtars and other current assets B T m__m"_ o ——[El o —11_83_3
Cashatbank T o T 7 381 T T a1
Creduars T " [3m4s)  (695]  [3,744)

Net assets 1434 14908 3,342

Goadwil ’ o T ) 1704

Fair value of cansideration 5,046

@h consideration B o o ’7¥ T S o 3,715
Cash acguired T I o {381)

Cash outflow ansing on acquisition 3.334

The adjustment to intangible fixed assets 15 to de-recognise £88,231 Ihat was recognised on an internally generated basis
and to recognise £2,697,046 of intangibles relaling to customer contracts and relationships

The adjustments ta creditors relate to additional accruals wentifled by management and 1o recogmse deferred tax on
intangible fixed assets '

Costs amounting to £253,657 have been expensed during the year and are included in operating expenses
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Goodwill represents the specialist retall and shopper marketing skills held by WARL, which adds significant capacity to
VCCP's gxisting offering for integrated communications

WARL contributed revenue of £5,280,631 and operating loss of £699.429 (after a deemed remuneration charge of
£776,316) to the results of the Group since acquisition If the acquisition had been completed at the beginming of the year,
management estimate thal Group revenue for the pencd would have been £8,646,734 and Group operating 'oss would have
been £102,704

People Marketing

On 15 May 2013 the group acquired 100% of People Marketing Limited {'PM’), a company incorporated in the United
Kingdom, for initial consideration of Hong Kong $128,000,000 (£10,974,644) This consideration was payable over 2 tranches,
one of Hong Kong $25,600,000 (£2,168,646) in cash and a second tranche of Hong Kong $102,400,000 (£8,805,998)
payable wia cash Hong Kong $89,600,000 (£7,522,487) and shares Hong Kong $412,800,000 (£1,283,511)

Addttional amounts are payable contingent on the results of the business, capped at the maximum of Hong Kong $97 0
million {approximately £7 6 million undiscounted) As at 31 December 2013 no provision has been made for deemed
remuneralion in accordance with the expected profile of payment The deemed remuneration Is expecied to be paid In
2015 and 2016 The totat maximum consideration and deemed remuneration payable for PM i1s Hong Kong $225 0 million
(approxmately £18 6 mitfion)

PM was acquired by Chime's Sport and Entertainment division

The fatr value of the net assets acquired 1s detalled below

Provisional Fair valua Provisional
book value adjustments fair values
£'000 £°000 £000
Intangible fixed assets o = 2538 2,538
Debtors and oiher current assets ’ o ) o . L Eji T - 248
Creditars T T T T 2) (53331 (595
Met assets o 184 _ 2,005 2,189
Goadwill - o 8786
Fair value of consideratiocn 10,975
Cash consideration ) L o T _ 9,691
Cash acquired ) o o -
Cash outflow anising on acguisition 9,691

The adjustment to Intangible fixed assets 1s to recogmise £2,537,580 of intangibles relating to customer contracts and
relationships The adjusiments to creditors relates to the recognition of deferred tax onintangible fixed assets

Costs amounting to £808,030 have been expensed during the year and are included In operating expenses

Goodwill represents the specialist skills held by PM which will significantly enhance the geographical spread of CSM Sport
and Entertainment’s activities and provide access to the Chinese and South East Asia markets

PM contributed revenue of £3,319,609 and operating profit of £458,186 to the results of the Group since acquisition If the
acquistion had been completed at the beginning of the year, management estimate that Group revenue for the penod would
have been £7,576,609 and Group operating profit would have been £2,765,186
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15 Acquisition of subsidiaries [continued)

Just Marketing Inc

On 20 November 2013 the group acquired 100% of Just Marketing Inc ('JMI'), a company incorpoerated in the Uruted
States, for imtial consideration of USD3$68,039,703 (£42,296,296) of which USD$51,359,945 (£31,939,414) was pad In
cash, USD$2,795,508 (£1,735,801) was paid in shares and USD$13,884,250 (£8,621,081) was paid via issue of Escrow
Consideration Shares to an escrow agent This compnised of Claims Escrow Consideration shares (USD$5,018,402
(£3,116,052)) and Revenue Escrow Consideration Shares (USD$8,865,848 (£5,505,028)

The claims escrow consideration shares will be released on 20 November 2014 should there be no claims and the warranty
provision in the sale and purchase agreement The revenue escrow consideration shares will be released based on revenues
due to be receved by JMI dunng the penod 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017 pursuant to new contracts entered into
following 31 August 2013,

Additional deferred consideration shares wilt be 1ssued up to a maximum of 685,865 shares (approx USD$3 5m (£2 2m))
This comprises 247,903 Claims Escrow Deferred shares (approx USD$1 3m (£0 8m)) and 437,962 Revenue Escrow deferred
shares (approx USD$2 2m {£1 4m)) Deferred consideration shares have been provided for of £2,160,475

JM! was acquired by Chime's Sport and Entertainment division

The fair value of the net assets acquired i1s detailed below

Provisional Fair valua Provisional

Book Value adjustments fair values

£°000 £'000 £'000

Intangible assets 134399 (13,499] -
Goonwl T T T Tgwm T (wasy <
boparty Plartand Equprene s @y sa
Debters and uiher current assé£s - o } i o 8,042 T 3 776 N ]_.1_8__18
Creditors T o S _['11_555]_-_“ o f7_8u]L o (11,631)
Cash at bénl; T T/ = T __784_ o T 484
Long-term habiliues B T T [760] T (760}
Net assets 20,731 (20.278) 455
Goodwill - T T T T S T T ﬂfl.lﬁ;
Fair value of consideration 44,457
lﬁ\-f;ue of initial consideration T T T T 42,2;7_
Fair value of deferred consideration o _: - : : o _‘ ; __2.180
Econsme;amn - 0 /0 " D 31,9:0—
Cash acquired o T - T T T (u84)
Cash outfiow arising on acquisition 31,456

Due to the proximity of the transaction to the 1ssue of these financial statements the information required to prepare the

intangible valuation for the business combination 1s as yet unavailable

The adjustment to intangible fixed assels 1s to derecognise £13,488,732 that was recognised on an internally generated
basis The adjustment to goodwill 15 to derecognise the goodwill held by JMI from previous acquisitions

The adjustment to property, plant and equipment 1s to bring the JMI depreciatton in ine with the Chime deprectation policy

The adjustment to other current assets Is the recognition of deferred tax asset on intangible fixed assets

Costs amounting 1o £3,589,459 have been expensed durmg the year and are included In operating expenses
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Goodwill represents the specialist skills held by JMI which will significantly enhance the geographical spread of CSM Sport
and Entertainment’s activities and provide a foothold to the United States and global markets

JMI contributed revenue of £5,068,293 and operating loss of £697,577 to the resulls of the Group since acquisition If the
acquistiton had been completed at the beginning of the year, management estimate that Group revenue for the period would
have been £31,391,164 and Group operating loss would have been £257,718

16 Otherintangible agsets

Customer

Brand contracts and Computar

namas refationships software Total

£000 £00D £°'000 £'000
Cost o _ - - _ .
midmeyeole T T 7T T T T T e daes | sad
Additions B - . B B _ﬁﬁ‘f_~ _—_ S 27 2
Acquisition of subsidiaries _:_-: - —_ﬂ_ﬁ ~ j_ ;:_j-__ k— _3 006 - ) 3.6[-]6—
Disposal _ - - - [359] [19] EE!]
Reclassify fram Property Plant and Eqﬁment o o - - 378 378
Exchange differences - o T T T -@5? ) - [45]
AtlJanuary 2018 o . u8B 9,359 1574 11,419
Addltl_ans T o o _ - ) - - 378 - 379
J_\cqmsrtlnn of SI.IE_SIdIarlBS ; __;__ -_ T_ :l_ N _;;i; ——M_ N : 77,17):7 7_; ~ _1,3;___: i@
Oisposal . - _ = . pm_ poy
Ret;as;f'ﬁm;n- Prn;n_nmnt_and Eq:\p_ment i . - = - - 10 10
Exchange differsnces T B FfsT S _kE‘T] o [—Sa
At 31 December 2013 486 16,443 1,876 18,805
Accumulated amortisation i L B . o i
At 1 January 2012 T o ‘_—__—____—— - o ;_ 5311- o ﬁli—?ﬁ_ N o 1719‘5‘0
Charge for the year - 2944 81 3025
Disposal i T R
Reclassify from Property Plant and Eqmpmeaf T ~ - 213 213
At 1l January 2013 - = B 1430 8,185
Chergefortheyear - 3,568 108 3,674
Disposal - o - B ;u ___—ﬁf o - T f_‘ﬁ]___ [;5_]
Reclasaify from Proparty, Plant and Equipment B o - - o _ 3 3
At31 Docember 2013 B - 10,323 1484 11,767
Net book amount o
31 December 2013 o 486 6,120 432 7.038
31 December 2012 _ _ws 2604 T 3234
1 January 2012 - o 486 2945 39 3471

Corporate brands are considered to have indefinite economic life because of their proven market position and the Group's
commitment to develop and enhance therr value On this basis, 1t is reasonable to assign an infinite Ife to these intangible
assets and review them on an annual basis in order 1o assess whether there has been any degradation of a Company's
brand name
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17 Property, plant and equipmeant

Short-term
leasehold Motor  Fixtures, fittings
improvements vehicles and computers Total
£°000 £°000 £°000 £°000

Cost . _ .
At T January 2012 - T sa;7 7 ess  1o4ss 221
Additions - - o me a1 275 3078
Acquisition of subsidiary o - 2 ~ 0 747
Disposal of subsidgry L o - Bz} [825)
Exchange differences o o ! = i (57} (s8]
Transfers 7# . i ) f?T - T 7 - -
Reclasslfy_m Other Intannglle_s S L T ; :_ o ) -___ o [375 T (378]
Disposals [1523) [181] [1530] {3,234]
At 31 December 2012 ~ L 4,280 169 11,102 15,551
Addrtions T 2432 23 3280 5745
Acquisition of subsidiary ___ o —____; B2 oug 85 635
Disposal of subsidiary o o _l o - 7 - (187} (167])
Exchangedifferences N 19 33 _(69)
Transfers B o _ - - ‘ - _ - ) =
Reclassify to Other Intangibles o 7w‘_j T - Hff - [_]Ili
Disposals ) (418) [0 (8871 [L.534]
At 31 December 2013 6.370 412 13,513 20,156
Accumulated depreciation o o - _t B ﬁ__ o :: __j ;_l,-
AtlJanuay202 3z230 83 5581 B84
Charge for the year e 730 B 57 2341 3128
Disposal of subsidary _ o (101} ~_[101) ~ [512] [714]
Transfers : o B B E]_“ - 3 _ﬁ:—* -
Reclassify to Dther Intangibles o B ) - __- o [213] _) (213)
Exchange differences - 1] - (8 [29)
Eliminated on dlspusal- o o [1078) T LT [1302) o [2,380)
At31 December 2012 o 2777 39 5,870 8,688
Charge for the year _ 728 61 2,425 3,214
Disposal of suhsndmr\; ] — - T {153) B [153)
Transfers . ~ ) o - - - 7 -
Reciassifyto Dtherintangibles __ = - B @
Exchange differences . ) (13) (11) (27)
Eliminated on disposal [393) - (86E6) {1,398)
At 31 December 2013 3,109 87 7.262 10,319
Nethookamount 7 o o i T 7
31 December 2013 - 32610 325 6,251 9,837
1 December 2012 o 1503 130 5232 6865
1 January 2012 ) 2247 206 4874 7327

The carppng amount of the Group's motor vehicles includes an amount of £nd (2012 £34,375) in respect of assets held under finance
leases As stated in note 26, the Group's abligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor's charges over the leased assets
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The Group's pnncipal irading subsidianes and associated undertakings in 2012 are hsted below

Proportion
of ordinary
shares haid
Country of and voting
Company Nature of business Incorporation tights
Substitharnies o o L . . L
Big Eyes Cormmunicatons Lumited + Advertising and marketing ~ United Kingdom 100%
Brand Democracy Limited " ** e el .. . PResearcth _ UnmedKingdom  100%
Bullngse Limited **~ L Design consultancy United Kingdern ~— 100%
Convivas Brasi Gestao de Eventos Esportivos Ltda Sports marketing consultancy Brazil 53%
) T viborpnraté & social responsibifity T o
Corpaorate Citizenship Limited + . _ o consultancy United Kingdom 100%
The Corporate Gitzenship inc. o Corporate & social responsibiity USA 100%
CSM Projetos Drgamzacao de Eventos SPE Ltda [FIFA SPV) Sports marketing consultancy Brazil 100%
B T Athletes_rggagementand o
CSM Sport and Entertainment Australa Pty Ltd . L _sports marketing Australa  100%
CSM Sport and Entertainment Espana SL. Sports marketing consultancy Spain ~ 81%
CSM Sports and Entertainment France Lumited (formerly Athletes management and
Essentially France Limted) + sporis consultancy United Kingdom B5%
- T Athletes management and
CSM Sport and Entertainment New Zealand Limited o sports consultancy New Zealand 100%
Athletes management and
C3M Sport and Entertainment South Africa (Pty} Uimited - sports markeung ~ South Afnica _100%
GR-1 Limited == * o L Public Relations Urited Kingdam 100%
Good Relations Consultants Limited *°* ) _ Public Relations United Kingdom ~ 100%
Earth Warks Digial Limited o Oigual healthcare wwtiatives United Kingdom 50%
Essentially Athlete ManagementLimited .~~~ Athletes management Umited Kingdom 100%
Sports marketing and
Executve Drive BventgLLC o sponsorship . _Usa 100%
Essenually Sports Marketing Limited =~~~ Sports marketing consuitancy United Kingdom ~ 100%
Facts Internatinnal Limited + Research Uruted Kimgdam 100%
~ Makeungconsuktencyand
Fast Track Agency Limited * i ) event management  United Kingdom  100%
Fast Track Agency Scotland Limited =~~~ Sports marketing consultancy United Kingdom ~ 100%
Fast Track Events Livted * =~~~ Event management  United Kingdom 100%
Fast Track Hong Kong Limited . ____Sporis marketing consultancy HongKong  100%
Fast Track Middle East FZ LLC i Sports marketing consultancy Abu Dhalu 100%
Fast Track Sathng Limited * o Sports marketing consultancy  United Kingdam 100%
FIL Market Research Limited + S Research United Kingdom 100%
Golden Goal Sports Ventures Gestao Esportiva Ltd Sports marketing cansultancy Brazil 60%
Good Relations Limited o o Public relations United Kingdern __ 100%
Good Relatons Group USA inc o - o Public relations Usa  100%
Guihford Consulung Lirmted == * ) Strategic plannimg . United Kimgdom 100%
Harvard - Good Relations Group GmbH L Publg refations _Germany 100%
Harvard Public Relatians Limited + o Public relations Uruted Kingdam 100%
Harvey Walsh Limited Healthcare data analytics United Kingdom __91%
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18 Subsidiaries and assocrates [continued]

Proportion
of ordinary
shares held
Country of and voting
Campany Nature of business Incorporation rights
Subsidiones [continued) B B _ __ o - )
Hooper Galton Limited ** ) . Advertising and marketing United Kingdom _~ 100%
lcon Oisplay Limsted * o Sports marketng consultancy  United Kingdom 100%
lcon Middle FastLLC N o o Sparts marketing consultancy Qatar 100%
ICON Marketng ern Oisplay Lida . __Sports marketing consultancy Brazl  92%
lcon Prolab Events Orgamging LLC . ____Sports marksting consultancy Dubat 50%
Sparts marketing and
WUKA Limited * _ ) . ______spansorship cansultancy  United Kingdom __100%
Sports marketing and
ILUKA LLC o o ____ _ spensorshipconsuttancy ~~ Russia ~100%
Insight Marketing & Communications bimited ) ~_ Publicrelations  Umited Kingdom 100%
Sports marketing and
JMIMotorsport Limited e sponsorship United Kingdom 100%
Sports marketing and
Just Marketing Inc o _ - sponsorship i usa  100%
MeKenzie Clark Limited = o o ____ __ PBranding for live events United Kingdom _100%
Open LEC Limited _ L Healthcare public relations  United Kingdorn 100%
Oprmon Leader Research Limited _ o L _ Market research United Kingdam 100%
People Marketing Sport and Entertainment [Shangha] Co Ltd __Sports marketngconsultancy China 100%
PH Associates Limuted B Healthcare public relations United Kingdom _100%
PMP Legacy Limited * e Sports marketing consultancy United Kingdam 100%
Pure Medig Group Limited . o _ ___Medsa buying United Kingdom 100%
Resonate Communicatians Limited ™=~ o Consumer public relatrans ~ United Kingdom ~ 100%
Reynolds-MacKenzre Limited =~ L Healthcare public retations United Kingdom 100%
Rough Hill Limited L _Youth marketing and experiential  United Kingdom __B0%
Sports marketng and
Sportseen Limited * . o . _ . mediasales  United Kingdom  100%
Stuart Higgins Communications Limited * o Sports marketing consultancy United Kingdam 100%
Sucainct Cammunucgtions Limited o Healthcare education ~ Urited Kingdom  100%
Frnancal services advertising
Teamnspirit Brand Limited *** e and marketrng  Umited Kingdom ~~~ 100%
Ftnancral services advertising
Teamspinit Business and Corporate Limited o _ and marketing United Kingdom _53%
Financial services advertising
Teamspint Limited + L . and marketing United Kingdom 100%
The Complete Leisure Group Limited _ Sparts marketing consultancy United Kingdom 98%
Traffic - Good Relations Group GmbH L ___ Publcrelations ~ Germany _ 1060%
Tree [London] Limited == L Strategy and Research United Kingdam 100%
TTA Public Relations Limuted + i Praperty marketung United Kingdam 100%
VCCP Blue Lymuted *** . . ______ Advertising and marketing Urited Kingdom _100%
VECP Bratisiava o Adverusing and marketing Slovakia 100%
VCCPKin Limited ** ) Advertising and marketing United Kingdom 80%
VCCP Digitad Limited <=~ __Digntal adverusing and marketing United Kingdom 100%
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Proportion
of ordinary
shares hsld
Country of and voting
Company Nature of business incorporation rights
Subsidiories {continued]
VCCP GmbH Advertising and marketing Germany 100%
VCCP Health Limited Advertising and marketing United Kingdom B0%
VCCP Limited ** Advertising and marketing United Kingdom 100%
VCCP Live Limited o o _____Adverusing and marketing United Kingdom 60%
VCCP Me Limited ** hrect marketing United Kingdom 100%
VGCP Py Ltd Adverusing and marketing Austraba  100%
VCCPsro Advertising and marketing Czech Repubhc 100%
VCCP Search Limited *** Search engine marketing United Kingdom 100%
VCOP Share Limited ** Advertising and marketing Urmted Kingdom 0%
Watermelon Research Limited Digital Research United Kingdom 60%
Associotes o
Bell Pottinger Private Limited + - __Public relations United Kingdom 25%
Colour TV Limited + Television praduction United Kingdom 45%
Naked Eye Research Limited + o _ Research United Kingdom ~~ 28%
Rare Corporate Design Limited + Corporate design United Kingdom 40%
StratAgile Limited Data analytics Sigapore 40%
The Agency of Sumeone Limited Branding and design United Kingdom 40%
The Brand Marketing feam Limited [formerly Branded
Moments Of Truth Limited] Consumer marketing United Kingdam 40%
X 6 Y Communications Limited + ____Public relations United Kingdom 23%
Capital
tnvestmeant
Limited Liobility Partnerships
CSM Sport and Entertainment LLP Sports marketing consultancy United Kingdam 100%
Open Healthcare Communications LLP Healthcare public relations United Kingdom 31l%
VCCP Group LLP Advertising and marketing United Kingdom 100%

+ Direct subsidiary/assaciate of Chime Communicatians plc

* Companies that transferred thewr business and assets (o CSM Sport and Entertainment LLP
* “ Companies that transferred therr business and assets to VCCP Group LLP

***This company has taken advantage of the S47%a exempuon from audit

The above st does not include all the subsidiary and associate carmnpanies of Chime Communication plc as the directors
consider that to give full particulars of all Group undertakings would lead 1o a statement of excessive length A full list of

Group undertakings 1s attached to the latest annual return
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18 Investments in associates

2013 2012

£°000 £°000
Aggregate amouns relating to associates B L
Total assets ) . S L ) ~ o 20,650 : S '-IU_BES_
Total labilities 7 . (957) (22215
Net assets 19,693 18,638
Revenue 30,076 46 264
Profitfor theyear -~ T T 1pus 1888
a'm;:—s share nf_ilroflt of _assocgtgs*‘F— 7 T “ﬁﬂ*ﬁ" R _%D_

Included in the above habilities owed by the associates are leans from the Group of £40,000 (2012 £40,000) The
unrecognised share of profit of associates 1s £31,000 (2012 loss of £12,000) for the year ending 31 December 2013 and
£86,000 cumulatively losses to 31 December 2013

A bst of the significant tnvesiments in associates, including the name, country of incorporation, proportion of ownership
interest 1s given 1 note 18

20 Other investments

2013 2012
£°000 £'000
At 1 January ~ e ~ 354 1,014
Additions ’ o _;g - 180 104
Impairment of Investment i 7 i a - ) [764]
At 31 December 514 354

Additions to other investments consist of a £160,000 uplift to the quoted market pnces as at 31 December 2013

21 Due from deferred consideration

Amounts shown are due from the disposals of Smithfield Financial Limited and Celenty Professional Services Limited being
the deferred consideration due Management have assessed the credit nsk associated with the balances and are satisfied
that the balances are recoverable £25,000 (2012 £450,000) was recelved in the year towards the deferred consideration
Management believe the carrying value Is a reasonable approximation of the value of the asset

22.0ther financial assats

Amounts shown relate to the purchase of an option in 2012 whereby on exercise the Group would acquire Lord Coe’s 93%
interest in Complete Leisure Group Limited This oplion was exercised on 30 January 2013 and further information is noted in
the acguisiion of subsiwdianes note 15
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23 Trade and othsar receivahles

2013 2012
£°000 £'000
Arnounts recewable fram provision of services 52475 47,841
Other debtars S - I 5177 3558
Prepayments and accrued mcorﬁé i ] B 17,607 o 8,004
80,259 59,403
The ageing of the current trade receivables based on due date 1s as follows
2013 2012
£'000 £'000
Not overdue 33,358 26 417
Overdue T o )
tessthan30days R T 12,582
Between 30andB0days - 7 - - 7357 a3om
Between 60 and 90 days T T T am 273
Between 90 and 180 days Y T ST
Between 180 and 360 days - T - 885 1282
More than 360 days 7 702 241
58,141 48 655
Prowision for wrecoverable Uade recewables (666) [a24)
57,475 47 841

The average credit penod at year end 64 days (2012 57 days) The Group's trade receivables are stated after allowances for
bad and doubtful debts This allowance has been determined by considenng specific doubtful balances and by reference to
past default expenence, an analysts of which is as follows

Movement in the provision for irrecoverable trade recevables

2013 2012

£°000 £°000
At1 January 824 2,390
Amounts charged (o operating expensg e - s3 624
Acquisittons ;— T T 69 10
isposal of subsidiary T o ) /_ R T T]‘— o (1,380]
Trade recewvatles written off o - T esy 758
Amoumnts recovered dunng the year ~ - . o 7 (13) (54]
Fore]gn exchange N T __E_ T [8?
At 31 December 666 824

The provision for irrecoverable trade recervables relates to debts that are past due and impaired

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other recewvables approximates therr fair value Trade and other
receivables are predominantly non-interest bearing Concentrations of credit nsk with respect to trade receivables are hmited
due to the Group's customer base being large, unrelated and largely billed in advance Due to this, the Direclors beleve
there 1s no further credit nsk provision required in excess of the allowance for bad and doubtful debts
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24 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and equivalents include £58,000 (2012 £58,000) of cash held for cash backed loan notes These are held at Royat
Bank of Scotland and are redeemable on demand by the ioan note holders

25 Trade and other payables

2013 2012
£'000 £°000

Tradecredtors L i o __ _4nous 34 983
Other taxation and socualsecuntyﬁ o B 7_# T h 7.Eia . ) géﬁ
Accruals and deferred mcome L 36883 23757
Other ereditors o T T 5,061 3656
leannotes T T 808 58
91,019 70,714

The average credit period taken for trade purchases at year end 15 76 days (2012 46 days) The Directars consider that the
carrying amount of trade payables approximates to ther fair value The Group has financial nsk management policies in
place to ensure that all payables are paid within the credit time frame

The loan notes held i the loan note depasits of the same amount included withen cash and cash equivalents Loan notes
totalling £58,000 are outstanding as part of the imitial and contingent consideration on the acquisition of HHCL Group Limited
and VCCP Limited The loan notes are held by Royal Bank of Scotland plc on a deposit of £58,000 Unsecured Loan notes
are ouistanding as pari of the Fast Track Limiled and lcon Limited contingent consideration on the acquisitons Fasi Track
outstandmg loan notes of £558,000 are redeemable at the option of the Noteholders on 90 days wniten notice after the
repayment date This s twelve months from the 1ssue date of 8 April 2013 Icon outstanding loan notes of £193,000 present
are redeemable at the option of the Noteholders on 90 days writien notice afier the repayment date This 1s six months from
the issue date of 8 September 2013

26 Ohiigations under finance leasas

Year andad Year ended
31 Decembar 2013 31 December 2012

Minimum Prasent Minimum Present valus
laase valua of lease of lease
payments leass payments payments payments
£°000 £°000 £°000 £°000

Amounts payable under finance leases 3 _ _ o
Within one year B 20 20 w7 107
Between one angd five years - - 20 20
20 20 L 127 127
Less future finance charges - - - -
Present value of finance lease obligations 20 20 127 127

The Group leases certamn of s motor vehuicles, fixtures, fitings and equipment under finance leases

The lease lerms are up to 4 years The finance leases bear interest at rales between 9% and 12% The fair value of the
Group’s lease obligations approximates therr carrying amount The Group's obligations under finance leases are secured by
the lessors' charges over the leased assets
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27 Bank overdrafts and loans

2013 2012

£000 £'00D

Bank loans and overdrafts S - 58,023 _13528
The borrowings a;e repayable ;sarnws - ; o o __ : j__'_____ o
0n demand or withtn one year ’ ; ) s 171 L 144
Between one and t\«Toy—la'a}s—- T —7_- S “—r_' 7 i i - - o ___.___
Between three and fve years T T T 7777 sysse | 13385
After five years T - o -
Bankloans e ___ senpes 13,529
Amount due for settlement within 12 months T T T T T Ty T T 1
Amount due for settlement after 12 months T I ’57.852 T -i.':!gﬁ
58,023 13,529

Cash deposits and bank loans are held at either varable rates of interest or at rates fixed for penods of no longer than
three months

The principal features of the Group's borrowings with the Royal Bank of Scotland and HSBC Bank plc (as additional lender)
are as follows

( The Group has a rolimg overdraft facility of £5 millon The overdraft faciity 1s repayable on demand
(1} The Group has a commitied faciity of £90 mihon The term of the facility 1s untl 30 September 2016

() The bank loan incurred Interest at 1 75% and 2 25% above LIBOR untii Qctober 2013 when this increased to 2 00% and
2 76% above LIBOR, depending on use of the facility compared to EBITDA, the overdraft bears interest at 1 75% above
base rate

{v) A cross-guarantee exists between the majonty of wholly-owned subsidiaries and the parent company Royal Bank of
Scotland plc and HSBC Bank plc hold debentures over the assets of the Company and the subsidianes in respect of
the bank loans

{v) The weighted average interest rate applied in the yearis 2 30% (2012 2 08%)

At 31 December 2013 the Groupn had drawn down £59 mullon (2012 £14 muthon) (gross of capitalised faciity costs of

£1 3 million (2012 £0 7 million)) of the borrowing facility and had available £27 8 million (2012 £27 8 milon) of undrawn
commuited borrowing facilities in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met The Group had utiised £648,000
of the overdraft facility at year end

The far values of bank overdrafts and loans are determined by considernng the matunty dates
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28 Deferred consideration

Contingent consideration relates to acquisitrons made in current and previous years The amounts payable are dependent
on the future profits of the companies acquired Further detalls of the deferred constderations ansing from current year
acquisttions are shown in note 34 Timing of payments of deferred constderation 1s set out in the relevant Sale and

Purchase Agreemenis

At 31 December 2013 approximately £12,632,000 (2012 £13,131,000) of the deferred consideration 1s expecled to be
setlled in cash and £4,701,000 (2012 £2,814,000) in shares before discounting The number of shares to be 1ssued in
all instances 1s based on the market value prior to the 1ssue of the shares Chime retains the nght to satisfy a higher

propertion in cash

Deferred/

Contingant

consideration

£°000

At 1 January 2013 15,950
On acquisition of suhsn:har[es—_ T N - ) 2,373
X[ﬂdstment to prior year aCquisitions T _—__-“ ) ___ _ “ 7 3,287
Egcaunung charge to the income statement ~ - - ~ T 7 —l - T 309 ‘
I;ayrnents rr;ada B - o __— _: o k_ } ; ) 7___7 ;T o _~_(§,355]
Foreign exchange o T o o o T [721)
At 31 December 2013 17.333
Imnkcluded in current iabilities T _— o _- T :7 - S,E;
Included n non-current Labulities - o o o o - o o II.SF
17,333

Deferred/f

Contingent

consideration

£'000

At 1 January 2012 _ } o 13,048

On acquisition of subsidiaries T T __ B 11114
Adjustment to prior year acquisiions e B  [2387)

Miscounting charge to the income statement B - N _ ___—:_ o ;— 325
a;;_msed of as part of sale B o _ 7 T [B—Dl—f
P—a;ments made o B _ B -_i— o 7_:_ ___7 [5067])
Foreign exchange 7 . T - ' i - o [282]

At 31 December 2012 15,950
Mded n current llabdmes- o T T B S,E

Included in non-current liabihties o T 11,984

15950
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29 Deemed remuneration

Deemed remuneration relates to acquisitions made in current and previous years The amounts payable are dependent
on the future profits of the compares acquired Further details of the deemed remuneration ansing from current year
acquisittons are shown in note 34 Timing of payments of deferred consideration 1s set out 1n the relevant Sale and
Purchase Agreementis

Deemead

remuneration

£'00D

At 1 January 2013 L e ) o 14,679
Discounting charge to the income statement S _ i L I o 8,770
Payments made T - ‘ - . (16.274)

Deemed Remuneratﬁ:ﬁarge on aaﬂgﬁiomsubsmianes i - T -
Eg'ned Remuneration charge LLP capital contribution S 0 = - = = ﬁ
At 31 December 2013 6,551
@Juéﬁ current IIEEIIEI;; - S - = = — 7 = o 1,67?
inciuded in non-current h;glgs S T T T 8,880
6,551

Deemed

remuneration

£'000

At 1 January 2012 o _ N ~ 3136
E_Jlsznuntmm@—etmel—n_coge s:t;t;ment o 7___ ;_ o _, :r ; {__ o -j_;_ - 270
Deemed Remuneration cﬁarge_ on acquisition of SubSIdIaF_IBS T 11273

Deemed Remuneration charge LLP capital contnibution 7 ] o o -
At 31 Qecember 2012 14,873
Included in current |IabI|I[IES— S T T e T ]?3?15—
Included 1n non-current Ilabllmes_ - T B T 864

14,679

30 Provisions

Vacant property

The vacant property provision at 31 December 2013 relates to seven builldings one near Heathrow, three in Central London,
two in South London and one in Glasgow Provisions for property represent amounts set aside In respect of property leases
which are onerous and the unavoidable costs of restoring leasehold propertigs to the condition specified In the lease at

the end of the contractual term The quantification of each of the provisions has been deterrmined based on managements
best estimate and 1s dependent on the Group’s ability to exit the leases early or to sublet the properties tn general, property
costs are expected to be incurred over penods for which indwvidual properties remain vacant or, where occupied, to the
termination of the leases in question Dunng the year the group made provisions af £791,000 1t 1s expected that this
provision will be utihsed over the period to 2017

—_——_— —_— e — - — ———————— . —
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30 Pravisions {continued)

Vacant property Other provisions Total
£'000 £7000 £°000
At 1 January 2013 2,888 17 2870
Charged to the income statement T - 791
Payments made o [1,372) {17} (1.389])
Foreign exchange CT T - o - B -
At 31 December 2013 2,072 - 2,072
Included in current hablites ﬂA— - : Iu?ﬁ o T 1,420
included in non-cuirent habilities T T T Ces2 - _—B?)E
2,072 - 2072
Gross obligations
under put options Vacant property Total
£°000 £°000 £'000
At} January 2012 e 302 s 302
Charged to the income statement i —) e _E& Y 2,508
Payments made ] ) - pan e
F_nrglgn exchange T T T (3] B - _—_"—[3_]
At 31 December 2012 2,653 17 2670
noludedwourenabioes T T m T TTmT T i
Included in non-current |IabI|ltIBSﬁ T - N 1ee2 - -_IHSE_
2,653 17 2670
31 Share capital
2013 2012
Nominal value Nominal value
Numbar £°000 Numbsr £'000
Calted up altotted and fully pard at 1 January
Ordinary shares at 25p sach 82,089,801 20,522 80,948 500 20,237
Issues relating to acquisitions 7,253,232 __1B13 903,313 e2b
Issues relating to deferred consideration 42,228 B 11 - -
Issues relﬁg to plating of shares 8,533,334 _: o 2,133 - _ T -
Issued to staff under share options 187,525 i 50 " 237988 59
Called up, allotted and fully paid at 31 Cecember 98,116,120 24,529 82,089 801 20,522

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no nght to fixed income

1,494,501 shares with a fair value of £3,735,057 were issued on 3 April 2013 1n relation to the acquisition of ICON Thsplay Limited
1,530,322 shares with a fair value of £4,046,171 were 1ssued on 3 April 2013 in relation to the acquisition of (LUKA Limited
521,062 shares with a fair value of £1,330,792 were 1ssued on 30 May 2013 in relation to the acquisttion of WARL Group Limited
42,228 shares with a far vatue of £109,487 were 1ssued on 8 August 2013 n relation 1o the acquisiion of McKenzie Clark Limited
419,448 shares with a farr value of £1,071,270 were issued on 8 August 2013 in relation to the acquisttion of People Marketing
8,533,334 shares with a fair value of £25,600,002 were issued on 30 October 2013 in relation to the placing of shares on the
acquisttion of JMt

3,287,899 shares with a fair value of £9,863,697 were 1ssued on 20 November 2013 in relation to the acquisition of JMI
107,525 shares were 15sued to staff in relation to share schemes at prices between £0 675 and £2 975
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32 Share premium and other raserves

Share premium

Share premium arises from capital raised m an 1ssue of
shares, net of costs, to the extent that exceeds the nominal
value of the shares

Own shares

The own shares reserve represents the cost of shares in
Chime Communications Plc purchased in the market and
held by the Chime Communications Emptoyee Trust to satisfy
options under the Group's share options schemes, deferred
shares and Co-Investment plans (see note 36)

The Chime Communications Employee Trust (The Trust') was
established in 1997 in Jersey The trustee 1s Computershare
Trustees (Jersey) Limited The beneficiaries of the Trust are
employees and former employees of the Company and the
Group (including any Director) and the spouses and children
or stepchildren of such employees or former employees

The purpose of the Trust s to facilitate and encourage the
ownership of shares by employees Distributions from the
Trust are agreed by the frustee on recommendations from
the Board of Directors of Chime Communications plc

The Trust currently holds 910,704 (2012 1,261,702)
ordinary shares which have a nominal value of £228,000
(2012 £315.000) and over which deferred share were
granted December 2010, May 2011, June 2011, June 2012,
September 2012, April, May and December 2013 and Co
Investment Plan shares i September 2011 and October
2012 and Performance Share Plan shares in May 2013
85,383 (2013 313,269) shares were purchased in 2013 ata
nominal value of £21,346, representing 0 09% (2012 0 38%)
of the called up share capital at 31 December 2013 All
costs of the Trust are borne by Chime Communications pic
and expensed through the income statement
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The Trust has opted to waive all dividends with the exception
of those shares allocated under the deferred share scheme
(see note 36) The market value of the shares in the Trust at
31 December 2013 was £3,069,000 (2012 £2,911,000)

During the year 436,381 shares were released from the trust
under the various group share schemes resulling 1n a charge
directly 1o reserves of £1,000,000

Capital reduction reserve

The Capital reduction reserve relates to the capital
reduction undertaken in October 2003 The reserve was
not to be treated as reahsed profits of the Company until
any debt or claim outstanding as at 1 July 2003 has been
repatd or remedied If an 1 July 2013 there remained only
habilities outstanding in relation to property leases, the
amount outsianding to the reserve could be released and
the undertaking discharged or reptaced by new share
issues Durning 2013 these conditions were satisiied and
the reserves have now been released to the distnbutable
reserves of the Company

Transliation reserve
The transiation reserve relates to exchange differences
ansing on consolidation of overseas operations
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32 Share prarmum and other reserves [continued)

Accumulated profit

£'000
Balance at 1 January 2013 e 22,772
Owidends paid a T "~ (6.289)
Net loss far the year S e T T T 10,671
E;pusalufsubmmary S _ T o -
Disposed of on EXEFGIS;U.f;EtIGHS-_) S - D S (1,000}
hecy—claa-ac—h—as;e;n&;—coﬁmmﬁg mTer;st on dlsﬁose;f ) S - - _[1,138_]
C_redlt to equity for equity settled share based payment%— k" __‘i— ) _7 ) T T 260
Release of capital reduction reserve T ’ T 32,385
Adpustment ansing from change on non-controling mterest— o o o o
Balance at 31 Decemnber 2013 36,319

£'000
Balance at 1 January 2012 o B B o 3238
Effect of change in accaunung policy {s_ee:_?ots_El__ ) 7__v _V“ I T [3,025
Restated balance at 1 January 2[]1_2 i_ _ T S 2‘9_—35
Dwdends paid S T i ST 53
Net Iossar_the y_ea_r - T T T 7 ST [Téf??
Disposat of subsidiary e e T - T ey
maf on exercise of options } S ;_ 7-_ - T T T [ﬁi
Recycle purchase of nan-controlling mterest_o; disposal T T o 1770
Credit to equ_lty for equity settled share based pa;ments T T o 2,21-6_
Adjustment_;s;nﬁro_n}kchange unTo;-cnntrollrng interest -/ = [ﬁ]
Balance at 31 December 2012 22772
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33 Notes to the cash flow statament

2013 2012

£°000 £°000
Operating profit B o e L . L ,_E o 4893
iqusimensfor T ) T T T
Loss on discontinued operatlonsgefure tax o ) - [54]
Ea_r;based payment expans:a _ —__: : - o 1_ T [lm ﬂ—_—“_l—eﬁ_
Oeemed remuneration o ] B d—_ :m_ R_ - T 7.800 o o 11274
Changes tu_difgfrlﬂcu%degilpg R 7_ N i T__ T N ) _ 3@z _— -
Translaton differences L o _ L o {553} [ESé}
@r;glﬂtloﬂ of proBErty_ pIaTu_a?d ém:nTe;'lL . _: - __— _-_ j‘: o 38320 ‘:_ L‘: 3,208
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets ___ L 5,280 2 SW
Es_un disposal of property, ptant and ec—lzu_p;e—nt __ _k 7_ - : N 117 o 434
ﬂ'n:—rease/[decrease] n prm?lun?u S o T v B B m[ﬁ] T 2371
Operating cash flows before movemeants in working capital o . lpuss = 26738
Increese in work In progress . B o o o . .1 . 1124
[m_cr‘e;se]/decrease mn rer:a@?es T B ) o o 7 __ (8.141) o 10736
Increase/[decrease] 1n payables T T B 4,573 - [19099]
Cash generated from operations L ] 10,868 19497
income axespad T 7 " "7 (g3es) (5.526)
I:Er;{p;ld— - o ) i T - ) o (1,325) ) o E?]
Net cash from operating activities 3,146 11884

34 Contingent hahilities and commitments

Deferred and contingent consideration

In addition to the potential deferred and contingent consideration provided as disclosed in note 28 of £17,333,000 at

31 December 2013 there was a maximum financial commitment of £24,881,000 undiscounted {2012 £28,033,000} in
respect of unprovided deferred contingent consideration payable in respect of acquisiions of subsidiary undertakings
The calculation of the deferred constderation lability requires estimates io be made regarding the forecast future
performance of these businesses for the earnout penod The unprovided deferred contingent consideration would became
payable over penods from 2013 to 2018 and would be payable in cash/loan notes or cashfioan notes and new shares

Deemed remuneration

In addition to the deemed remuneration provision as disclosed in note 29 of £6,551,000 currently provided at 31 December
2013, £16,555,000 {2012 £12,615.000) will be expensed over the period of the service based on the current fair value In
addiion an ameount of £35,313,000 (2092 £10,035,000) (undiscounted) would be charged under the earn-out agreements
should maximum performance targets be met The calculation of the deemed remuneration liability requires estimates to

be made regarding the forecast future performance of these businesses for the period of service The unprovided deemed
remunerabion would become payable over penods from 2013 to 2018 and would be payable in cashfoan notes or cashfloan
notes and new shares
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35 Operating laase arrangaments

The Group as lessee
At the balance sheet daie, the Group had outstanding commitments for future mimimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows

|

2013 2012 “

£°000 £°000 |

Within one year - - 7,874 6 B37 ‘

Between one and two years B B _ j 752 6055 \
Between thr:e and five years r_ T T N o 16,519 T EELF
Greater than five years ) T S T T T 13,364 T _1é8_87—

44,509 39,602

Operating lease payments represent rentals payabie by the Group primanly for its office properties Leases are negotiated for
an average term of 13 years and rentals are fixed for an average of 5 years at the prevaring market rate

The Group as lessor
At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants for the following fuiure munimum lease payments

2013 2012 :

£°000 £°000
Within one year e o 854 1412 "
Betwean one and two years _ ) o ) - - E; o “14?5
aeaterthanfrveyears T T B B S T T LT T 234

918 312t

Property rental income earned from subtenants during the year was £2,381,000 (2012 £2,043,000)

36 Share-based payments

The Group operates various share plans relating to shares in the parent company including an executive share option
scheme, an employee savings related share option scheme (SAYE), a deferred share scheme, the VCCP Partners Scheme,
a Co-Investment Plan and a Performance Share Plan

The Group recogmsed total revenue 1n 2013 of £128,000 (2012 expenses of £1,932,000}) related to equity-settled
share-based payment transactions

Share Options (executive options and SAYE)

The exercise price of the options granted under the executive share option scheme Is equal to the market value of the
Group's shares at the ime when the options are granted The vesting penod 1s generally three years but If they are special
options 1t 1s five years If the options remam unexercised after a penod of 10 years from the date of grant, the options expire
Furthermore, options are forieited if the employee leaves the Group beiore the options vest

The exercise price of the options granted under the employee savings related scheme 1s 80% of the market value at the
date of offer The vesting period 1s five years, if the options remain unexercised six months after this date, the cptions expire
Furthermore, the options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group before the options vest
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2013 2012
Weighted Weighted
average averaga
axercise exercisa
Options prica [in £) Options prica (in £]
Qutstanding at beginning of year . 1o0lg63:1 @ 1270 _13B4879 1203
Granted duning the year B o o 198,099 2056 171,847 1830
Lapsed during the year o . [108,537] 1461 {218,708} 149
Exercised duning the year (226,981) 1268 f321 287] 1128
Outstanding atthe end oftheygar ~  B80212 1425 1016631 1270
Exercisable at the end of the year _ o 98,799 o 221 058 L
Weighted average remaiming contractual iife 812 days L _ B77days
Weighted average share price for options exercised
at date of exercise £2 739 E2 228

New options were granted on 10 May 2013 The aggregate of the estimated fair values of the options granied on that date s
£87,500 In 2012 options were granted on 26 October 2012, the aggregate of the estimated fair values of the options granted

on that date 15 £64.000

The fair value was calculated using the Mante Carlo and Binomial models 1n valuing the options, the following assumptions

were used

2013 2012
Weighted average sharg price e o _ £254 £2087
Weighted aTe-rage EXEFCISE price _ £2 056 81_83_0
Expecte—d valatility o N o __—:_ —j -__* o mt " s09% - hsﬁ
Expecied he-savings related scheme o B o 57 years 57 years
Risk-free rate ] ] ) B  os% 050%
Dvdendyed il 2.85% _318%

Expected volatiity was determined by calculating the histoncal volatiity of the Group's share price over the previous five
years The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of
non-transferabibity, exercise restrictions, and behavioural considerations
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36 Share-hased paymants (continued]

Deferred shares

Under the deferred share scheme, restricted shares are awarded to employees at no cost to the employee The vesting
period 1s fixed at the grant date by the Remuneration Commitiee Currently there are grants over vesting penods of one, two,
three and four years from the date of award if the employee leaves the Group before vesting then the restncted shares are
forfeited The employee receves the dividend on the shares during the vesting penod

2013 2012

Deferved Deferred

gharas shares

Outstanding at beginning of year e . _ 364,849 o __ 803600
Granted duning theyear o o 546,194 195867
Faorfeited in the ye;r _ ) - -
Lapsed ) “— f i1.597] B o [188)
Released during the year T (100,199) T [840,650]
Outstanding at the end of the year _ o B o __ 809,047 364648
Weighted average remammgi contractual |I%_ T o _ _ o 714 days 550 days

Werghted average share price for deferred shares released at date of release £2.463 Elg42 \

The restricted shares were awarded on 15 Apnl 2013, 21 May 2013 and 2 December 2013 The share price at the date ‘
of each award was £2 560, £2 618 and £3 073 respectively The estimated fair value of the restricted shares awarded 15
£1,581,000 (2012 £251,000)

The fair value was calculated with reference to the share price pertaining to the shares awarded ‘

VCCP partners scheme

Under the VCCP Incentive Scheme, restrnicied shares are awarded to employees at no cost to the employee The vesting
pericd 1s fixed at the grant date by the Remuneration Committee Currently there are grants over a vesting penod of up to four
years from the date of award If the employee leaves the Group within the first two years of grant then the restncted shares
are forferied

Additional restricted shares were not awarded dunng the year The estimated fair value of the restricted shares awarded n
201315 nil (2012 £354,000)
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The fayr value was calculated wath reference to the share price pertaining to the award

2013 2012

Deferred Daferred

gharas shares
Ouistandingat begnnwgofyesr 305648 200845
Granted during the year e = Lyapas
Lapsed e S - [2461) -
Released during the year i i (303,185) 7 7[55 24d4)
Outstanding et the end of theyeer - 305548
Weighted average remam:gﬁ:ontraciual hfe N . - B B 132 days '
Weighted average sharg_prlce for deferﬁd?_h;rgs rglea_sje_d_at @e of releasei ::i - ~gas;s £1 741

Co-Investment Plan 2010
The award shares awarded under the 2010 Co-Investment Pian are awarded at nil cost The award shares awarded are
subect to performance critena as set out it the report to the shareholders on Directors’ remuneration

2013 2012
Award Award
shares shares
Outstanding at beginning of year e _ 2186820 3005208
Grantedwthevear o - 356370
Lepseddunngtheyear . _ (853,116) _  (1140175]
Released dunng the year - [34583]
Dutstanding at the end of the year 1,333,704 2,186 820

Award shares were awarded on 1 October 2012 and vest over three years The total far value of the awards granted in 2012
1s £415,977

The weighted average remaining contractual ife 1s 351 days (2012 514 days)
Performance Share Plan 2013

The award shares awarded under the 2013 Performance Share Plan are awarded at nil cost The award shares awarded are
subject to performance cntena as set out in the report to the shareholders on Directors’ remuneration

2013 2012

Award Award

shares shares

Outstanding at begirning of year L i o - -
Granted in the year - _ L 667,807 _ -
Released during the year - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 667,807 -

Award shares were awarded on 2 December 2013 and vest over a period up to three years The total fair value of the awards
granted in 2013 15 £1,070,618

The weighted average remalning cantractual life 1s 1,186 days
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37 Related party transactions

Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation
and are not disclosed in this note (details of subsidianes are included in note 18) Transactions between the Group and its
associates are disclosed below

Trading transactions
During the year, Group companies entered into the following transactions with related parties whe are not members of
the Group

2013

Amounts Amounts
owed by owed to
Sale ot Purchass of related related
services servicas parties parties
£°000 £°000 £°000 £°000

Associates )
B_JPmaér Private Limited - 2,888 T ;é—_; _—“;ﬂ‘ T 273
mnttlngerﬁuﬁmfm&ed_ o s - T 3
Bell Potuinger Public Relations Limited 68 3 - T aa
Bell Pnttlnge_rSans Frontiers h ) " S - T - T &
Pelham Bell Pattnger B ) S ss . T D T T e
Pelham Singapere T T .
Bel!PottmqeerddIeE; - 0T T T T . -
The Brand Marketing Team Limted 188 T T Ts8 Tan
Cooorivias - - T
Ledbury Research Lirited - - -
Naked Eyg Research Umited & - T . T T T 1
Rare Corparate Degign lelled—_ T *—5?7_—7 - _*85_ . T _AzT
Rare Publishing Limited o o o } - - - T
StratAglle Limited o s 188 s s
The Agency of Someone Limted & =2 7 T T
X6Y Communications Liouted Qo o s /. T/
BE_“TJUIUI'IQEI' Eammun}catluns USA_ T - T o T _
Icon Display South Africa [ply] Ltd :H :_:_j—; 7‘ I—: . T T T T
Bell Pottinger LLP o - 88 T e T
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2012

Amounts Amounts
owed by awed to
Sale of Purchase of refatad related
services services partias parties
£°000 £°000 £000 £°000

Associates L . o o .
Bell Pottuinger Private Limited ) N gqe o -EﬂTﬁ N _}E_ -
EJPottmger Public Affatrs levlt-et-i ~ o 53 T 54 - _ o 24 T T
Bell Pottinger Public Relations Lm?EeE o 863 T 197 T EJE 7i__21‘
Bell Pottinger Sans Frantiers S —:IE S ﬁ_i - _7? ‘ﬁ——S
Pelham Bell Pottinger '_; S i . 2%1 S T T 7 17
e
Bell Pattinger Middle-East o Tes T T o e
The Brand Marketing Teamml—ged_ T_ —7——_— 91 _—):_k ?L t_“ ) 3 T T
CnlaurTVannerf__ . t- -__ ____ T i___E_gt___—_ T . o ; _E__——i -
tedbury Research L||:ruted _—” : ) . 51 : ? IE R,
oo By pesearchumees a1 _ T T T
Rare Corporate Iﬁgn LImI[_Ed‘T _ —_kﬁ—v_ o -E 187 o 3.5 o _;—ﬁ_g
Rare Pubishing Limited R
StratAgile Limited . o ~ --ﬂ B - E—w_ ) . 5 - T T
TheAgencyufSomeur;Lm—Ea_d;_ _ — n ) ) i g ': j —EGT__ —t_: _ I #ES_
X8Y¥ Communicauons Limited 18 - .
Bell Pottinger Communications USA - T 10 - T 432

Sales of goods to related parlies were made on an arm's length basis

The amaounts outstanding arg unsecured and will be settled in cash No guarantees have been gwen or recevad No
provistons have been made for doubtful debls in respect of the amounts owed by related parites

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the executive directors, who are the key management personne! of the group, 1$ set out below
In aggregate for each of the categones specified in 1AS24 Related Party Disctosures Further information about the
remuneration of individuat directors 1s provided in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 54 10 75

2013 2012
£°000 £°'000
Short-term employee benefits L o 1,251 1852
Pust-employmentbangflts o —180 - 255
Share Based Payments @ 4w
1,396 2605
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38 Financial instruments

The Group's principal financial Instruments comprise bank loans, bank overdrafts, finance leases, cash and short-term
deposits The main purpose of the financial instruments 1s to provide finance for the Group's operations The Group

has various other financial asseis and labiiies such as trade recevables and trade payables, which arise directly from
operations During the year the Group has financed its business through an overdraft facility and revolving committed facility
arranged with the Royal Bank of Scotland plc and HSBC Bank pic

The Group uses financial instruments {0 manage its bank borrowings this 15 done by the use of foreign exchange rate swaps
The Group does not hold or issue dervative financral instruments for financial trading purpoeses but denvatives that qualify
for hedge accounting are accounted for as trading instruments Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at

fawr value at the contract date and continue to be stated at far value at the balance sheet date with gains and losses on
revaluation being recognised immediately to the iIncome statement

The main nsks ansing from the Group's financial Instruments are interest rate nisk, higuidity nisk and foreign currency risk The
policy for managing these risks is reviewed and agreed with the Board

Interest rate nisk

The Group holds vanable rate financial debt Fixed interest rates are for periods of up to three months at a tme The interest
rate margins paid by ihe Group on financial debt are disclosed tn note 27 The Group assesses its borrowing requirements
monitors and Interest rates and assess the nsks through sensitivity analysis

If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower dunng the year the impact to profit before tax would have been an increase/
decrease of £344,000 (2012 increase/decrease of £152,000) The impact on shareholders’ equity would have been a
decrease/increase of 254,000 (2012 decrease/increase of £109,000)

Liguidity nisk

The Group has an agreed committed facility of £90 milhon with the Royal Bank of Scotland and HSBC Bank plc The facility
matures in September 2016 There 15 also an uncommitted facility avallable of £5 million, which is reviewed on a rothng basts
The Group manages Iiquidity nsk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities and by continuously monitoring
farecast and actual cash flows At 31 December 2013 the Group had net cash of £4,179,000 (2012 £3,343,000), which 1s
after deducting an amount drawn down against the faciity of £59,000,000 {2012 £14,000,000) The undrawn committed
facility was therefore £27,800,000 (2012 £27,800,000)

Externally imposed capital requirement
Under the terms of the Group's banking covenants the Group must meet certain cntena based on interest and dividend cover
and net debt io EBITDA There have been no breaches of the banking covenants in the current or prior year

Foreign currency nsk

The Group has 24 overseas operations (branches and subsidianes) which trade in Europe, the USA, the Far East, the Middle
East, South Amenca, Australasia and Africa The sterling value of the net monetary assets held in the poncipal foreign
currenclies held by the group are as follows

2013 2012
£°000D £'D00
Net monetary assets/liabihities . - - L
US Dallars o - T (5.989)  [355)
Euros o (21370 [1480)
Braziian Real - (679)  [777)
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The Group does on occasion agree to bill chents in 2 currency other than the local currency, 1t also makes some purchases
overseas where the supplier bills 1n their local currency The Group does not hedge the translation exposure on the

fees due The Group converts any fees recerved in foreign currency on receipt on funds |n some instances where 1t 1s

viewed appropriate, the proceeds from the clent are kept in currency so as to minimise the foraign exchange exposure

on the transaction if there are third party costs to be paid out of the funds in that currency In this instance the Group

uses short-ferm foreign exchange swaps to manage the Group's barrowings The fair value of ithe swaps entered ini¢ at

31 December 2013 1s estimated as a hlabilty of £35,000 (2012 asset of £9,000) There was one swap open over the year

end Tms amount s based on the markel values of equivalent instruments at the batance sheet date The following table
demonstrates the sensitivity to reasonabiy possible changes in the US Dollar and Euro exchange rates, with all other vanables
held constant, of the group's equity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity ko reasonably possible changes in the US Dollar, Euro and the Brazlian Real
exchange rates, with al! other varables held constant, of the group's equity

2013 2012
Strengtheningf{weakening) of sterling +10% -10% +10% -10%
T £°000 g0 £'000 £'000
usQotr (S54) 608 25 [27)
Euro B R (313) s R (60]
Brazilian Real ) _ T s 77 8

Capital nsk management

The Group manages Its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as going concerns while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance The capital structure of the
Group consists of debt, cash and cash equivalents and equity atinbutable o equity holders of the parent, compnsing issued
capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed the Consoldated Statement of Changes in Equity

2013 2012

£°000 £°000

Cash and cash equ1valep}s o N L _ 18.267 17892
Bank loans o - o (s80z23) [13,528]
Finance leases _ - ] o . _ (20) o {127]
Loan notes Uutstind_m_g- . - : N '[8—09] ) B _Eﬁ
mssets attnbutae‘m equity holders of tHe parent - o T (181,519) - [155244])
[222,104) (151,066]

Market price nsk

The Group’s exposure o market pnce nsk compnses interest rate nsk and currency rate nsk The Group regularly monttors
these exposures which, setting aside the interrelationships between such rates and their wider impact on the economy, are
not considered to have a significant impact on the Group

Farr values of financial assets and financial habilities
Farr value 1s the amount at which a financial Instrument can be exchanged In an arm’'s length transaction between informed
and willing parties, other than a forced or quidation sale
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38 Financial instruments [continued)

The following table provides a comparnison of the book values and the fair value of the Group's financial habilities and assets

as at 31 December

2013 2012
Book Value Fair Valua Book Value Fair Value
o £'000 £'000 £°000 £7000
Finanoial habihties
Bank loans (58,023 (58.023) (13509 (13 529]
Oblhgations under finance leases (20) (20} [1e27} (127]
Trade and ather payables {91,019) 191,019) T o7 [70,718]
Deferred consideration - cash or ghares (17,333) [17,333) i {15 950] _ [(15,950])
Deemed remuneration - cash or shares [6,551) [6,551) [14679) [14,679]
{172,948) (172,946] (114989] [114 9939]
Financial assets o
Other investments 514 514 o 354 354
Other financial assets 100 100 300 300
Cash and hank balances L 18,267 18,267 17,892 178392
Trade and other receivables N 80,259 80,259 59403 59,403
99,140 99,140 77,949 77949

Other investments The Other Investments represent equity securities acquired by the Group and are ctassified as Availlable
for Sale The fair values of the listed securties (£514,000) are derived from quoted market prices and thus are considered to

be a Level 1 farr value measurement

There were no transfers between fair value levels during 2013 or 2012

The table below summarises the maturnity profile of the Group’s financial hlabilities as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 based

on contractual undiscounted payments

Within 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 5+

1lyear years years years years years Total
Maturity profile £'000 £°000 £'000 £°'000 £°000 £'000 £°000
2013
Bank loans - - [58,023] - ~ - (58,023)
Obkgations under finance leases (20) - - - - - (20]
Trade and other payables [81,018) - - - - - {91,019)
Oeferred cansideratian (5.725] (2,165] (2,866] (3.035) (3,542 - {17,333}
Deemad remuneration [1.671) [4.069]) (811) - - - [6,551)

Within 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 5+

1year years years years years years Total
Maturity profile £'000 £°000 £'000 £°000 £°000 £'000 £°000
2012
Bank lnans - - - (13 529) - - [13,529)
Obhgatians under finance leases [107] (20} - - - - [127]
Trade and other payahles [70714] - - - - - [70714)
Deferred constderation {3966) [3463) 175] [2,773] [1.212} [4458] [15950)
Deemed remungration [13815] [BEB4)] - - - - {14.679]
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Credut nsk
The Group considers its maximum expasure to credit risk to be as follows
2013 2012
£°000 £°000
Irade receivables ) B ~ 57.475 47 841
DEfEJI’Bd consideration receivahle 282 1307

The Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties Customers who wish to trade on credit terms are generally
subject to credit venficatton procedures In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the resuit
that the Group's exposure to bad debts has not been significant

Concentrations of credit nsk with respect 1o rade recevables are hrted due 1o the Group's customer base being large
and unrelated

With respect 1o credit risk ansing from other financiat assets of the Group, which comprises cash and cash equivalents, the
Group's exposure to credit nisk anses from defauit of the counterparty, with a maximum amount of exposure equal to the
carrying amount of these instruments

Fair value measurements recogmsed in the statement of iinancral position
The fallowing table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subseguent to inhal recognition at far
value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value s observable

+ Level 1 far value measurements are those derved from quoted prices (unadusied) in active markets for identical assets
or habilities,

+ Level 2 farr value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liabihty, ether directly (| e as prices) or indirectly {1 e derived from prices), and

« Level 3 farr value measurements are those derived from valuation techrnigues that include inputs for the asset or hability
that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

Ralationship of

Fair valus Fair valus Significant unobsarvahle

2013 2012 Fair value Valuation unchservable inputs to

_ ____t'ooo ___£'c00 hierarchy ___technique L Input fair value
The higher the

Cantingent discount rate,
consideration in a Discounted Discount rate the lawer the
business combination 2i,981 28,033  Level3d cash flow af 10 6 per cent fair value

38 Subsequent events

Subsequent to the year end, the Group has made the following acquisition

The Blaze Agency Pty Ltd (‘Blaze')

On 5 March 2014 the Group acquired 100% of Blaze, a company ncorporated in Australia, for initial consideration of

AUDS$2,000,000 (£1,073,000) Additional consideration 1s payable contingent on the results of the business, ¢capped at the
maximum of AUD$4,000,000 {£2,146,000)

Subsequent to acquisition, the resulls of Blaze will be inctuded within the Group's Sport & Entertainment division

Due to the proximity of completion of this transaction to the 1ssue of these financial statements the information required to
prepare the imitial accounting for the business combinations are as yet unavailable, therefore we are unable to provide the
disclosure required under IFRS at this time
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Company Balance Sheet

Year ended 31 Oecember 2013 Company number 1983857
2013 2012
Notes £°000 £°000
Fixed assets
Investment in subsidiaries and ESSOEEE_F; T o 3 o -WS-,BID_‘ ) T/—S_Dg
ﬂe?fmanmd assets B o B N T 4 7 o - uos
Fixed Assets o - o 5 o A 381 S 4as
246,191 175836
Currantiasset; T ﬁi- 7 o F o 7‘ i 7 T 7 7 T
G R -
Debtors ﬁ_ T T s T 30,648 o 40 258
Prepayments S o N 433 Y
Short term vestments o 7 58 ] 58
42,869 50216
Creditors ar;q;nt;allmg d;mthm ane v_;ir ; ___A—_ - _; N _ :_Bj_ j_ _i [10,569]——_ “_[23 285)
Ecurrant assets ; . _;_A ) — i _t_ _ :_! e _: ) ‘ j?a_.a_oo ‘_‘ _28 931
Creditors amounts falling dua after one ya;ar_‘ - o é T [57.737]7 o T—Jﬁ
Provisions for liabilites 1 (8.538] " [18389)
Net assets 212,218 171,117
Equity ol S, o
Share cepital - o us5e8 20508
Share premium account i o 11 1zesu0 81,943
%e-based payment reserve ﬁw__ e __1: E B ;_ __7.840 _ﬁ ) 8,324
Merger reserve . o :_ o 11 __ 3780 _ __3760—
Capital reduction reserve 11 - 32 365
ﬁ-" reserve T ST o ) 11 (1,718] o ‘[E?Ll]
Non distnibutable reserve T T T T T 3‘;3_ o -
Retamed earmngs T 71T yesna 26 717
Equity attnbutable to equity holders of the parent 212,218 171,117

The financial statements were approved by the board of Drrectors and authonsed for 1ssue on 26 March 2014 They were
signed on its behalf by

Mark Smith
Director
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Year ended 31 December 2013

1 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The separate financial statements of the Company are drawn
up In accordance with S434 to S436 of the Companies Act
2006 and United Kingdom generally accepted accounting
pnnciples {'UK GAAP') The preparation of financial
statements in conformily with generally accepied accouniing
pnnciples requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
habilities and disclosure of contingent assets and habilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period Actual results could differ from those estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed

on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the periad in which the estimate 1s revised

if the revision affects only that penod or in the penod of

the revision and future periods If the revision affects both
current and future periods

The financial statements are prepared on a gong concern
basis as explained in the Directors’ Report

The particular accounting policies adopted are
described below

Accounting policies have been applied consisiently
between years In 2012 the trade and assets of the central
services function were transferred into the Company from
a subsidiary

Cash flow

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption
contained In FRS 1 ‘Cash Flow Statements’ and has not
produced a cash flow siatement

Financial instruments

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption
contained in FRS 29 'Financial Instruments Disclosures’ and
has not produced any disclosures required by that standard,
as full disclosures are available in Chime Communtcations
plc Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2013

Related parties

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption
contamned In FRS 8 '‘Related Party Disclosures’ and has not
reparted transactions with feilow Group undertakings

Accounting convention
The financial statements are prepared under the historical
cost convention

Investments

In the Company's accounts, investments in subsidiary and
associate undertakings are stated at cost less provision for
any impairment 1n value

Deferred constderaticn and deemed remuneration

When earnouts are to be seltled in cash or shares with a
fixed monetary value, the fair value of the consideration

is obtaned by discounting to present value the amounts
expected to be payable in the future If the earnouts are
hinked to further employment then they are classed as
deemed remuneration but if there 1s no ink to employment
then they generally are classed as deferred consideration

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial iabilities, in respect of
financial instruments, are recognised on the balance sheet
when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument

Financial habilitres and equity instruments

Financial labiities and equity instruments 1ssued by the
Company are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements enlered into and the definittons
of a financial lability and an equity mstrument An equity
Instrument s any contract that evidences a residual interest
In the assets of the Company after deducting all of its
liabilites and includes no obligation to deliver cash or
other financial assets Equily instruments 1ssued by the
Company are recorded 2l the proceeds received, net of
direct 1ssue costs

Bank borrowings

Interest-beanng bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct Issues costs Finance
charges, including premiums payable on settlement or
redemption and direct i1ssue costs, are accounted for on an
accruals basis in profit or loss using the effective interest
method and are added to the carrying amount of the
instrument to the extent that that are not settled in the penod
in which they arise
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued

Year ended 31 December 2013

1 Accounting poficies [continued)

Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity settled share
based compensation plans for the employees of subsidiary
undertakings, using the Company's equity instruments The
fair value of the compensation given in respect of these
share-bhased compensation plans s being treated as a
recewvable from the subsidiary company

Dividends paid or received

Dmdends patd and receved are included in the financial
statements in the penod in which {he related dividends are
actually paid or received or, in respect of the Company's
final dividend for the year, approved by shareholders

Foreign currencies

Transactions in UK companies denomnated in currencies
other than pounds sterling are recorded at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactons At
each balance sheet date, monetary assets and labiities that
are denominated In foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the balance sheet date Gains and losses
arising on retranslation are included in net profit or loss for
the penod Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax

The tax currently payable I1s based on taxable profit for the
year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the
income statement because 1t excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deducttble in other years and 1t
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible
The Group's hability for current tax 1s calculated using tax
rates thai have been enacted or substantvely enacted by the
balance sheet date

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying amounis
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit, and ts accounted for using the balance sheet labihity
method Deferred tax habihlies are generally recognised

for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recogmised to the extent that it 1s probable that
taxable profits will be avanable against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised Such assets and
lrabilities are not recognised If the temporary difference
anses from goodwill or frem the wutial recogritian {other than
in a business combination) of other assets and habilities

in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the
accounting profit
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Deferred tax labilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences ansing on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and mnterests In jomnt ventures, except where

the Group 15 able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it 1s probabile that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets I1s reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it
15 1o longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
availlable to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply  the penod when the hiabihty 15 settled or the

asset s realised Deferred tax 1s charged or credited i the
Income stalement, except when it relates to items charged or
credited directly to equity, In which case the deferred tax 1s
also dealt with in equity

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are siated at cost net of
depreciation and any provision for rmpairment Depreciation
1s provided In equal instalments to write off the cost less
resrdual value over the estimated useful economic lives of
asset type as follows

Short-term teasehold improvements 5 years
Motor vehicles B years
Fixtures, fittings and equipment 4 years
Software 4 years

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful ives on the same basis as owned assets or,
where shorter, the term of the relevant lease

The gan or loss arising on the disposal of an asset s
determmed as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and 1s recognised in
the income statement

Provisions

Provisions are recogrised when the Company has a present
cbligalion as a result of a past event and it 1s probable that
the Company will be required to settle that obligation, and
are discounted to present value where the effect 1s matenal




Vacant property provisions

Prowvisions for property represent amounts set aside In
respect of property leases which are onerous and the
unavotdable costs of restoning leasehold properties to the
condition specified In the lease at the end of the contractual
term The quantification of each of the provisions Is
determined based on the Directors best estimate and 1s
dependent on the Company’s ability to exit the leases early
or to sublet the properties In general, property costs are
expected to be incurred over penods for which individual
properties remain vacant or, where occupied, to the
termination of the leases in question

Going concern

The Group’s business activities, which include those of

the Company, together with the factors hkely to affect its
future development, performance and position are set out
in The Chief Executive’s Statement on pages 6to 7 The
financial position of the Group, its cash flows and borrowing
facilities are described in the Fair Review of the Business
on pages 21 to 23 In addition, noie 38 of the consolidated
financial statements include the Group's objectives, polictes
and processes for managing its capital, ts financial

risk management objectives and details of its financial
instruments, and 1is exposure (o credit nek and iquidity nisk

As highlighted 1n note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group meets its day to day working capital
requirements through an uncommitted overdraft facility and a
committed faciity which matures in September 2016 These
facilities are subject to banking covenants as disclosed in
note 38 to the consoldated financial statements

In preparing forecasts the directors have taken into account
the following key factors

+ The rate of growth of the UK and global economy on the
Group's business dunng the economic recovery,

« Key chent account renewals,
= Planned acquisitions and disposals,

+ Aniicipated payments under deferred and contingent
consideratton,

+ The level of committed and vanable costs, and

« Current new business targets compared to levels
achieved In previous years

The Group's forecasts and projections, taking account of
reasonably possible changes In trading pesformance, show
that the Group should be able to operate within the level of
its current faciity and banking covenants
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The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Company and the Group have adequate resources {o
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future
Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in prepanng the annual financiai statements

More detall on the Group's cash position and facilities at
31 December 2013, as well as matunbies of the financial
habihities, can be found 1n note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements The principal nsks and uncertainties
faced by the Group are included in the Dirgctors' Report
Detalls of potential contingent liabiliies and potential
cash outflows in relation to these liabilibes can be found
nnote 12

Profit of parent company

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the
Income statement of the parent company I1s not presented
as part of these accounts The parent company's Joss for
the financial year amounted to £2,160,000 (2012 loss of
£6,925,000)

2 Equity dividends

The equity dwidends paid by the Company are disclosed in
note 12 of the consolidated financial statements
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2013

3 Investments

Investments
inand loans Equity
to associated interest in Other
undartakings subsidiarias Investments Taotal
£°000 £°000 £°000 £°000
Balance at 1 January 2012 218 177560 __#0 178026
Additons 7 assa 1283 00 11837
Disposals - - ss7a) - (25573
Adjustments Lo prigr year acquisitions o - [2378) T _7— T (2,378]
Additons re deemed remunerabon - 11284 - 11284
Transfers i - - .33 - 383
Transfers aut - - 12 - e
Share based payment - disposal of subsmhary_ B -—_‘ L (897} - __ [857_]
@uctmnln carrying value T o (44 S T T T {a4j
Balance at 31 December 2012 4,726 169,950 350 175,026
thns _ . L o - 186,331 L - 186,331
Disposals. - T (454) (118,748) - (119,202)
;dTusthntsEo prior year acquisitions j o _rj— ~ __ 7i _;7_ o _2_.@_ _ . _-._ j 2.515
Addltions; r%leemed remuneration o i - 6,689 - 6,689
Transforsin T L T T Thes T T T T T s
Transfers out N B ) - = - _ -
Shore bassd payment - tisposalof subsdiay - (s34} - (5,344)
Reduction in carrying value o T - [610] L (610)
Balance at 31 Decembear 2013 4,272 241,188 3s0 245,810

Y Other financial assets

Amounts shown relate to the purchase of an option whereby on exercise the Company would acquire Lord Coe’s 93%
interest in Complete Leisure Group Limited  Thus aption was exercised on 30 January 2013 and further information 1s noted

In the subseqguent events note 16
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Short term Fixtures,
leasehold Motor fittings &
improvements vehicles Software egquipment Total
£'00D £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000
Cast o ) _
Brought forward at 1 January 2013 o 274 o _15 - 59 a ]TEI_—k W
Additions - e e . T Tesr 237
Oisposals o o - - T 4] o (4]
Transfers out - T - - - . . [tI_EB]—— o M
Carmed forward at 31 December 2013 274 15 55 1,076 1420
Depreciation ~ L L )
Brougnt forward at 1 January 2013 285 8 s sm 1,210
Charge for the yer——— B T ) 18 _ 2 T 128 150
Qisposals . T . e TR T
Transfersouwt - 77 7 ._u__‘,#_l:ﬁ_u, o Eﬁ
Carried forward at 31 December 2013 264 11 55 708 1,039
Net Book Amount at 1 January 2013 29 8 - 370 405
Net Baok Amount at 31 December 2013 10 4 - 387 381
6 Debtors
2013 2012
£'000 £000
Amounts owed by group underiakings o 24,870 32301
Deferred consideratton recevable - due in one year T 139§ 1195
Other debtors ) T ST o _5.025 2.394
ﬁeferred Tax Asset_ o — _:;’_ ; ___* ) : j __: S —lI_SE - N 504
Corporation Tax Recewable - B o T - 3,814
Other Debtars - due after one ye;r - T 100 50
30,648 40,258

Amounts owed by group undertakings are unsecured, repayable on demand and interest-free, with the following exceptions

- a funding loan to an overseas subsidiary amounting to £3,804,000 (2012 £3,770,000} at 31 December 2013 which attracts
Interest at a rate of 7 5%

« afundmng loan to a subsidiary amounting to £14,921,000 (2012 £15,327,000) at 31 December 2013 which altracts interest
at a rate of LIBOR plus 35%

7 Shart-term investments

The loan note cash deposit of £58,000 {2012 £58,000) relates to a cash deposit held at Royal Bank of Scotland plc The
deposit 1s for payment of the loan note creditors of £58,000 (2012 58,000) Interest accruing on the deposii 1s payable to the
holders of the loan notes less any costs
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2013

8 Creditors amounts falling due within one year

2013 2012

£'000 £°080
Bank overdraft o B - -
Amounts owed to ggdp—undertaktag?P _-j_ T T T T T 17,9-?!6
Loan notes i o o i d—’— B o 809 - 58
Current taxation _____- i_ i _— o __—— T TS T
Other creditors o T —_7 R B_EE_—__E—H
Accruals and deferred ncome T 2761 313

10,569 23 285

9 Creditors amounts falling dus after more than ona year

2013 2012

£°000 £'000
Bank karrgwings . 3 _ _ 57,737 13281

T o - ) 7 s1.737 13281

Royal Bank of Scotland plc holds debentures over the assets of the Company and its subsichanes 1n respect of the bank loans

10 Prowvistons for habilities

Deferred Deemed Onerous

consideration remureration leases Total

£°000 £°000 £'000 £°000

At 1 January 2013 ] o 1,977 14,298 2,094 18,369
Transfer from other group cr;n-;;any -—_ ; o i ? o _"——-_ N o i - ~ ) ) -
C_harge ta profit and lass account B o i _ ) Ll’; i : __ T i o T 20
Paymentsmade (s3] (122100 [11s8) _ [4311]

Arising on scquisilions . 1,420 2.6&9 7 - 4,108

Adjustment to priar year acqmsnpﬁi_‘ - —7 B _[(22) o 37} iiiii _— - o 349

On acquisition of associates - . . T -
Foreign Exchange o . R o

At31 December 2013 2,452 5,148 936 8.536

The vacant property provision at 31 Decembier 2013 relates to two bulddings one near Heathrow and one in Central London
Provisions for property represent amounts set aside n respect of property leases which are onerous and the unavoidable
costs of restoring leasehold properties to the condition specified in the lease at the end of the contractual term The
quantfication of each af the pravisions has been determined based on management's best estmate and 1s dependent

on the Company’s ability to exit the leases early or to sublet the properties In general, property costs are expected to be
incurred over periods for which individual properties remain vacant or, where occupied, 1o the termination of the leases In
question During the year the Company made provisions of £nil (2012 £1,931,000)

142 Chime Communications plc




11 Statements of movements on share capital, share premium and reserves

Cvanigw and Highlights
Stategy and Outiogk
Performance

Govemance

Directors Remuneration Report

Financial Statements

Share- Non
Share based Capital  distrib-
Share gpremium payment Marger reduction utahle ESOP Retained
capital account reserve  reserve regerve reserve reserve earnings
_ _____£DO0D €000  E£'000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £'000
Balance atl Januar\/ 2012 L 20,237 79887 7288 3780 32385 - (4191) 41059
Issue of shares :_ . T:_—_ge_g_ﬂ - . N - :i - -
Retained loss far ‘theyear o L e - - - [6,925]
Dividends payable - - - - - - - (5350)
Capital contribution gwen relating o _ } 1 géa_ _ _ - f— } —_
to share based payments e B .
Disposal of subsidianes - - [837] - - - . .
Dispasal on exercise of options - j— ot - - 2144 (2067] 1
Purchase of own e‘qu_lty shares held in treasury N - - - - - [507] -
Balance at 31 December 2012 20,522 81,943 8,324 3,780 32,385 - [2.554) 28,717 '
Issue af shares o 4007 40887 - - - - -
@med loss for the year __: N - - - - - - [2.160]
Divmdends payable - I - - T ) - [6268)
Cathtmn gwen relatrng i o _* T _ - [_128_] 7—‘ _‘ T _ ) - —f
to share based payments T o L
Disposal of subsidiaries o - - [558] - - _EE?B_A - -
Oisposal on exercise of optluns B _ - R - [164] (1,000)
Reie;s?uf capital reducuon reserve . - - - - 132 385] - - 32385
Purchase af own éqmty shares held m;;sdr_y i o _ - - - - 1000 -
Balance at 31 December 2013 24,529 122,940 7.640 3,780 - 5,373 [1,718) 49874

Detalls of share capital allotted dunng the year are disclosed In note 31 of the conselidated financial statements

Costs of £1,735,000 (2012 - £18,863) relating to the 1ssue of shares have been included in share premium

The ESOP reserve represents the cost of shares in Chime Communications Plc purchased in the market and held by |

The Chime Communications Employee Trust to sabisfy options under the Group's share option schemes, deferred shares
and the Co-lnvestment Plan Further detaills are disclosed in note 36 of the Group accounts

Detalls of the release of capital reduction reserve are disclosed in note 32 of the consolidated financial statements

Non distnbutable reserves relate 1o the transfer of investments to other group companies within the Group These will become
avalable for distnbution upen disposal of the investments
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2013

12 Contingent habilities and commitments

Deferred and contingent consideration

Al 31 December 2013 there was a maximum financial commitment of £1,767,000 undiscounted (2012 £2,633,000} 1n
respect of unprovided deferred contingent consideration payable in respect of acquisitions of subsidiary undertakings The
calculation of the deferred consideration hability requires estimates to be made regarding the forecast future performance
of these businesses for the earnout penod The unprovided deferred contingent constderation would become payable over
pernods from 2014 to 2019 and would be payable in cash/loan notes or cash/loan notes and new shares

Deemed remuneration

In addition to the deemed remuneration provision as disclosed in note 10 of £5,148,000 currently provided at 31 December
2013 £9,091,000 (2012 £12,377,000) will be expensed In the relevant subsidiary company, over the period of the service
based on the current fair value The investment in the parent company will Increase by the same amount In addition an
amount of £31,565,000 (2012 £9,709,000) (undiscounted) would be expensed in the relevant subsidiary company, under
the earn-out agreement should maximum performance targets be met, and the investment in the parent company would
increase The calculation of the deemed remuneration habihty requires estimates to be made regarding the forecast future
performance of these businesses for the penod of service The unprovided deemed remuneration would become payable
over penods from 2014 {0 2019 and would be payable 1n cash/loan notes or cash/ioan notes and new shares

13 Share-based payments

The Company currently uses a number of equity settied share plans to grant oplions and shares to the Directors and
employees of Its subsidiary underiakings As at 31 December 2013, the Company had 880,212 ordinary share options
outstanding (2012 1,016,631)

In 2012 the Directors reconsidered the way in which contnbutions to the share based payments in subsidiaries were treated
Therefore it 15 being treated as a recewable from the subsidiary company Dunng the year ended 21 December 2013, the
capital contributicn ansing from share-based payments was £nil {2012 £nil}

Full details of share-based payments, share option schemes and share plans are disclosed in note 36 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements of Chime Communication Plc

14 Subsidiarnies, associates and jaint ventures

The Company's principal trading subsidianies and associated undertakings, which are alf incorporated in Great Britain
{except where noted) are iisted n note 18 of the consohdated financial statements
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15 Related parties

During the year, the Company received a dividend from the Agency of Someone Limited £240,000 (2012 £80,000) and
Naked Eye Research Limited £nil (2012 £6,374) which are associates

2013

Amounts Amounts

owed by owed to

Sale of Purchass retated retated

services of services partias parties

£°000 £'000 £'000 £'C00
!_\ssnmatas . - o . o -
Béﬁ)ttlnger Private LIﬂ;FlEE! B _— ‘_ j o 102_3 o 7; - N :d_7 o '_157
—B—lalrpﬁtiinger Public Aﬁaﬁs Umited _7 7 L Aj—_ L‘_E : . s - T
Bell Po‘ttmger Public Refations Limited N h S0 . - ___ ﬁ :___— 54_
Bell Pottinger Sans Fruntﬁrﬁ_l _— ) ;__ '_-:_ - 34 ___ 7 o - ;- (___ - 8
Pelham Bell Pottinger 83 - - 18
Bell Potunger Middle-East T ) ____—; —______ _—f) A_j_ . -_—;_ o -
The Brand Marketing Tearmn Lrn;taﬁ L o ;_ 14 o _—;__ ; g_; - ) 13
anur TV Limisted ) _— 32— i __‘Ai- - T T 5
Naked Eye Research Limited —_ ) L; :iﬁ’_“ _ﬁd_- l_ ) . __7;; : o 1 . ﬁi—_ ;——_1_
RareCu-rporate De&igmlt_ad_ 7_¥ 7 B o 777 LI -: sl _ i o E :_ -__;___—i
The Agency of Someone Ijmltedi —/ ;v h L o _H—_ B - __ - o —_-_
XgY Communications L]n’;le-d_ - _— _ _‘ﬂl__ - i __- = ': o o
Icon Display South Africa [ply] Ltd ) ;__ ____j# 1 - ) - -
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2013

16 Subsequent events

Subsequent to the year end, the Group has made the following acqursition

The Blaze Agency Pty Ltd (‘Blaze’)

On 5 March 2014 the Group acquired 100% of Blaze, a company incorperated in Australia, for imitial consideration of
AUD$2,000,000 (£1,073,000) Additional consideration 1s payable contingent on the results of the business, capped at the
maximum of AUD$4,000,000 (£2,146,000)

Subseguent to acquisiiion, the results of Blaze will be included within the Group's Sport & Entertainment division
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Information for Shareholders

Financial Calsndar Thursday 15 May 2014
Wednesday 21 May 2014

Friday 23 May 2014

Friday 13 June 2014
Wednesday 27 August 2014
Wednesday 17 September 2014
Friday 19 September 2014

Friday 10 October 2014

November 2014

Overview andvl-;lghhg_hts

Stategy and Qutiook

Performance
Govemance

Drrectors Remuneration Report
Financial Statements

Annual General Meeting 12 noon
Ex-Dividend date 2013 Final Dividend
Recard date 2013 Final Dividend
Payrent of 2013 Final Dividend
Announcement of 2014 Intenm Results
Ex-Dividend Date 2014 Intenm Dividend
Record Date 2014 Intenm Dividend
Payment of 2014 Intenm Dividend

Intenm Management Statement

Share Price Share price at 31 Decembzer 2013 3370p
;|gh during the year iB Dve;e_n;]ar 2}313 - T - 3455p
lowdurmgtheyear 2 Januan 2013 2300p
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Prafessional Advisers

Contact Details
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Financial Advisars
EPL Advisory LLP
18 Hyde Gardens
Eastbourne

East Sussex

BN21 4PT

Stockbrokers

Numis Secunties Limited
10 Paternoster Square
London

ECAM 7LT

Auditors

Delaitte LLP

2 New Street Square
Londen

EC4A 3BZ

Solicitors
Staughter & May
One Bunhill Row
London EC1Y 8YY

Bankers

Royal Bank of Scottand plc
280 Bishopsgale

London EC2M 4RB

HSBC Bank PLC

London Corporate Banking Centre
First fioor, 60 Queen Victona Street
London EC4N 4TR

Chime Communications plc
Southside

6th floor

105 Victonza Street

London

SW1E QT

www chimeplc com

Registrars

Computershare Investor Services plc
Registrar's Department

PO Box 82

The Pavilions

Bridgwater Road

Bristol

BS13 8AE

Registered Office
Southside

6th floor

105 Victona Street
London

SW1E 6QT

Registered in England No 1883857

Lord Davies - Chairman
lord davies@chimeplc com

Christopher Satterthwaite -
Chief Executive
csatterthwaite@chimeplc com

Mark Smith — Chief Operating Officer
and Finance Director
msmih@chimeplc com

Robert Davison - Group Secretary
rdavison@chimeplc com
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Southside, 6th Floor
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London SWlE 6QT
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